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At a glance

Operating an international network of facilities, Bodycote is the world’s
leading provider of thermal processing services.

Experienced in supporting large multinational customers and their supply
chains, as well as local niche specialists, Bodycote provides a vital link in the
manufacturing process for virtually every market sector including aerospace and
defence, automotive, power generation, oil & gas, construction, medical and
transportation.

Our structure
The Group operates 187 facilities around the world which are organised into
customer focused divisions:

The ADE Divisions The AGI Divisions

{primarily focused on aerospace, deferce and energy custorners) {primarily focused on automotive and gensral Industrial customers)
Read mare Reag maore
on page 18 on page 20

The core values underpinning everything we do

Honesty and Transparency
We are honest and act with integrity This (s not something we take for granted Bodycote lives by a culture of
honest and transparent behaviour, which (s at the core of all cur business relationships

Respect and Responsibility
We rmanage our business with respect, applying an ethical approach te our dealings with those we interact with, We
beleve n taking ownership, and being mindful of the impact of our actions.

Creating Value
Creating value is the very essence of our business and needs to be the focus of our endeavours. We create

value for our customers, ocur employees and our shareholders
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Financial highlights

2017 2018
Revenue £690.2m £600 6m
Headline operatirg profit’ £123.9m £99 6m
Return on sales? 18.0% 16 6%
Operatng profit £119.4m £94 5m
Headline profit before taxation' £121.5m £970m
Profit before taxation £117.0m £919m
Net cash £39.6m £11m
Basic headline earmings per share?® 49.2p 370p
Basic earnings per share 51.0p 35 2p
Ordinary dividend per share 174p 15 8p
Special dwvidend per share 25.0p -
Return on capital employeg? 19.3% 171%

Operational highlights

| Revenue growth of 14 9% to £690 2m, revenue growth at corstant currency was 9 8%, well above the backgrourd rmarket growth rates
m 24% growth in headline operating profit to £123 9m

m Return on sales improvement to 18 §% (2016 16 6%

m Basic headline EPS increased 33% to 49 2p

m ROCE increased to 19 3% (20168 171%) notwithstanding the increased rate of capital investrnent

m Headlre operatirg cash flow® of £1117m {2016 £914m)

® Headline operating cash conversion® at 90%, £83 Om free cash flow’ (2016 £60 5m)

m Fult year ordinary dividend 174p, up 10%, and special dmvidend 25 Op (2016 nil)

Headline operatng prott and headline profit betore taxaton exclude amortisanon of acguired intangibles of £4 5m (2016 £4 §m) and acquisition costs of £nil
12016 £0 £m)

2 Return on sales .5 defined as headline operating orofit as a percentage of ravenue
3 A detaled EPS reconciiation i1s prowded i note 10 on page 107

4 Return on capitat employed (ROCE) s defined as headline operating profit of £123 9m {2016 £99 6m) diwvided by the average of opening and closing capital
employed of £642 5m {2016 £582 3m) Capital employed 1s defined as net assets adjusted for net cash/{debt}

5 Headline operatng cash flow 13 defined as cash generated by operations of £182 8m {2016 £146 3m) less net capital expenditure of £74 Bm (2018 £63 1m}
and before cash flow relating to restructunng of £3 7m (2016 £76m) and acquisition costs of £ni {2018 £0 8m)

& Headline operating cash converswan s def ned as headline operaung cash flow divided by headine operaung profit

7 Free cash flow 1s defined as cash generated oy operations of £182 8m {2016 £146 3] less net caprtal expenditure of £74 Bm (2016 £63 1m) and finanzing
costs of £2 1m {2016 £2 3m) and taxation of £22 9m {2016 £20 4m!
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The Group Strategic report provides a review of The Strategic report discusses the following areas
the business for the financial year and describes
how we manage risks

m Gilobal network

a Charman’s statement
The report outlines the developments and

performance ot the Group dunng the financial » Chief Exscutive’s review
year, the position at the end of the year and
discusses the main trends and factors that
could atfect the future s Strategy and objectives

m Business model

Key performance indicaters are published to show s Qur technologies
the performance and position of the Group Page

11 outlines the Group’s strategy and objectives m Measuring progress (key performance indicators)

along with the business model on page 10 B Business review - The ADE Divisions
The directors, in preparing this Strategic repoert, m Business review — The AGI Divisions
have complied with s414C of the Companies

Act 2006 a Chief Financial Officer's report

This Strategic report has been prepared for the a Principal nisks and uncertainties

Group as a whole and therefore gives greater m Corporate responsibility and sustainability
emphasis to those matters which are significant

to Bodycote plc and its subsidiary undertakings

when viewed as a whole



Global network

Bodycote is experienced in all major market sectors and is able to
combine the capability and expertise of a network of 187 facilities to
deliver global or local services for customers.

Group revenue by geography - £m

M Western Europe 3849
W North America 2612
B Emerging markets 541

Total 690 2
Overview

As the only global provider of subcontract thermal precessing
services, Bodycote s able to offer significant advantages to its
customers Through an international network of plants, Bodycote
can effectively utilise a wealth of knowledge, experence and
specialist expertise to deliver guality service whenr and where it 18

needed

The network operates from 187 facihties, with customers able
to benefit from Bodycote's comprehensive range of services
fram muitiple locations Customers know that if ther business
expands, Bodycote will have the capabiiity to meet their needs
They recognise that i they were 1o broaden therr manufacturing
footprint, Bodycotle would be able to assist them They are
aware that they can obtain the same process 1o the same quality

stardards from multiple locations

n
m Bodycote plc -

Revenue by
geograpry

Group revenue by market sector —£m

B ‘erospace and Defence 1607

B Cnergy 56 7
MW automotive 2052
~ General Inaustnal 2681

Total 630.2

Revenue
Dy Mmarket
sector

Such a farge network brings economies of scale, with technology
developed at one location being avaitable globally if the market
requires 1t Similarly, network utilisation 1s enhanced by using
logistics to put customers’ wor< into the most effective faciliies to
meet their requirements

The Beodycote network has a wealth of technical accreditations,
some industry or customer specific, others more general Individual
operations concentrate on the accrecitations suited to their market



Although Bodycote is a UK company, 92% of the Group’s revenue
Is derived outside the UK. With facilities in 23 countries,
Bodycote is truly global.

Western Europe Bodycote operates 101 facilities in Western Europe and 1s the
number one provider of thermal processing services, with by far
the largest network and a comprebersive service offenng

Strategic report

Y

Revenue by market sector — £m
Westem Europe

M Aerospace ana Defence 68 6
B Energy 270
B Automotive 1033
# General Industrial 185 4
Total 384.9
North America Bodycole 1s the largest provider of thermal processing services :

in North America by a significant margin, with a comprehensive
retwork coverage This networx offers 89 facilities convenient to
customers in all areas where marufactunng and technical industries
are concentrated

Revenue by market sector — £m
North America

B Aerospace ana Defence 847
8 cnergy 28 8
B Auomotive B5 5 )
# General Industral 72 -
Total 2512
Emerging Markets @ Bodycote has 27 facihties in Emerging Markets covenrg Eastern

Europe, China and Mexico Bodycote s the number one thermal
processing provider i Eastern Europe and s the leading YWestern
provider in China

Revenue by market sector — £m
Emerging Markets

B Aerospace and Defence 24
B tnergy 04
B Agtomo ve 358
Generat Industnal 155
Total 54.1




Chairman’s statement

“"One of the key roles of the Chairman is to ensure that the Board
members possess a range of complementary skilis which are relevant to
Bodycote's business. | have spent time with all of my Board colleagues
and am confident that | have joined a well-balanced Board that, in terms
of governance, is functioning effectively.”

A. C. Quinn CBE
Chairman

| am pleased to be contributirg to the annual report for the first
nme as Bodycote's Chairmar, having taken up the position on
1 January 2018

Overview

The Group delivered a good set of results for 2017 and | am
very pleased that the management team, under the leadership
of Stephen Harns, has been able to demonstrate the strength
and stromg market positian of Bodycote's business once agan

Dividend

The Board i1s proposing a final dividend of 12 g an increase of
12%, which will be paid on 1 June 2018, subiect to shareholider
approval at the 2018 Annual Generat Meeting (AGM) This brings
the total ordinary dreidend for 2017 to 174p (2006 15 B costing
£33 1m, which represents a yearon-year increase of 10 1% This
ircrease in the level of dviderd underscores the Board's view of
the Group's excellent future earmings and cash flow potertal

Furthermore, recogmsing the strong net cash pesition of the Group
at year end, the Board 1s recommending a supplemental distribution
by way of a spexial dvidend. also payable on 1 June 2018, amounting
10 25 Op per share, costing £479m

Board and governance

My predecessor, Alan Thomson, steppad down as Chairman at the
end of 2017 Or behalf of the Board, and the Company as a whole,

I thank Alan for tus significant contnbution to Bodycote during hus
ten years of Chairmanship and previously as a Non-Executive Board
member | think that it 15 fair to say that Bodycote has undergone

3 wholesale transformation dunng Alan's tenure as Chairman and
the development of the Group's share price over that pered 1s a
testament 10 the progress that has been made

One of the key roles of the Chairman 1s to ersure that the Board
members possess a rarge of complementary skills which are
relevant 1o Bodycote's busingss | have spent time with all of
my Board colieagues and am confident that | have joined a
wedl-balanced Board that, in terms of governarce, 1s functioring
effectively

n
m Bodycote pic - - -



The Board has beer further strengthened by the appoirtmeant of

Lii Chahbazi, who joined as a Nor-Executive Director on 1 January
28 Lilis an experienced strategy corsultant and, since 2008, a
global partner in the London office of Bain & Company Lill currently
heads the oll & gas practice and consults to a range of interrational
clents Lili brings a wide range of experience in businesses
mneluding those in the engineenng, aviation and transport industries

Another one of the key responsibilities of the Chairman 15 1o
promote effective governance across the Group, thus ensunng

that we remain a successful and sustainable entity with good
governance procedures practised across all 23 countries in

which the Group operates We are commuitted to conducting
business resporsibly By mantaining high standards of corporate
governance, we enhance performarce underpinned by our business
medel Qur approach to governance 1s set by the Board, and our
Executive Committee ensures that the approach 1s effectively
implemented across the busiress Effective ard robust governarce
remains central to the ongoirg success of the Group

People

As part of my inductior to the busingss, | have had the charce

to visit a goed number of facilities, as well as to engage with

much of the Group's senior executive management | have been
impressed by the commitment, Knowledge and passion that | have
expenenced from employees across the business, and at all levels
| can see how the talented workforee creates a clear competitive
advanrtage for Bodycote, which 15 5o wital for the long-term success
of the business

Shareholders

Duning the year, as usual, meelirgs were undertaken with a
number of Bodycote's sharebolders and positive feedback was
received from them | have already had the opportunity to meet
some of our shareholders and look forward to meetng more of you
duning the coming year, as well as at this year's AGM ir May 2018

Summary

The Group I1s starting to show the results of the increased
investment programme that has been ongoing for the last few
years This programme has been designed to generate supenor
growth Iin what until recently has been a weak macroeconomic
envirorment The results of these investments, together with the
continued diligence i operationa! effictency and a more benign
macro environment all combined to deliver arother good set of
results for the Group in 2017 Bodycote remairs well placed to
capitalise on the value generating investments avallable to 1t and
the prospects for the Group are excellent | am confident that in
the coming years Bodycote wili deliver an attractive return for our
shareholders and commensurate reward for our employees

A.C. Quinn CBE
Chairman
6 March 2018

[P I

i
)
a
2
2
=
@
k]
1]
=
1)

4
P

"
e



Chief Executive's review

“2017 has once again demonstrated the quality of Bodycote's business.
The Group's revenue growth, combined with continued discipline on
costs, helped lift headline operating profit by 24%. Return on sales
increased to 18.0% from 16.6%."

S. C. Harris
Group Chief Executive

Overview

Bodycote reported revente growth of 14 9% to £690 2m (2016
£600 Bm), with revenue benefitng from foreign exchange trarslation
gain At constant currency, revenues grew 8 6%, including
contnbution of 2 9% from acquisitions completed in 2018

The foliowing review reflects constart currercy growth rates unless
stated otherwise

General industnial markets returned to growth after a multi-

vear regative trend Moreover, this growth was broad-based,
wath improvements in general industnal demand occurrng in

all of our served geographies Group reverues generated from
the gereral rdustnal sectors, whick represent some 39% of
our business, grew 10%, which was well above the growth in
background demard Cf this growth, 4 percertage points came
from acquisitiors made in 2016 The rermainder of the Group's
outperformance 1n general industrial versus the market came from
the increased penetration of Specialist Technologies {(which grew
14% n this segtor), as well as an element of some customer
restocking

The decision we took to preserve the capacity at our Texas/Cxlahoma
faciities 1s being well rewarded, as we have also seen a reversal of
the sharp declines that we had experienced in onshore ol & gas
demand Growth in onshore ol & gas saw a strong sequential increase
ir 2017 driver predeminantly by demand from urcorventional driliing
activity in the Perrmian Basin In the rest of the energy sector, subsea
revenugs cortinued 1o dechne and large-frame industnal gas turbines
{IGT) are also in retreat following cuthacks at the onginal equipment
manufacturers {(OEMSs) 111 worth noting, however, that requests for
guotation in the subsea sector have picked up considerably In total,
revenues from the energy sector increased by 4%

Civil aviation grew 6% with our UK operations continuwirg to add
significant business This increase will require new facilities to

be built in 2018 ir the UK in order to service forecast demand
North America also started to contribute to the growth in a more
mearingful way as the buiid rate of LEAP engines continues to
grow Bodycote has a much stronger position cr the LEAP series
than it di¢t on the previous CFMSE, which s a testament to the
success of the focused sales and investmenrt programme that has
been urdertaken over the last decade

m Bodycote pie - - - - -



The automotive busIness Saw growth of 14% with the majority

of this increase corming from the car and hight truck sector This
compares to background demand growth in Europe of low single
digits and a slight decline in the USA Qur strong performance
benefited from the contribution from the acquisiions made in 2018,
togetrer with the investments we have made in Emerging Markets
and Specialist Technologies

in our Specialist FTechnologies, we achieved double-digit revenue
growth across our Speciglty Stanless Steel Processes (S3P), low
pressure carbunsirg (LPC) and Core-I-Dur® (CID) technoicgies
However several factors dragged on overall sales growth during the
year The HIP Product Fabrication (HIP PF) and Surface Technology
businesses are focused largely on oil & gas outside of the USA,
with particular emphasis on subsea ard these revenuas cortinued
to declire In addition the weakness 0 IGT volumes resulted In a
slowdown in the HIP Services business towards the end of the
year Also impacting our HIP Services business was an unplanned
outage during the second half twhich was fully resolved by year
end) Forecast growth in ail the Specialist Technologies locks strong

Tha five sitgs we acquired in 2016 are perforrng well They

are all Classical Heat Treatment sites within the AGI division and
contrnbuted £23 0m of revanue ir 2017 watk return or sales in hre
with the Group It also worth highlighting that reveruss at these
facilities have accelerated 2ince coming mnto the Group as a result
of the benefits derived from being part of the Group's networx of
facilities

With careful cost discipline ir the face of growing revenues,

the Group's Peadline operating profit grew 24% to £123 8m
(26% growth in statutory operating profit to £112 4m) and the
return on sales improved to 18 0% (2016 16 6%) Once again,
we Increased our prices ahead of cost irflaten This is an area of
heiwghtened focus for the Group especiaily as we are entering a
penod of higher mput cost irflation 1In some markets 1t1s worth
noting, however, that Bodycote typically performs well in higher
nflationary environments

The Group's strong profit improvement, coupled with a headline tax
rate of 22 9% (2016 275%), increased basic headline earnings per
share to 49 Zp (2016 370pi Basic earnings per share increased to

510p from 35 2p

The returr on capital employed rose in the current vear to 19 3%
from 171% 1n 2016

Free cash flow increased to £83 Om (2016 £60 5m) as & result

of our iImproved profitability and in spite of increased capital
expenditure to support the future growth of the business Headlire
operating cash conversion was, once agam, above 90%, yielding a
net cash positior at the end of the year of £39 6rm (2016 £11m)

Strategic progress

The Group's strategy encompasses the drive for operational
sfficilency ard improvement in return on sales, growth in markets
with higher long term structural growth, the expansion of the
Group's footprint in rapid growth markets, the focus on revenue
growth 1in Specialist Technologies, and growth through targetsed
acquisitiors, where these are more attractive than investing ir new
tacilities The Group Fas a mirimum 20% burdle rate returr when
looking at investments

During 2017 we made furthar progress against our strategy,
delvening higher Group return on sales of 18 0% We believe there
15 sull the opporturity to further improve from both managemeant
led imtiatives, particuiarly in our AGH division, and growth in our
higher return Specialist Technologies

In 2017 we continued 10 nvest in areas with superior growth
potential, with & deiiberate bias towards investments in rapid-
growth markets, Specialist Technologies, and long-cycle
programmes, particularly in civil aviation Emerging Markets
revenues Increased 26% to £54 1m, representing 8% of Group
turrover, wath growth in Mexice and Ching both above 40% We
will continue to invest to support the future of cur business in these
rapid growth markets During the year, we commissioned several
new LPC ard 5°P lines In HIP Services we acquirad the HIP assets
from Doncasters Group Lirmited's UK business and a new mega-HIP
was ordered for Europe which will come onling in 2018 Further
new facilities are expected to be commissiored in 2018 for both
Specialst Technologies and Classical Heat Treatment in our focus
geographies ard rmarkets The additional capacity that will come on
streamn 1n 2018 will add to cur ability to deliver strong growth and
supernor return on sales over the coming years

YWe also continue to lock at acquisihion and investmeant
cpportunities that will grow our business These are traditionally
small bolt-on facilities that can prowvide us with infills to our existing
network Where opportumities to buy such faciities do not exist,
we will build new facilimes, these obviously have & ramp-up penod,
but have the advantage of beirg designed exactly ir line with the
Group’s technology and operational efficiency focus Sirce 2014
we have invested £164m i both acqLisitions and investment for
growth in new and existing faciities, with revenues from the fatter
stil ramping up as these plants typicaily take 3-5 years to reach full
production

Organisation and people

Bodycote 1s a service business, and first-class service s delivered
by passionate ard professicral pecple, who understand therr
custorners’ reeds and meet therr demanding reguirements tme
and time again We will continug to invest In training and developing
our employees to ensure that our talented workforce remains one
of our competitve advantages

Summary and outlook

2017 has once agamn demonstrated the quahty of Bodycote's
business Strong growth was achueved through contributions

from contract wins on automotive and aerospace programmes,
excellent growth in Emerging Markets {(where our investments are
vielding good returns), and broad-based growth across the general
industnal sectors, an elemenrt of which was due to some customer
restocking

The Group's revenuea growth, combined with continued discipline
on costs, helped IIft headline aperating profit by 24% Return on
sales increased to 18 0% from 16 6%

To ensure that the business cortnues 1o dehver good results, we
will continue to focus on efficiency, mairtaining price discipline

in hght of increasing Inflatior across mary economies, ard the
execution of our successiul strategy

Qur business, by its nature, has hmited forward visibility, but we
have entered the year with good momentum Accordirgly, and in
spite of the foreign exchange headwind at current excharge rates,
2018 has started in ine with our expectations

S.C. Hanmris
Group Chief ExecLtive
6 March 2018

T
&
-4
z
2
™
@
2
B
|4
&
&N




Business model

Provider of essential services to engineering manufacturers

Classical Heat Treatment

Working to very exacting quality
specifications, heat treatment uses
precisely controlled furnaces to process
a huge vanely of metals and alloys,
improving their matenal properties

Bodycote's Classical Heat Treatmenrts
descnbe a group of mature hear
treatment processes and includes metal
joimng technologies which are used to
Join and assemble parts

The global leader

Virtually every type of metal component,
whatever its applicatior, has received
some form of processing before its
irtroduction 1o service to enable it 1o
perform to the required standard ard last
longer

Specialist Technologies

Bodycote’s Specialist Technologies refer
to a group of processes which require
very specialist experuse and technelogy
Trese technologies, scme of which are
proprietary, offer unique solutions for a
vanety of apphications

Customer focus

Bodycote 1s focused on contirual
improvement of our glality of service and
takes an active role in finding solutions

to technical 1Issues and promoting

mutual business developrment with our
customers

Bodycote seeks 10 secure service-
speecific arrangements with our
customers which provide protection
from supply disruption by leveraging
Bedycote's unique facility netwaork

The supplier of choice

Global network

Transferable know-how

Service

Bodycote has becerne the supplier of
chowce for many of the world’s most
respected and innovative engineering
companies by provicing highly efficient,
cost-effective services 1o the highest
guality standards through strategic
investment in people and the latest
technology, equipmert and quality
systems

Creating value

m Bodycote's global network of 187 m The global Bodycote networs provides
market-focused facihties (see pages 4 unique opporturities for the trarsfer of
and 5) in 23 countries brings econormies knowledge and skills, and the transfer
of scale, particularly for logisties and of technology
equpment Ltilisation This makes
Bodycote’s processing inherently more With some of the best metallurgists,
efficient than customers’ In-house ergineers and techricians in the industry,
operations (see page 34} and competitors, Bodycote 15 ideally placed to provide
thereby enhanaing our competitive solutions for customers, whatever therr
positiGn N the subcontract market market or wherever In the world they may

be

m The capital intensive nature of Bodycote's ’
business alse provides significant m Bodycote's scale enables continuous yet
barmers to entry The scope of Bodycote's focused investment, bath in the latest
network enables us to specialise more processes and in the most efficiant and
sffectively than compettors at individual environmer tally frierdly equipment
locations and provides comprehensive
backup for our customers

Cuality Expertise

m Bodycote's guality management systems, m Bodycote's extersive facilities and

validated by major engineering OEMs,
have been developed to meet the
requirements of interrational and national
accrediting bedies All Bodycote facilities
hold industry and customer approvals
appropriate to the services they offer and
the markets they serve

expertise mean that projects can extend
beyond customers’ in-housea capabilities,
combiring idertification and provision

of techrucal solutiors which address
in-service specification and deliver
value-adding matenal properties

Qur own erhancements and
improverent of standard processes
have led to Bodycote offering a range
of proprietary processes which far
outperform therr standard counterparts

For customers

Value-adding services

Global suppler which can mest muhuple
processing needs

Access to entire Bodycote krowledge
base and expertise

Caost and environmental benefits versus
sn-house operations

n
a Bodycoete pic - -

For Bodycote

Mutually beneficial customer
relationships

Wide custormer base means Bodycote 18
not reliant on any one customer

Ideally positiored 1o promote growth

In emerging mar<ets and selected
technologles

Clearly focused strategy

For investors

Financially stable and sustarnabie
business

8 Good growth drivers
| Superior return on irvestment

® Strong rmargins and cash flow



Strategy and objectives

Bodycote's ohjecuve I1s to create supenor shareholder returns through the provision of selected
thermai processing services that are highly valued by cur customers, giving full regard to a safe working environment

for our employees and with minimai envirenmental impact

The AGI
Divisions

Serving the gutorotive ard
general industrial customers
through a regonally orgarnised ¢
business, catering to these
customers” specific local or

regional needs ard proximity
requirements

T T

Classical Heat Treatments

Serving industries’ reeds for essential classical heat treatment
services, ensunng metals and alloys are it for purpose

The ADE

Divisions

Serving the aerospace,

defence and energy customers,
3 with a focused network of

globally coordinated factities,

attuned to these customers’
specific reeds and requirements

Divisional
customer focus

Orgarising our tecknologies

and resources to align with the
global and local requirements of
the market sectors in wiich our
customers operate and providing
the highest levels of customer
service in terms of quality,
deivery, reliability and technical
problem soiving

Strategic report

Technology

Providing thermal

procassing services that are

a vital link 1n the manufacturing
supply chain, and value-addirg
and preprietary specialist
technologies which offer
unique solutions for a vanety
of applcations

Specialist Technologies -

Capitalising or our specizlist technologies to provide our customers
with the ability 1o create innovative, differentiated products o

- Low Pressure Carburising (LPC)

— HiP Services .
Specialty Stainless Steel

— HIP Product Fabrication

Processes (S°P]
— Corr-Dur" {CiD)

— Surface Technology

1 I T

Strategic elements Emerging Operational Acquisitions it

markets improvement “
Our key strategies, focusing Adding small i
on customer alignment and Expanding witk our ContinLous bolt-on acquisitions ok

leadership in our areas of
techrology and service,
are underwritter by our
supporting strategies

customers to rapid
growth countries
with an emphasis
on Eastern Europe,
Mexico and China

improvermert of
business processes
ard systems wbhich
make us more efficient
and responsive

Safety & environment

At the foundatior of our business is the provision of a safe worxing
ervirorment for our employees, and to operate wath minimal environmental impact

Our progress measu red — KPIs (for further details see pages 16 and 17}

to improve our plant
network in Classical
HeatTreatment, and
nvesting in larger
acquisihons and
adjacent technologies
to grow Speciahist
Techrnologies



Component journeys

HIGH ROLLER — A COMPONENT JOURNEY

AEROSPACE BEARINGS

Ball and roller bearirgs are essential to high-prectsior
rotary compaorents n aircraft, and need to deliver
exceptional durability and consistert performance
despite changes In temperature and air pressure
Matenals used are custormised based on the erd
application, irclLdirg high temperature, stainless staels

and more exotic alloys, such as Inconel Bearings are shaped

ard machined from
rods of metal plates ard

WIres
B ier heat treatment, the
| rmaskirg s removed and
the surface cleansd
before inspection to
ansure the part meets
strict aerospace quality
specifications B The surface area to be heat
treated 1s prepared - areas
which are not to be beat treated
are selectively masked with
copper plating
|
BB 1re surface 1s hardened wia a
specialised nitnding process
during which nitrogen is diffused
nto the surface to increase
resistance 1o IN-service stress
and faugue
I
} For the perfect shape and smocth
‘ finish, beanrgs are put through final
lapping ard polishirg processes
1
BODYCOTE COMPONENT JOURNEYS
This Is Just one example of how Bodycote brings together the
huge wealth of knowledge and expertise from across the Group
to provide the vital engineernng services our customers need
End applications include landing gear,
For more componert journeys visit www.bodycote.com engine, control surfaces, and other parts

. Dengtes the parts of *he componert jaurnay undertaken by Bodycots or components,

m Bodycote pic - -




INNER STRENGTH — A COMPONENT JOURNEY

MEDICAL IMPLANTS

Tre stress on a tup or knee jaint wher g persor |umps
off a chair 1s equal to around 100 tornes per sguare irch
Qur bores, effectively composites, absorb such stresses
regularly and effectively for much of our ifetime

Whan joints fail, they are often replaced with metal alioy
implarts These implants must be incredibly strong,
biocompatible, and able to last the Iifetime of the patient
A combination of heat treatment, hot 1sostatic pressing
ard coating makes this possible

Bre implarts are then
HIPed to eliminate porosity,
improve fatigue life and
enhance the bondirg of
the biocompatible ceoating

BB soiution and ageing
heat treatment 1s used to
strengthen the implart

BODYCOTE COMPONENT JOURNEYS

This is just ore example of how Bodycote brirgs together the
huge wealth of knowledge and expertise from across the Group
to provide the vital engireenrg services our customers need

For mare componert jourreys visit www bodycote.com

. Derotes the parts o7 tre cormoonert ourmey andertaken by Bodveote

gt a2

Cobalt chrormium alloy
billets are investment cast
to form impiant shape
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B castings are thermally
sprayed with a biomedical
coatirg to allow a bond to
form between the implant
ard body tissue, promoting
none growth

End application - joint replacement.
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IN GEAR - A COMPONENT JOURNEY

PINION GEAR

A pinion gear 15 a cntical automotive component used

in wvirtually all transmission units Duning use, a vehicle

places heavy demand on 1ts transmission, requinng a

fast and reliable response to the dnve controls The gears begin lite

as low alloy steel The gears are machined
to shape using a shaving
or hobbing method

The gears require high strength and wear resistance
in arder 1o withstand the stresses appled to each gear
during use Bodycote's heat treatment processes,

in particular Low Praessure Carbunsing (LPC), enable
modern transmissions to deliver high performance
and seamless response, even reducing noise dunng
gear changes

| R gears are guenched using
nitrogen gas to minimrise part
distortion, then terrpered to

-The parts are inspected and
relieve internal stresses

tested tor surface hardness,
core hardness and effectve
case depth

W gears are dimensionally
measured betfore heat
treatment to monitar and
maintain repeatabiity of
distortion The gears are
then heat treated using LPC
to enhance functionality by
adding a ‘case depth’
to provide strength and
rasistance to wear and tear

Bt gears are shot peened 1o add
residual stress - this allows the parts
to withstand more wear and tear
The gears are measured again after
heat treatment to check any distortion
1S5 within Imits

The gears are assembled
into the transmissicn unit

BODYCOTE COMPONENT JOURNEYS

This 15 just one example of how Bodycote brings together the
huge wealth of knowledge and expertise from across the Group
to provide the vital engineering services our customers need

For more component journeys visit www.bodycote.com _ .
End application — automobile.

. Denotes the parts of the comporant journey undertaken by Bodycote

Bodycote plc - - -




Our technologies

Specialist Technologies

A set of differentiated processes giving customers the ability to
produce unique high value-adding products

HIP PF

Hot Isastatic Pressing Services (HIP)

Impact resistance and “atigue properigs are exwremely sensitive to
small amounts of porosity Through the s.multangous applicat on
of heat ana pressure, the Hi2 process eliminates internal porosity,
moroving fatigue strength, tens:le duct ity and fracture toughness

Hot Isostatic Pressing Product Fabrication (HIP PF}

This method combines the AP process w th design and proauction
expertise to create a component from metal powaer The flexibility
of the HIP PF process means that combinations of materals can be
used to give desired properties, enabling metalhic compositions that
are diff.cult or moossible to forge or cast

Specialty Stainless Steel Processes (S5*P)

Steel 15 often chosen for 's inherent comrosion resistance, but often requires
hardening Stancard heat treatrrents will harden the steel, but can negativety
impact the comosion resistance S°F technoiogy uniguely hardens stamless
steei, nicker-based alloys and cobalt-chromaurm alloys \mproving mecharnical
and wear properies wehout advarseiy affecting corrosion resistance

Low Pressure Carburising (LPC}

A case hardening process used to obtan a hardenec surface and
tough core, giv ng increased wear resistance and fatigue Iife, with
minimal r sk of treatment @ storaon _PC 18 a ciean process, carrned
out under vacuum, and 15 an environmentally friendly treatment

Com-I-Dur® {CiD)

A propretary thermocherricar treatrment for the simultaneous
improvernent of corrosion ana wear resistance through the
generation of a nitnde-ox:de combination layer Corrl-Dur® s an
env ronmentalty friendy alternat've to the use of hard chromum,
e ectroless nickel anct othar galvanic coatings

Surface Technology {ST)

ST ncorporates specialised plasma spray, —hgh Yelocity Oxygen
Fuel \HVOF) and thermo-chemically formed coatings to improve
wedr resistance, hardness and duraiity, and 1s ab'e o surface
engneer components designed 1o operate N the most demanding
o industral apcncat ons

Classical Heat Treatment

A group of mature processes which are essenrtial for treatirg all
metal componerts These tightly controlled processes conditior
the matenal properties including both the core propernies and the
surface characteristics

Below are a tew examples of matenal properties obtained by
heat treatment

What 15 11? The abil ty of a matenal to resist deformation,
scratching and ndentation undger force

Why 1s 1t mportant? Improv ng a materia’s hardness through
heat treatmant allows 1t to res st various types of wear

hardness

Wha* s.1t? The at ity of a matenal to absorb energy and
clastically deform wathout fracure

Why 15 1t important? Heat treatment can be used to strengthen
the matenal and help improve 1ts resistance o impact

Toughness

What 15 11? The stress .evei at which component failure occurs
when subjacted 1o repeated stress cycles

Why 15 1t important? Part fallure due to fat gue can have
catastroohic consequences, particulary if the part 15 safety
critical Through heat treatment, 8 material’s fat gue strength 1s
improved

strength

What 15117 The measure of a materal’s abil ty to res st high
temperature detormation

Why s tirrportant? Some metals and arloys must operate

at temperatures close 1o thes melt'ng pont Heat treatment
enables them to cer*orm at higher temperatures with ittle or no
maoverrent

resistance

What s +? The ability of a material to detorm without bresking
Why s it mportart? In order so form or shape a complex
cormponent good ductiity s reguired Heat treatment s used to
sutten the matenial wh oh makes 1t easy to work as part of the
Manu*aLiunng process
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Measuring progress

Return on capital employed

{%}

199

190

2015 2016

19 3

NLI

2013 204

2017

Performance
Return on caprtal employed increased by 2 2 percentage points during the year, from 171%
10 193%

Headline operating profit ircreased by 24 4% from £99 6m to £123 9m. while average
capital employed increased by 10 3% to £642 Bm

Definition

Headiine operating profit as @ percentage of the average of opening and closirg capital
employed as adjusted for certain iters of goodwill writter off

Capital employed 1s defined as net assets adjusted for net casr/{debt)

Headline earnings per share Performance
{pence} Headline earmings per share increased by 12 2 pence (33 0%) during the year, from 370
pence 10 42 Z pence
492 Definition
412 a3 8 195 Headiine earrings per share is defined in note 10 to the financial statements
miy,
2013 201 4‘ 2005 2076 2017
Return on sales Perdformance
(%) Return on sales increased by 14 percertage points dunrg the vear, from 16 6% to 18 0%
Headline operating profit increased by 24 4% from £8% 6m to £123 9m, while revenue
increased by 14 9% from £600 6m to £690 2m
180
173 Definition
g Headline operating profit as a percentage of revenue
2013 zo1a4 zo1s | 208 2017

a
m Bodycote plc




Headline operating cash flow Performance
(Em} Headline operatirg cash fiow for the Group was £1117m 2016 £914m) This was 90%
of headline operating profit (2016 92%)

. 17 Definition
1000 914 Headline operating cash flow stated before cash flow relating to restructuring of £3 7m
M (2016 £76m) and acquisition costs of £nil (2016 £0 6m)
<
- 2
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 o
B
@
Accident frequency Performance

(rumber) Bodycote works tirelessly to reduce workplace acciderts ard 1s committed to providing a

safe environment for everyone who works at or visits our locations The accident frequency
rate has mncreased to 16 ir the year {2016 15) Further details are included in the Corporate
responsibiity and sustainability sectior on page 34

18
J 15 15
Definition
A i Accident frequercy 1s defined as the number of lost time accidents x 200,000 hours

{approximatsly 100 mar years), divided by the total number of employee hours werked

2013 2014 2015 2018 2017

Carbon footprint Performance

{tonne CO,e/Em sales) 0On a normahsed basis, the carbon footprint decreased by 0 3% from 494 8 tonnes per
£m sales to 433 1 tonnes per £m sales Further details are ircluded in the Corporate
responsibility and sustainability section on page 35

5185
5035 30 Definition
a 4948 g4 Carbon foctprint s defined as tonnes of CO, equivalent emissions divided by £m revenue
Ao
CO, equivalent emissions are calculated by taxing electricity and gas usage in kilowatt hours

and multiplying by country specific corversion factors provided by the International Energy
Agency {IEA] Normalised ermissions statistics restate prior year figures using current year
coLrtry specific conversion (IEA) factors and current year average exchange rates

2013 2014 2015 20186 2017




Business review
The ADE Divisions

Efficient
and durable

Honeycomb seals

Haoneycomb, a structure borrowed from nature, provides an excellent strength to
weight ratio when used in manufacturing applications In arcraft engines, honeycomao
seals are eritical to the efficiency of gas flow through the engine, and to providing a
sacrificial wear surface, protecting turpine plades as they resoond to high operational
terperatures This double rofe nerformed oy the honeycomb seal results in better
fuel efficiency and fonger service Iife of turbine plades To join the honeycomo seals.,
a form of metal joining, called brazing, 1s used Bodycote has decades of experience
providing this complex and soecialised service

TorfuAnerirfermat on ancyt ou” services
go ‘o www hodycote com/services




The ADE Divisions ADE revenue by market sector and geography
Bodycote has more than 180 faciities around the world which are £m

organised into customer focused divisiors, the ADE divisions and the
AG| divisions Our ADE customers tend to thirk and operate globally
and our ADE divisions are organised globally as a result

A large number of Bodycote's multinational customers fall within
our ADE divisions and Bodycote intends to continue to leverage
1ts unique markeat pesilion 10 Increase revenues in the aerospace,
defence and erergy sectors We have 63 facilites around the
world including Fot 1sostatic pressing {HIP) and surface technology
facilibes alongside our classical heat treatmert plants

The following review reflects canstant currency growth rates unriess
stated otherwise
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Reverue in 2017 was £273 1m, an increase of 4 7% (8 8% at actual
rates}, including a cortribution of ¢ 8 percentage points to the
growth from new facility investmerts Cral aviation growth was
underpirned by & strong UK performance it was also rotable that
growth In North Amencan civil gviation revenues picked up through

Marxat sector

the year The revenues from onshore ol & gas Ir North America B Acrospace and De'ence 1505
increased sequentially through the year These two factors helped W Energy 470
the ADE divisiors achieve revenue growth of 72% in the second B Automotve e8
Ralf of 2017 against 2 1% in the first half W CeneralIndustral g8
Total 2731
Headhne operating profit’ was £64 2m, an increase of 11% (16%
at actual rates), berefiting from positive operational leverage as
revenues grew Accordirgly, return on sales improved to 23 5% Geography
(2016 22 2%) Statutory operalirg profrt grew to £62 7m (2016 B Western Europe 126 0 i
£541m) W North Amenca 145 7
Net capital expenditure 1n 2007 was £32 1m (2016 £13 9m), B Emerging Markets 14
representing 15 times depreciation In addit:ion to the new mega- Total 273.1 -
HIP acquired for cur European business, our new asrospace faciity W
in Polard cpened in 2017 and we commenced irvestment in a new
UK faciity to support our growing UK civil aviation busiress
Return on capital employed ircreased to 214% (2016 19 7%), E
reflecting the improved profitabilsty and careful management of
the palance sheet X
_ ;%‘;
és,
1 Headline operating profit s reconc: ed to operating prof tin note 2 1o the
fnancial steterrents Bodycote plants do not exclusively supply sersces
ta customers of a grven market sgctor fsee note 2 to the fnancial
statements}
|

e @



Business review
The AGI Divisions

Steering
SUCCESS

Ball studs

Used i virtually every automobile mage, ball studs are located wathin the ball joints
in a vehicle’s steenng system, between the wheels and suspension, allowing rotating
movemeant - simiiar to the way a hurran hip joint works Because of ther function
and position within the vehicle, they must be extremely strong, corrosion resistant
and able to cope with weight and stress Thetr effective operation s cntical to the
safety of the vehicle and, therefore, the driver Bodycote's propristary Corel-Dur®
nrocess ensures the parts achieve the necessary materal properties

For curimes ~forma® or about .r serv ces
¢ ¢ www bodycote com/services




The AGI Divisions

Bodycote Fas more than 180 facilities around the waorld which are
orgarised into cusiomer focused divisions, the ADE divisiors and
the AGl dvisions Our AGI customers include many multinational
businesses which tend to operate on a regionally-focused basis, as
well as numerous medium sized and smaller businesses, and alf of
which are importart to Bodycote Much of the business 1s locally
oriented and the business 1s, therefore, orgarised on a regional basis

Our extensive networ< of more than 120 AGI facilities enables

the busiress to offer the widest range of techrical capability and
securty of supply, while contirLirg to increase the proportior of
technically differentiated services that it offers Bodycote has a
long and successful history of servicing this division’s wide-rarging
customer base

The followirg reviewy reflects constant currency growth rates urless
stated otherwise

Revenue was £4171m, 13 1% ahead of the pnor year 119 3% at
actual rates), Including a contribution of 2 1 percentage poirts to
the growth from investmerts in new faciities and & O percertage
points from the plants acquired 1n 2016

Growth 1n Western Eurcpean revenues urderpinned the daaisiors’
growtk, with double-digit growth In its aLtomotive revenues ard
sold growth It the General irdustnal busiress

Emerging Markels' reverues also grew very strongly and now
represert 13% of Bodyeote's AG) business Mexico and China
both achieved reverue growth above 40%

Headline operatirg profit' was £74 2m (2016 £58 5m), 20% ahead

of the pror penod (27% at actual rates} Beturr on sales expansion
has been a focus for our AGI business over many years now, and at
178% we deliverad return or sales improvemenrt cnce agam (2016

16 7%} Statutory operating profit grew to £712m (2016 £54 9m)

Net capital expenditure was £378m (2016 £374m), representing
10 tmes depreciation We are continuing to irvest in the rapid
growth Emerging Markets, with investmerts in Mesxico, China,
Turkey and Polard contributing the majority of the growth from
new facilities We also made further investmeart in S as the
strong growth In demand for the technology requires us to
continue to add more capacity

Return on capital emploved increased to 178% {2016 15 2%),
reflecting the streng improvement in proftability and is the highast
returr that we have seen since these divisions were created

Head ne operat ng profit 1s reconciled to operat ng robit n note 2 to the
“ingnc a- staterrents Bodycote plants 4o not exclus vely supply services
w0 CUSTAMArs 0F 4 goven marke* sector 'see note 7 to the “inancial
statermants)

AGI revenue by market sector and geography
£fm

Marxel sector

B Aerospace ana De‘ence

H  Energy

B Automotive

& General Industra
Total

Geography

B WMestern Eurcpe

@ North America

B Emergng Markets
Total

101
i
1854
202 4
4171

2889
105 6
527
4171
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Chief Financial Officer’s report

Financial overview

2017 2016

fm fm

Revenue 690.2 800 6
Headline operating profit 1239 99 6
Amortisation of acquired intangible fixed assets {4.5) 145
Operating profit prior to exceptional items 194 951
Acquisition costs - (G 6)
Gperating profit 1134 945
Net finance charge (2.4) {2 8)
Profit before taxation 170 fNg
Taxatior (19.7) (24 9)
Profit for the year 973 670

Group revenue was F690 2m, an increase of 14 9% at actual exchange rates, and 8 8% at constant currency Acquisitions made in 2016
contnibuted 2 9% of the constant currercy growth, with new faciliues contributing a further 15%

Head!ine operating profit for the year increased by 24% to £123 9m (2018 £99 6mi, and return on sales increased to 18 0% (2016

16 6%} Headiine operating profit at constant currency increased by £18 Om, with the five acquired sites in 2018 contributing £3 0m to
the imoroved headline operating profit Price increases more than covered the increase ninput costs Statutory operating profit graw to
£119 4m 12016 £94 5m)

n
Bodycote pic - - - R -



Finance charge
The nat hinance charge was £2 4m compared to £2 6mn 2016,
anatysed as follows

2017 2016
Em £m

Interest receved on bank overdralts
and loans 0.1 _
Net interest payabie' 0.1 02
Financing and bank charges 2.0 21
Pension firance charge 04 03
Total finance charge 25 26
Net finance charge 2.4 26

1 Amoeunts ansing on financial | abilities measured at amortsed Cost

As at 31 December 2017 the Group's £230m Revolvirg Credit
Facility 15 totaily undrawn Having extended the facility duning the
year, It has a rematning life of 4 3 years

Profit before Taxation

2017 2016

£m frn

Headline profit before taxation 1215 970
Amortisation of intangibles {4.5) 4 5)
Acgquisition costs - 06}
Prefit before taxation 117.0 919

Statutory profit before tax increased to £1170m {2016 £919m),
while headlire profit before tax increased 25% to £1215m (2016
£970m)

Tax

The passing of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act in the US in December
2017 resulted in a significant £6 4m net one-off tax gain, as the
Group's US deferred tax habilities were revalued as a result of the
reduction ir the US Federal corporate income tax rate Accordingly,
the Group's tax rate is significantly lower, at 170% The Group's
headline tax rate for the year excludes this gain and 1s, therefore,
somewhat higher at 22 9%

The final iImpact of the charges from the US Tax Cuts ard Jobs Act
are subject to a number of detalled provisiors in the legislatior and
any implemenrtation guidarce 1ssued by the Treasury Department
and the IRS Bodycote wili continue to monitor any developments
ard give due consideration to the impact of any guidance, along
with ongoirg marxet interpretation and assessment on the
accounting mphcations of this Act

Earnings per Share

The improved Group business performance drove basic headhine
earnings per share up to 48 2p {2016 370p}, wrile basic earnings
per share for the year ircreased to 510p (2016 35 2p)

2017 2018

£fm £m

Profit before taxation 1170 919
Taxatior (19.7} (24 9)

Profit for the year 973 670
Basic headlire EPS 49.2p 370p
Basic EPS 51.0p 36 2p

bk = s

Retum on Capital Employed {ROCE}

The return on capitai employed rose in the current year to 19 3%
from 17 1% 1in 2016 This improvement was driver by lhe increase
in the Group's operating proft Moreover, since 2014, the Group
has invested £125m in growth Investment projects, many of which
are not yet Tully mature and are not cortriputing as fully to Group
returrs as they will once they have all reached finarcial maturity
The Group continues to exert strorg financial discipline in the area
of capital expenditure as well as i the profit and loss account,
applying stnngert firarcial returns hurdles to all of its projects

[
(-4
Cash Flow g
2017 2016 2
£m m g
[
Headline operating profit 123.9 99 6 a
Add back non-cash items
Depreciation ard amaortisation 59.8 552
Impairment of fixed assets 0.4 51
Share-based payments 7.8 [03)
Profit on disposal of property,
plart and equipment (0.7) {4 5)
Headline EBITDA? 191.2 1559
Net capital expenditure (74.8) (B3 1)
Net wor«ing capital movement 4.7) 14)
Headlne operating cash flow 111.7 914
Cash cost of restructunng {3.7) (78)
Acquisition costs - 0 86)
Operating cash flow 108.0 832
Interest paid (2.1} 23
Taxation (22.9) (20 4)
Free cash flow 83.0 805
Acquisition spend (14.2) (23 7)
Disposals - 22
Dividends {30.6) 48 1}
Other 0.3 02
Increasef{decrease} in ret cash 385 {8 9)
Opening net cash 1.1 123
Loans acquired with subsidianes - {2 3)
Increasef{decrease) in ret cash 38.5 {8 9)
Closing net cash 39.6 1

2 Farnings before interest, tax, Gepreciation, amorisation, share-based
payrrents, irpairment of fixed assets, profit or logs on d:sposal of
prooerty, plant and equipment and exceotional items

The Group’s headline operating cash flow increased by 22% to

£111 7m, mainly reflecting the improvernent ir the operating profit
Statutory net cash from operatirg activities increased 27% to

£153 9m Headlire operating cash conversion was 90% as the Group
continues to demonstrate an impressive record of converting profit
inte cash Consequently, free cash flow ircreased 37% to £83 Om
and the Group ended 2017 with £39 6m of net cash (2016 £1 1m}



Chief Financial Officer’s report continued

Capital Expenditure

Net capital expenditure {capital expenditure less proceeds from
asset disposals) for the year was £74 8 (2016 £63 1) The
multiple of net capital expenditure to depreciation was 13 times
{2016 11 times) The Group continues to Nvest In mamntaiming 1ts
assets to a high guahty More importantly with regard to future
revenue growth of the business, half of the capital expenditure was
on growth investment projects, including investrment In Incremental
capacity for Specialist Techrologies {notably HIP Services, S3P

and LPC}, expenditure on several new facilities, ard investments

In capacity and technclogy expansion in a number of existing
locations

Acquisitions

In December, Bodycote completed the acquisition of the HIF assets
and vacuum furnaces from Doncasters Group Limited's UK faciity
for consideration of £8 7m

Deferred consideration payments from acquisitions completed
In 216 Increased the cash outflow op acquisiions 1o £14 2mn
the year

Dividend and Dividend Policy

The Group aims 1o pay ordinary dividends so that dividerd

cover will be at or above 2 0 times earnings The Board may

also recommend payment of a supplemental distribution o
shareholders The amount of any supplemental distnbutior will
be assessed In light of the cash position of the Group, along with
funding requirements for both organic growth and acquisitions

The Board has recommended a final ordinary dividend of 12 1p
(2016 10 8p), bringing the total ordimary dividend to 174p (2016

15 8p) In addition, in hght of the Group's strong balarce sheet and
yvear end net cash position, the Board has recormmmended a special
divigend of 25 Cp (2016 nil} If approved by shareholders. both
the final ordinary dividend and tre special dividend will be paid

or 1 June 2018 to shareholders on the register at the close of
business on 20 April 2018

Borrowing Facilities

The Group s financed by a mix of cash flows from operations,
short-term barrowings. lang-term loans and finance leases The
Group's funding policy aims to ersure continuity of finarce at
reasonabie cost, based on committed and uncommitted faciities
and loans from several sources over a spread of matuntes

The Group continues to have access to committed facilities

at competitive rates and therefore currently deems this 1o be
the most effective means of long-term funding.

The totat undrawn commutted facility funding availlable to the

Group at 31 December 2017 was £230 0m (2016 £225m) At
31 December 2017, the Group had the following drawings and
headroom under the commutted tacibity

Facility Facility
Facitity utilisation  headroom
Facihty Expiry date £m £m £m
£230m
Revolving
Credit 3 April 2022 2300 - 230.0

Post balance sheet events
There are no post balance sheet events that require disclosure
In the financial statements

]
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Alternative performance measures

Bodycote uses alternative performance measures suck as headline
operating profit, headhre earmings per share, headine profit before
taxation, headline operating cash fiow and free cash flow, together
with current measures restated at constant currercy, to allow the
users of the firancial staternents to gain a clearer urderstanding of
the underlying performance of the business. allowing the impact of
resiructuring and recrganisation activities and acquisition costs 1o
pe identthed separately

Going concern

In determining the basis of preparation for the Annual Report and
the Group’s viability statemert, the directors have considered the
Group's business activities, together with the factors hkely 1o affect
its future development, performance and position This includes

an overview of the Graup's finanaial position, cash flows, liquidity
posrtion and borrowing facilities

The Group meets its working capital requirements through a
combination of cash resources, committed and uncommitied
facihties, and overdrafts The overdrafts and uncommitted facilities
are repayable on demand but the committed facibties are due

for renewal as set out below There s suffiment beadroom in the
committed facility covenants to assumne that these facilities can be
operated as contracted for the foreseeable future

The committed facihties as at 31 December 2017 were as follows
m £230m Revolving Credit Facility maturing 3 Apnl 2022

The December 2017 weighted average Iife of the commitied
facilities was 4 3 years

The Group's forecasts and projections, taking account of reasonable
potential changes in trading performance, show that the Group
should be able to operate within the level of Hs current committed
facilities

The directors have reviewed forecasts and projections for the
Group's mar<ets and services, assessirg the committed facility and
financial covenant headroom, central iquidity and the Group's ability
to access further funding The directors also reviewed downside
sensitivity analysis over the forecast penod, thereby taking into
account the uncertainties ansing from the current economic
environment Following this review, the directors have formed a
judgemert, at the time of approving the financial statements, that
there 1s a reascnable expectation that the Group has adeqguate
resources to continue N operancnal existence for the foresesable
future For this reason the directors continue to adopt the going
concern basis in prepanng the finaroial staterments

D.Yates
Crief Financial Officer
6 March 2018



Principal risks and uncertainties

The Board 15 respensible for the Group's nsk management and determining the Group's nsk appetite The review of finarcial nsk has beer
delegated to the Audit Commuittee The Group's risk framewaork, using a vanety of top-down ard bottom-up approaches, 1s used to idertfy,
manitor and report nsks Tre nsks are aggregated first at a divisional level and then at Group level For each business cntical sk, assurance
activiles have been documented in nsk assurance maps and these are used to direct assurance activity including that of Internal Audit

The Group Head of Risk 1s supported by the Risk and SHE Committee, which met three times dunng 2017 attended by senior managers
from each of the operating divisions and the Group Head of SHE The Risk and SHE Committee assists the Group Head of Risk in identifying
critical nsks, embedding nsk management and facilitatirg the implementatior of ns< management measures throughout the Group The
Group Head of Risk provides an update to the Audit Committee on the Group's nsk activities at every meeting and a comprehensive review
of the Group's business cntical nisks 1s presented to the Board in Jure and December The Beard concluded that an ongoing process of
identfying, evaluating and managing the Group's significant nsxs has been in place throughout 2017 and a robust assessment of the
prircipal nsks had been undertaken

The table below Fighhghts the major nis<s that may affect Bodycote's ability to deliver the strategy, as laid out on page 11 These nisks have
been reviewed throughout the year and two new risks have been added since 2016, Environment ard Capital Projects The inclusion of
the Environment risk reflects increasing regulatory intervertion and a level of uncertanty in a number of jJunsdictions in which Bodycote
operates The inclusion of the Capital Projects nisk reflects the Group’s continued investments of significant amounts of capital to grow the
business and these projects can be highly complex and rely upon factors outside the Group's cortrot

In deterrmiming the principal nisks the Board once again considered the result of the 2018 referendum on the future of the UK's membership
ir the European Uriorr The Board does not expect this wall have a matenal impact on Bodycote as customers are served locally and cross-

border trading 15 mirimal and this therefore remams as an element ot the existing market nsk

Detarls of the Group's firarcial nsks (funding, foreigr exchange, interest rate and counterparty rnisks), which are managed by the Group's
treasury function, are provided In note 18 to the financial statements The mitigating activities described below will help to reduce the
impact or likelihood of the major nsk cccurning, although the Board recogrises that it will not be possible to eliminate these risks entirely
The Board recogrises that there could be nsks that may be unknown or that may be judged to be insignificant at present but may later
prove to be signficart For this reasor busiress contiruity plans have been prepared for all plarts to provide for situatiors where specific
risks have the potertial to severely impact the business

Relevance to

Risk description Impact Mitigation and control strategy
Market and customer risks
Markets Stable

Bodycote operates in 23 countries

and a substartial amount of sales are |

closely inked to the econoric cycle
and the general macroeconormic
environmert The result of the
referendum on the future of the UK's
membership In the European Unton
1s not expected to have a matenal
transactional impact as customers
are typically served locally and
cross-border trading 1s rminimal

The hugh proportion of short-term
fixed costs in the business means
that a drop in zales will bave &
sigrificant impact on profitability
Sales in the markets served by the
AG| businesses (69% of the total
Group) tend to develop ir ling with
or ahead of the ecoromic cycle,
whereas aerospace ard defence

+ sales (23%) tend to track behind the

econormic cycle Sales to the erergy
sectors (8%]) are closely inked to
anergy prices, which in turn can be
affected by general economic activity

® Bodycote's preserce n 23
countrnes across a wide variety
of end-marxets acts as & natural
hedge to neutralise localised
ecoromic volatiity

m There s some short-term
flexibility in the costbase e g
by ensunng that a proportion of
the workforce 1s employed on
temporary cerracts

m Changes In customer demand or
a local or a Group-wide level are
resporded to quickly

Loss of key customers

Bodycote benefits from many
lorg-term relatiorships with key
customers and the damage to,

or loss of, any of these relatiorships
would be detrrmental 1o the Croup

Stable

The loss of a key custemer could
adversely affect the Group's financtal
results and the viability of one or

+ more of Bodycote's facilities

m There s no significant customer
dependercy, with the Group’s top
ten customers accounting for less
than 17% of sales and the balance
made up by many thousards of
customers

m There s a contirued focus
on ¢ustomer service and
qualty processes to mamntair
excellent relationships with
major customers Key account
managemert s in place
and customer satisfactior 1s
monitored
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Risk description

Impact

Mitigation and control

Relevance to
strategy

Market and customer risks continued

Competitor action

The entry of competitors into one
or more of the Group's Specialist
Technologies

Stable

The erosion of market skare resulting
in {oss of revenue and profit

m The close controt of proprietary
<rowledge

® Rapid increase Ir the scale of tre
Group’s offerngs to mairtain the
pasition as supplier of choice

Corporate and community risks

Safety and health

The nature of Bodycote's activities
presents safety ard health nsks

Stable

Bodycote 1s committed to providing

a safe wor< environmert far its
employees bt Bodycote's operations,
i rot properly ranaged, couid have

a significart impact on irdividual
employees Furthermore, poor safety
and health practices could lead to
disruption of business, firancial
penalties ard loss of reputatior

m Group-wide health and satety
policies set by the Group Chief
Executive

m OHSAS 18001 ard 1SO 14001
compliart SHE management
systermns being used by Group
Head of Safety, Heaith and
Environment with support of
drsisional safety, heaith and
environmental teams

= Programme in place to focus
on reduction of Incidents which
could have a high impact

m Safety compiarce audits at all
plarts at least every two years

m Oversight of safety and health

framework provided by the Group
Risk ard SHE Committes

Environment

Actual or potential environmental
contamination colid lead to health
risks, disruption of busiress, financial
costs and loss of reputation

Increasing

Bodycote 1s committed to providing
the hughest level of protectior to
the environment Environmental
regulators in many junsdictions

in which Bodycote operate can
impese obligations on Bodycote to
vestigate poternial contamimation
and remedate where reguired

® Environmental procedures and
measLures ir place conforming to
1SO 14001 (2017 87% of plants)

» Environmental due diligence of
businesses for acquisition

s Remediation of contaminated
sites or addiional emissior
abaterment as required by local
legrslation

a Bodvcote pic




Relevance to

Risk description Impact Mitigation and control strategy
Operational risks
Service guality Increasing

The Bodycote brand 1s relant on the
repeatable delivery of parts to agreed
specification to an agreed time

Detenoration in quakty or service
levels can cause serious long-term
damage to Bodycote's reputatior
with financial consequences such as
the !oss of a customer and the cost
of darmages or liigation Work that

15 released into use which s rotin
compliarce with specification could
anse as a result of systerm or human
failure

The Automotive [SO technical
specification 16949 has recently
undergone major revision and 1$
being replaced by IATF 16348 (IATF
being the International Automotive
Task Force} The rew standard
requires additional work, for example
additional gqualty inspections

B Bodycote has stringent guahity
systermns in place managed by
gualified staff

m Qualty systems and processes
operated at plart level witk
oversight by divisioral quahity
teams

m Where necessary, plants maintan
industry relevant accreditations,
sugh as 1ISO 9001, Nadcap and
IATF 16949

& Al plants subjected to irternal

and external quality a.dits and
inspections at least once a year
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Major disruption at a facility

Bodycote's business processes

are inherently nsky and there 1s a
possibility that a major fire such

as that suffered in 2016 at the
Huntington Park facility {USA} or
utility outage could lead to closure

of a facility’s operation Ir addition

a number of sites are exposed to
natural hazards, such as earthquakes,
flooding ard storms

Stable

Any significant incident at a site
could result in the service to
Bodycote's customers from the
affected site being disrupted

m Bodycote has a global network
of 187 facilities These facilities
create a framework to provide
back-up capability for affected
facilities

m Business continuity plans are
in place for all plants These are
updated and tested annually This
process Fas been subject to a
Board nsk deep dive in 2017

m Indeperdent irsurer iInspections
to assess hazard and business
irterruption nsks

® Insurance cover, including
business interruption cover

m  Scheduled equipment
maintenarce and inspections

1

Capital projects

Tre Group invests capital in
developirg existing plants as well as
irto Greenfield developments and
acquisitions

Increasing

Capital projects can be highly
complex and rely on factors outside
of the Group’s control This may
cause projects to be delvered late
or at a higher cost thar forecast
Market conditions may also charge
ma<ing a project less profitable than
initially projected

® Trere s a well established capital
Irvestment approval process
that apphes to all major capital
projects

m  Project Management frameworks
are in place {c deliver projects on
time and on cost

m Al major projects are subject to
post implemertation reviews

m  Capital project risk will be subyect
to Internai Audit review 10 2018




Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Risk description Impact Mitigation and control
Operational risks continued
Information Technology Stable

The efficient operation of the
Group rehies upor the contirued
development ard operation

of its IT systems Bodycote is
currently undergoing a Group wide
implementation of an ERP system

Farlure to protect the Group's 17
systems from cyber threats, or 10
maintain and upgrade the Group's
ERF system, could resultir
significart disruptior and
expense to the business

= Froject approval and progress
slubject to regular Executive
Committee and Board review

m Project teams made up of
skilled subject matter experts
supplemented with third party
advisers

m Best practice project maragement
processes Ir place with assurance
provided by third parties

m Defined drsaster recovery planning
and data backup procedures

Regulatory risks

Reguiatory and fegislative
compliance

The global nature of Bodycote's
operations means that the Group
has to comply with a wide range

of local and intarnational legisiative
reguiremenrts, ncluching ant-bnbery
and anti-competitior legislatior,
taxatior legisiation, employment
laww and impaort and export controls

Stable

Failure to comply with legislation
could lead to substartial financial
penaltues, disruption to business,
diversion ¢f managerment time,
personal and corporate hability and
loss of reputation

m Business processes are supported
by HR policies and the Group
Code of Conduct alorgside training
ard awareress programmes

m The "Open Door Ling” whistle-
blower facility which 1s managed
by a third party

m Engagement of local specialists
te support Bodycote at local,
dwisional ard Group level

m Regular audit of the effectiveness
of implemented procedures

=
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Viability statement

In prepaning this statement of viability, the directors have considered the prospects of the Group over the three year pericd immediately
following the 2017 financial year This longer term assessment process supports the Board's statements on both viability, as set out
below, and going concern (on page 24} A three year peniod was deterrmined as it 1s a reasonable penod over which the busiress could
be restructurad in the event that any material changes to demand for the Group's services transpired As a result, the Board determined
that & peniod of longer than three years would not be meaningful for the purpose of concluding on fonger term wiabihity

The forecast used considers metrics which enable assessment of the Group’s key performance indicators (including return on capital
ermployed, headline earnings per share and headline operating cash flow) i addition to ret debt, iquidity and financing requirerments

In corducting the review of the Group's prospects the directors assessed the three year plan alongside the Group's current pasition, the
Group's strategy ard the principal risks facing the Group {all of which are detalled in the Strategic Report on pages 3 to 35} This assessment
considered the iImpact of the principal risks on the business model ard or future performance, liguidity and solvency ard was riindful

ot the Iimited forward wvisibility thal the Group has as 1t carmes no order backlog The directors’ viability assessment included a review of

the sensitvity analysis performed on the three year plan, whereby the principal nsks were applied to the plan in a number of diverging
scenarios The developed sceranos were desigred to be plausitle, vet severe Examples of scenanos reviewed were
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m A decrease in forecast revenue of similar magnitude to the largest yearon-year decrease suffered in the last ter years
® A 10% decrease i revenue, debtor days and sterling strengthenirg to reflect ar economic downturn

In ma<irg this viability statement the directors considered the mitigating actions that are taken by the Group in the evert that the pnincipal
nsks of the company become realised The directors also toox into consideration the Group's financial position at 31 December 2017, watk
net cash of £40m, avallable comrmitted facility headroom of £230m and a history of strong cash gereration

The directors have assessed the viability of the Group ard, based or the procedures outhned above in additior to activities undertaken
by tre Board in its normal course of busiress, confirm that they have a reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to continue
in operaten and meet 1ts habilities as they fall due over the period to 31 Becember 2020



Corporate responsibility and sustainability

As a Group, Bodycote is committed to
acting responsibly as a good corporate
citizen, to reducing the environmental
impact of the Group’s activities and to
providing our employees with a safe
working environment.

m Bodycote ple




Bodycote's stakeholder model shows how its interactions on various
levels contribute towards socioeconomic growth and development. These
exchanges, based on mutually beneficial relationships, provide the basis
for the Group’s growth and sustainability, which in return provides benefits
to employees, investors, suppliers, customers, the public sector and wider
society.
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Investors / Funders
Capital s rewarded
through div'derds and

share price
Capital Return on
Employees Funds Investment

Customers
QOur services are proviced
to the automnotive,

5 600 employess’
knowledge expertise and
skill are a major part of the asrcspace, defence,
Group's intangible value energy and general
£283 8m was paid oul as Productvity ‘ndustria Industries

remuneration

Remuneration Bodycote:
Provides thermal processing
services that improve material
preperties such as strength,
durability and corrosion resistance,
which inturm . ..

M Improves the fifetime and
Products performance of products

M Supports husinesses and
Suppliers Payment protects lives
Supplers profit from the
locaton of the Group In
locat communities and

from tre Group's need for Bodycote generates wealth
e St suolY for society and contributes
10 sociceconomic
tevelopment through its
sustainable business
practices, investments
and employment.

Public Sector

Tax payments tund services
avalable to the punlic In total
employer related social taxes,

net VAT, corporate and

other transnatioral laxes

amount to £133 9m
for the year



Corporate responsibility and sustainability continued

o
Accident frequency’ =
19

17 157 15 16

2013 2014 2015 2018 2017

Carbon footprint® )
{tanre CO,e/fm sales normalised?)

5180

503 5 503 0 4948

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

4931

Water consumption
{thousand m¥f£m sales normabsed)

139 121 128 140

2013 2014 2015 2016 2007

134

Chlorinated solvents
(kg/fm sales normalised)

1206
95 8 1011 1008 92 8

e

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

ISO 14001 accredited facilities
(%)

N

a5 87 ﬁ B7
M M | l

2013 2014 2015 20186 2017

1 Accident frequency 1s defined as the number of lost time accidents x
200,000 hours {aoproximately 100 man years), dvded oy the total
number of employes hours workeg

2 NMote the rate for 2015 has increased from 14, as previously reperted
tast year, to 15, aue to restatec data from one site

3 CO,e s carbon dioxide egurvalent, which represents the CO, release
dug to our ensrgy usage

4 Normahsed statistics restate prior year figures us.ng current year [EA
carbon conversion factors and current year average exchange rates
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QOur approach

Bodycote's objective 1s to create superior shareholder returrs
through the provision of selected thermal processing services that
are highly valued by our customers We aim to achieve this in a safe
working ervirornment, while cartinually seeking to rmimimise the
impact on the environment

Bodycote 15 dedicated to improving the management of corporate
responsibility issues and 1s 1implemsenting pohicres and intiatves to
achieve this goal The future success and growth of the Group 1s
irtrinsically inked to our ability to ensure the Group's operations
are sustainable and that we can nurture and develop our talent

Our people

The strength of the Group pnmarily rests in its pecple ard one of the
key challenges for management is to ersure availability of appropriately
quahfied people 10 support s continued growth Bodycote 1s forturate
to have a competent and committed international team that s weil-
respected in technical and business circies

Bodycote invests in the trainirg and development of its people both
at local and Group level At alocal level the Group 1s comrutted

to providing the approprate skills and techmcal traming which will
aliow its employees to operate effectively and safely in their roles
and deliver excellent customer service At Group level a number

of inmatives are currently being rolied out 1o drive excellence in
managemenrt

A tool to develop further understanding and skill in the area of
nerformarce management 1s in place and 1s being used globally
through the management population Through communication of
clear messages coupled with skills development, the orgarisatior
aims to raise the capability of 1ts managemert population n
driving performance This inimiative 1s backed by a performance
management system which supports the process

Bodycote's employment policies are non-discnimiratory, complying
with all current legislation to engender equal opporturity irrespective
of age, race, gender, sthnic ongin, nabiorality, religien, health,
disability, maritat status, sexual prefererce, politcal or philoscphical
opinions or trade unior membership Harassment 1s not tolerated

Female reprasentation on our Board duning 2017 was 17% (2016

17 %) and at manager levet it 15 26% 12016 25%) Fernales represent
19% (2016 18%) of our total workforce As of 1 January 2018 we
have increased female representation on the Board to 43%

Male Female  Total Male female  Total
Directors 5 1 6 83% 17% 100%
Managers 52 18 70 TA%, 26%  100%
Other staff 4,545 1,070 5,615 81% 19% 100%
4,602 1,083 5,691 81% 19% 100%




It 15 not just iImportant what we do but how we do 1t ard how

we behave in our Company How we operate as a Group and the
behaviours that we expect from all our employees are expressed in
our Core Velues Our values represent Bodycole and its people and
our commitrment to the Company and the business

Our Core Values are straightforward and are as follows

Honesty and Transparency

We are honest and act with integrity Trust stems from horesty
and trust 1s at the heart of everythirg we engage 1in our customers
trust LS to deiver what we say we will, our colieagues trust us

1o actin therr best interests ard our suppliers trust us to corduct
business according to agreed terms This Is not something we take
for granted Bodycote lives by a culture of honest and transparent
behaviour, which 1s at the ¢ore of all our business relationships

Respect and Responsibility

We manage our business with respect, applying an ethicai
approach to our dealings with those we interact with

We respact our colleagues, who are all of the employees of
Bodycote Part of our respect for our colleagues 1s our commitment
to safe and responsible behawviour and our furdamental beief that
no-one should come to any harm at work We show respect for
our customers, our supphiers and our competitars Ve respect

the commurities arcurd us ard behave as responsible corporate
citizens by beng comphart witk the laws and regulations of the
countries in which we do business and by ersunirg that our effect
on the envirorment 1s minimal We believe in taking ownership for,
and being mindful of the impact of, our actions

Creating Value

Creatirg value 1s the very esserce of our business ard needs

to be the focus of our endeavours We create value for our
customers, our employees and our shareholders The realities

are harsh If we do rot create value for our customers then we
have no reason for existence If we do rot create value for our
employees there will be no-one to create value for our customers
Our shareholders rightfully require that we ultimately create value
for them as they are the owners of the business

Human rights

Bodyeote's humar nghts policy 18 consistent with the Universal
Deciaration of Human Rights and the UN Global Compact’s ten
principles

We prohitat forced. compulsory and underage labour and any
form of discnmination based on age, race, gender, ethnic ongin,
nationality, rehgion, health, disability, marital status, sexual
preference, political or philoscphical opiriors ar trade urion
membership Appropriate mechanisms are in place to minimise
the potential for any cortraventior of these rules

By publicly posting our human rnights policy on www bodycote com,
stakeholders worldwide can alert us to potential breachss of the
policy Our internal systems also support cormpliance with our policy
ard we have a robust Open Door Line for employees to report
alleged viclations of law ard/or our policies on a confidential basis
and in their own language In the junsdictions in which we employ a
majority of our employees, there are laws apglicable to many of the
areas dealt with ir our humear rights policy

Parg i, o &

The Modem Slavery Act

Bodycote ple has conducted a nsk assessment on our supply
chain using the UK Goverrment's published guidance entitied
“Transparency in Supply Chains” Suppliers, in those countnss
dentfied In Walk Free Foundation's 2016 Global Slavery index as
peng the most vulnerable to human nights issues 1n the supply
chain, have been identified for further review and audit

We have a Code of Conduct which sets out our policy on
compliance with legisiation, child labour, anti-slavery and human
trafficking, ard conditiors of employment, health and safety and
the ervirorment

The Ant-Slavery and Human Trafficking statemert was reviewed by
our Board of Directors in September 2017 and was published on our
website The staterment will be reviewed on an arnual basis
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Customers and suppliers »
Bodycote has no significant supplers who are wholly dependent

upon the Group's business ard Fas no sigrificant suppliers on

which the Group is dependart upon for a substartal part of its

business Supphers are paid in ing with contractual and legal

obligations

We endeavolr to respond qulickly to changirg customer dermand,
to 1dentify emerging needs and to improve service avaitabihty and
guality We stay close to our current and potertial customers,
bLiding long-term relationsrips

Community

Bodycote seaxs to play a positive role e the focal communities
in which it operates by providing employrment opportunities,
and building goodwill and a reputation as a goed neighbour and
employer

Responsible business ethics

All Bodycote persorrel are expected to apply a high ethical standard,
consistent with an international UK-isted company Directors and
employees are expected 1o ensure that therr personal interests

do not at any time conflict with those of Bodycote Sharcholder
employees are advised of, and comply with, the share dealing code

Bodycote has systems in place that are designed to ensure
comphance with all applicable laws and regulations, and conformity
with ali relevant codes of business practice Furtbermore, Bodycote
does rot maxe political donatiors

With regard to competitior, Bodycote aims to win businegss in a
dfferentiated high-value manner The Group does rot employ unfarr
trading methods and it competes vigorously but fairly within the
requirements of applicabie laws Empioyees are probibited from
either giving or receiving any inducements

Our Open Door Policy has beean translated into all languages used
throughout the Group The policy aliows employees to report therr
concerr confidentially, verbally or in writing, to an independent
third party provider, ensunrg anonyrity Reports are transcribed
and sent to tte Greup Head of Risk, who then deterrines the
appropriate steps for the matter to be addressed

Oniine traiming courses in respect of Ant-Bribery and Competition
Law have beer desigred and translated into the mayor languages
used throwghout the Group All relevart employees bave completed
the interactive courses



Corporate responsibility and sustainability continued

Operational SHE performance

Bodycote is commutted ta cortinual improvement - our safety,
health and environmental performance (SHE) We are commuitted 1o
complying with all local legislative requirements as a mimmum ard
establishing consistent and rohust best practices at all of our sites
1o deliver consistently hugh performance across all aspects of SHE
manragement

Safety and health

The nature of the Group’s operations 1s such that employees are
inevitably exposed to hazards ir the workplace Bodycote ams to
manage these hazards and thereby mimimise f15«s to employees
through the deployment of robust safety control systems and
procedures, and seeks to establish these at all sites

Bodycote’s online incident reporting and SHE management tool has
been operatioral since 2013 This has enabled more consistent and
thorough reporting of workplace injunies, near rmisses and unsafe
condimions Following the implementation, there was an increase

in the Jost time injury rate frequency (LTi rate) in 2013 as sites
were better able te receord and report incidents Ir 2017 the LTI rate
increased from 15 10 16 Bodycote centinues to devote significant
resource and management focus on safety with the number of
"Opportunities for Improvement” ([OFIs) reported by employess
having increased by 478% across the Group This improvement
demonstrates stronger engagement of employees in proactively
raisirg safety 1ssues and rectifying potential safety 1ssues before
they might fead to ar injury Accidents, though regrettable and
unacceptable, represent learmng opportunities, This 1s the reason
that accurate reporting 1s an essential part of building a robust
safety management system

Accident frequency (lost time injury rate)

Accident fregquency s defined as the number of lost time accidents
x 200,000 hours {approximately 100 man years), divided by the total
rumber of employee hours worked

In additron to encouraging the reporting of work related injures,
Bodycote has sought to encourage the reporting of near misses
and unsafe canditions This has worked well since the introduction
of the new global incident reporting systemn 2013 and a commoen
near miss/unsafe congition reporting system at every operational
site This much improved reporting of incidents permits us to
address hazards before injury occurs As our database continues
10 develop we will be able 1o analyse and pricntise our safety
action programmes more effectively The most frequent cause of

Greenhouse gas emissions

lost time mncidents 1s related 1o marual handiing of parts and Iifting
operatiors and has a number of underlying caLses Tris is currently
the supject of a Group wide review ard wilt be a focus for risk
reduction activities over the next few years

All reportable Inciderts and lost tme njures are reviewed dunrg
exacltive managemenrt meetings and Board meetings In addition,
the executive management team reviews inaidents which digd not
result imnjury but were considered to have been serious or to
have had g hugh potental smpact All serious inaidents ard high
potential iIncidents are also reviewed by the Group SHE Committee
ard are cascaded within the business as appropnate to ensure that
preventive actions are taker This systerm was further strengthened
in 2015 with actions being tracked via the online incident
management system

Environment

A proactive approach to improvirg energy efficiency means that
Bodycote bas implemertad a vanety of systems to reduce water
ard gas consumptior, and to re-use heat energy The orgoing effort
1o lessen the iImpact or the environmant has resulted in Bodycote
seexing iSO 14001 accreditation at alt of its facilities

At every stage where Bodycote 1s involved in the manufacturing
cycle, our aperational aim s to reduce the overall impact on the
environment, rot just in our own operatiors, but also those of
our customers Baodycote operates modern, efficient equipment,
which 18 operated around the clock so as to optimige treatment
processing cycles Without Bodycote, many companies would be
using older in-house technology and running therr equipment at
raduced capacity, both of which drain energy resocurces Working
with Bodycote enables our cuslomers to commit more easily to
carbon reduction imtiatives

Bodycote also reduces the carbon footprint of our customers’
activities by increasirg the lifespan of thewr products, by improving
metallurgical properties and by erharcing corrosion resistarce

For example, surface treatment technology 1s widely used in the
reclamation of damaged and worn compenenrts, offering a cost-
effective and energy-efficient alternative to the need to manufacture
new replacement parts The treated parts often last up to twenty
times longer than the onginal

Whilst thermal processing I1s an erergy-intensive business, tisa
vital part of the manufactuning suppfy chain and its use saves the
energy It consumes many imes over

2017 2016 2016 (normalisedt)
CO.e Intensity CO.e Intensity CQ,e Intersity
emissions ratiott emissiors ratio™ emIssions ratic™
{ktCO.e)  (tCO.e/£m) (xtCO.8l (tCO,e/fm) ktCO,e) {tCQ,e/fm)
Scope 1 150.3 2179 1375 2291 1377 2185
Scope 2 189.8 275.2 1840 306 5 174 1 2763
Statutory total* 340.1 493.1 3215 535 6 318 494 8§

* Statutory carbon reparting disclosures reguired by Companies Act 2006

' Normalised statisics restate prior year ©missions using current year IEA carbon corwversion factors and current year average exchange rates

' Emissions oer £m of urmnaver
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Scope 1 emissiors are direct emissions resulting from fuel

usage and the operation of facilities Scope 2 emissions are indirect
energy emissions resulting from purchased electrieity, heat, steam
or cooling for own use

The financial control consohdation apgroach has been used to
report the above data This method aligns witk the reporting

scope in the financial statements The Group collects electricity

ard natural gas usage information frorm each facility on a morthly
basis The Group then applies the Internatonal Energy Agency {IEA)
publisked ratioral carbon conversion factors to calculate the total
tonnage of CO,e preduced Group operatioral maragement actively
monitors their montrly CQ,e emissiens reported and the Group’s
Executive Committee reviews the tevel of CO,e emissions on a
rmonthly basis

All entittes and facilites urder financial contreol are ircluded within
the disclosure Emissions less than 1% of the Group's total CO,e
relating to fugitive emissions and owned vehicles are not signficant
and are excluded As such there are ro significant omissions from
this disclosure

IS0 14001 aceredited facilities

Reducing the environmental impact of the Group’s activities 1s taken
very sernously Compliance with the requirernerts of ISC 14001 heips
to miriruse the nsk of adverse ervirormental effects at Bodycote's
sites At the end of 2017 87% of our operatirg facifities had achieved
1ISO 14001 accreditation {2018 83%) The shight reduction s due to
the closure of a number of existing certified sites ard the acguisition
ard construction of new sites whick have yet to attain ISO 14001
Operational plants which have rot yet received accreditation 1o the
stardard are working towards 1t

Carbon footprint and water consumption
The absolute energy usage increased by 5 8% At constant
exchange rates, it iIncreased by B 1%

The total CO,e erissions per £m sales in 2017 were 493 1Te (2016
as previously reported 535 6 Te, normalsedt 484 8 Te)

The Group's total CO,e emission data is based or Scope 1 and
Scope 2 ermissions, as defined by the UK Government's DEFRA,
and data relating to this has beer calculated to include country-
specific electricity conversion factors In previous years this has
been supphed by DEFRA directly However, as of Jaruary 2017
DEFRA no longer supplies these conversion factors for non-UK
companies This has now been sourced by the Group directly from
the International Enargy Agercy !IEA) There are some significant
differences ir these corversion factors As a result all previous
years bave row been restated using IEA conversion factors to
ersure that yearon-year Comparisons are corsistent

On a normahsedt basis, water usage per £m sales decreased by
4 3% On a norn-normalised basis, water usage per £m showed a
decrease of 91%

In 2015 our EU based operatioral sites reviewed their gperations
to ensure compliance with the Energy Efficiency Directive 2012/27/
EU This Directive i1s trarsposed irto local legislatior and requires
3ites to moritor their erergy usage and assess energy reduction
opportunities which are in addition to the cngoing energy saving
activities on sites One mechanism for ensunng compliance s

for sites to become certified to SO 50001 Energy Managemert
Systems Standard This enables sites to measure energy usage
consistently and target the most effective ways of reducing energy
Lsage Our sites in Germany, Austna, Denmark and the Netherlands
are largely already certified and working on further energy
managermenrt prograrmmes

* Mormalisod 5:a15°1CS resiate prior year em ss1ons using current year 1IEA
cdrbon convers on tactors and curren® year average exchange rates

Bodycote uses established systems to develop beslt practice
at specific sites and across the wider Group Examples of 2017
projects undertaker across Bodycole sites are discussed below

The continued replacement ot traditioral highting with LED for
environmental and improved safety has resulted in further CO,
reductions OQur sites at Sprockhovel, Ctterfing, Esslingen, Korntal,
Wehingen, Gothenburg ard Warsaw will benefit from projected
total savings of 192 4Te CO, annually

At the Ludenscheid plant the second phase of a heat recovery
project will save a further 17167e CQ, each year ir addition to the
69 1Te from phase 1 At Langenfeld 133 6Te CO, savings will be
achieved from new furpace insulation
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A news heat excharge system in Gothenburg for both cooling water
ard process ventlation has resulted in 10 8Te CO, savings and
means that no additional energy s required to heat the production
area ard the main offices

Meanwhile n Denmark our Ejby plart will reduce CO, emissions
by 60 3Te through the new arr coolers These replace evaporative
water cooling towers ard, in addition to the erergy savirgs,
elminate the potertial nsk of Legionella and associated chemical
treatment

In addition to process efficiercy improvements some sites have
upgraded the building fabnc to improve energy efficiency At our
Haag site a project to replace wirdows and improve insulation
resuited in a 10Te per anrum saving of CO, ermissiors

Since 2013 Bodycote has submutted data on CG, usage to the
Carbon Disclosure Project, ore of the leading carbon reporting and
verilication bodies Each year the Company has improved its standirg
in the league tables and 1s now a "C" relative to general business
groups and 1s rated significantly bigher on venfication of data

Chlorinated solvent use

The use of chlonnated solvents ir Bodycote's thermal processing
activities has been reduced in recert years as aquecus degreasing
facilities have been irtroduced In 207 the normalisedt solvent use
showed a further decrease of 8 0% compared with the previous year

Cautionary statement
The Strategic repert has been prepared solely 1o provide p:
information to shareholders o assess how the directors have

performed their duty to promote the success of the Group

The Strategic report contains certain forward-looking statemenrts
These statements are made by the directors in good faith based on
the information available 1o them up to the time of their approval of
this report and such staterents should be treated with caution due
to the inkerent uncertairties, including both econemic and business
nse factors, urderlying any such forward-Hooking information

Approval
The Group Strategic report of Bodycote plc was approved by the
Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by

S.C. Harris
Group Chief Exacutive
6 March 2018
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of Babcock Internatonal Group

Non-Executive D rector and
Remuneration Commuttee
Chairman of Smitns Group plc

Non-Executive Director, Charr of None
Sustainable Development
Committee and Chair of Social and

Ethies Commuttee for Mond pic singe 2009 ple since 2010 and a Non-Execut ve
Director and Chairman of the auait
committee of 51G plc from 2017
BTN Frasrt des R Fesm ne

Worked on a varety of audits with
Deloitte & Touche followed by
four years with Dresdner Kleinwort
wWasserstein From 1930 10 1992
ne worked for Lloyds Bank plc ang
then switched to Britisn Nuc'ear
Fuels plc frorn 1883 to 2008 In
2006 he tock on the role of Group
Fimance Director with Royal Mail
Holdings plc leaving n 2010

He was Mon-Executive Director

of Fiberweb pic during 2013,
Mauche! Group from 2012 to

2015 and WANaisco plc from

2012 to 2016

Worked 1n various roles for

NZ Forest Products Ltd, foliowed
by management consultancy
with Resource Planning
Associates, a management
posibon with Stanaarg Ol and
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with BP plc from 1987 to 2007
Managing Director of Riverstone
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Non-Executive Directar of BOC
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jon APY Inc from 1984 until 1995,
where he held several senor
management ppsitions He was
appointed to the Board of Powell
Duffryn plc as an Executive
Director in 1985 and then went
on 1o joIn Spectris pic as an
Executive Director from 2003

to 2008 He was also a Non-
Executive Director of Brixton pic
from 2006 1o 2009
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Charterea Accountant, auaified
with Deloitte & Touche after

graauating frorn Liniversity of

Ddthes o0 S oA

LU RE BRI

Chartered Engineer, graduated
from Cambrdge University,
Masters degree in business

B Com Unwersity of Auckland
and MSC Management Sciences,
Massacnusetts Institute of

Chartered Accountant. graguated
from Bristol University 1n
Econormics and Accounting

admunistration from the University Technology Oxford

of Chicago, Booth School of
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Alimak Hold:ng* since 2015,

Mr Green & Co AB since 2016
and Keller Group pic since 2017

Fast orEv

Began her career \n vanous
positions with Enicsson warking n
Contnental Europe, North America
and Asia from 1981 to 1980
foliowea by girector roles with
Encsson from 1993 to 1938
Joined Tehasonera in 2000 as
SeniorV ce President moving to
Xelerated initatly as Crarperson
and later as Cruef Executive from
2007 1o 2011 Non-Executive
Directar of Transmode Molangs
AB from 2007 to 2013, Bleknge
Inst tute of Techaology from 2010
10 2013, T eto Corporation from
2010 to 2016 and Micronic
Mydata AB from 2013 10 2016

*Eva will retre from Cavenon Oy in March
2018 from Assa Abloy AB in April 2018 and
from Alimak Haidivg n May 2018

DAt L o

Engneer, graduated with a
Masters from Linkopng Institute
of Technaogy, Diploma in
Marketing from IHM Business
School and MBA Frnanc al Analysis
from University of Melbourne

| Internat anal aperations
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| Mergers and acgu'silons
B Service industry
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
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Pres.dent of Bunzl's North America
business in 2003
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Graduated from liing's Benedicting
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and a Masters of international
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Co roorate governance statement

Chairman’s message
Dear Srareholders

| am pleased to ntroduce the Group's corparate goverrance report on behalf of our Board of Directors The Corporate goverrance statement
provides ar insight into how the Board operated during the year and the key 1ssues considered We are committed o conductirg businegss
resporsibly By maintaining high standards of corporate goverrarce we enhance performance underpirned by our business model Cur
approach to governance Is set by the Beoard ard oLr Executive Commitiee ensures that the approach is effectively implemented across the
business Effective and robust goverrance remains certral to the ongoing success of the Group

The rmain Group-wide governance docurments are our Core Values and the Code of Corduct, which set out the values and standards that
we expect of our employees These documents, together with our policies, govern how we conduct our business and set the standards
that drive performance Cornpliance training hetps to enforce this Board oversight, reviews and audits form part of the monitoring and
supervision process Risk processes are embedded and reviewed or an ongoing basis across the business The important governance
developments at Bodycote over the last year are detaled in the governance reportirg section below

My armbitions for the composition of the Board are to maintain, and where applicable, broaden the range of expertise, experience ard
diversity The Board cortinues to ensure that effective successior plans are 1In place

I encourage all shareholders to attend the AGM, which will be held at our Macclesfield head office on 30 May 2018 This event provides
an excellent opportunity to meet the executive and indeperdert non-executive directors

A.C. Quinn
Crairman

Board performance
2017 key actions 2017 achievements Priorities for 2018

m Implerment acuons from the 2016 m Undertook 2017 strategy review m Undertake 2018 strategy review
strategy review

m Continued focus on management m Tke Board and management reviewed | Contrue succession planmng and
development and succession planning manragement resources dunng the year management development

m Smooth transiton folowing handover of  m A C Quinn was apponted as Nor- m Srmooth transstior following handover of
the Chief Financial Officer role from D Executive Director and Chairman the Chairman role from A M Thomsor to
Landless to D Yates ard search for a new effective 1 January 2018 and L Chahbaz AC Quinn
MNon-Executive Director ard Chairmanr was appointed as Nor-Executive Director

also effective 1 January 2018

m Contnued emphasis on external Board m The Board wvisited plarts in France and m Use Board visits to meet the operating
trainirg and development the USA during the year and developed teams to promote understanding of
the directors’ understanding of these rmarketls and the opportunities they offer

businesses and the markats they serve

m Continued review of the nisk register, m Dunng the year the Board reviewed the s Tre Board will continue to review cyber
in¢luding major programme risks different elements of the Group's risk secunty protectior, the management
management framework and how it cf risk in major programmes and crisis
discharged its responsibiities management

]
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Governance reporting

Board diversity

Bodycote 1s a global business with operations in 23 countries and diversity 1s ar integral part of how we do business The Nomination
Committee considers diversity whan making appointments to the Board, ta<ing into account relevant skills, expenance, knowledge,
persanality, ethricity and gender Our pnime responsibility, however, 15 the strength of the Board ard our overnding aim in any rew
appointment must always be to select the best candidate The Nominations Comrmittee also considers capability and capacity to commit
the recessary time to the role inits recormendation to the Board The intertion 1s to appaint the most suitable qualified candidate to
complement and balance the current skills, knowledge and expenence of the Board ard who will be best able to help lead the Company
inits long-term strategy The Nomination Committee 15 advised by international search companies, who have been briefed on our diversity
policy and are required to reflect the policy in the long list submitted to the Committes

We appointed A C Quinr on 1 January 2018 as part of our Board refreshment replacing A M Thomson, who retired on 31 December 2017
as Chairmar of the Board L Chahbazi was appointed Non-executive director effective 1 January 2018 The Board currently comprises two
executive directors, four non-executive directers ard a nen-executive chairman

As of 2018 female representation on our Board 1s 43%, 2017 17% (2016 17%) At manager level it 1s 26% (2016 25%!} Females represent
19% (2016 18%) of our total workforce Whilst we are above the 33% by 2020 voluntary target recommerded by the Hampton-Alexander
review, we continue to believe it1s difficult to set targets or tmescales for ircreasing the proportion of women, or any other minority
groLp, on our Board and do not propose to do so We will increase female and/or other minonly representation on the Board if appropriate
candidates are avallable when Beoard vacancies anse

The Corporate responsibility ard sustainability report contains further detaits regarding the male ard femaie representatior within the
Group, ircluding Board represertatior

Board evaluation
Followirg the external Board Evaluation in 2015, the Board agreed to undartake an internal evaluation in 2017 To ensure that all aspects
of good governance are covered by the review, the Group Compary Secretary distributed a talored questiornaire to each member of the

Board Questions were framed urder the following seven topics

® Remit and objectives,

m Compositior, trairing and resources,

m Corporate governance/nis< management,
m Sta<eholder ergagement,

m Board meetings and visits,

m Board procedures and adrainistration, and

® Evaluation ard effectiveness

At a meeting of the Neminatior Committes in September 2017, the directors assessed the conclusions reached and are in the process of
implementirg a number of recommendations Additional emphasis will be placed or ris< management, strategy and operational matters
The Board evaiuation covered the activitiss of the main Board and each of its Committees The Board 1s considered to be functional and
working well Ansing from the exercise, the Board concluded that its focus should remain on dwisional growth strategies, technology
development, nsk and sustainability as weil as cortinued training The overall conclusion 1s that the Board 1s performing well and high
governarce standards have beer adopted The Executive Committee 1s strongly challerged by the Board when appropriate

As In previous years, the Chairmar has assessed the performance of each Board member by conducting irdividual interviews and we car
confirm that all directors cortinue to perform effectively and demonstrate commitment to ther roles

The Executive Directors Meassrs S C Hamns ard D Yates will be appraised in March 2018

Led by the Senior Indeperdent Non-Executive Director, the directors carmed out ar evaluation of the Chairman’s performarce in September
2017 The Board was satisfied with the now retired Chairman’s commitment and performance

Overboarding

At our AGM - 2017, Bodycote recerved a high number of votes against the re-election of Eva Lindgvist Eva has now had ume to review

her directorships and will not stand for re-electior at three of her listed companies RNS annourcemerts will be made duning Q12018
confirrmirg that Eva will not stand for re-electior at the AGMs of Caverior Oy in March 2018, Assa Abloy AB in Apnil 2018 and Alimak Holding

ir May 2018
Following these changss, Eva Lindgvist will sit or five isted boards Bodycote, arother UK PLC and three Nordic Boards Following a review

of Eva's tme commitments and taking Into account the reduced number of meeting of Nordic Boards, the Board 1s satisfied that Eva has
sufficiert scope to carry out her commitrnents even if these should be temporanly ircreased



Corporate governance statement continued

Induction

All new directors are subject to a talored induction programme covering a diverse range of topics includirg trading, investor relations,
organisational and legal matters as well as visits to operational sites They also meet all other directors and senior executives This faciitates
iteir understanding of the Group and the key drivers of business performarce

Training

The Board receives trairing viz ad hoc presentations and papers from adwvisers and the Group Company Secretary External perodic training
on Important topics takes place and dunng the year the directers recewed trainirg on Staxeholder engagerment, FRC corsuitation on the UK
Corporate Governance Code, FRC updates to the guidance on tre Strategic Report and other areas of focus for 2017/18 Other opportunities
for on-going development ard support are

m aprogramme of piant/site visits throughout the year,

m reviews with the Chairman to identify any training and development reeds,

w advice on governarce, relevant legisiative changes affecting the business or their duties from the Company Secretary,
m access to independent professional advice at the Company's expense, and

m participation I the tramning and guidance programme for boards and directors affered at the Deloine Academy

Succession planning
Succession planning ersures that appropriate senior executive leadership resources are in place to achieve Bodycote's strategic objectives
The plans are reviewed arnually by the Nominatior Committee

The Boarg further develops 1ts knowledge and gains greater visioiity of executive talent and management succession by wisiting the
Group's sites and meeting with key talent ard senior execuiives

Non-executive tenure
(in years}

2
¢ 0
Anne Quinn Lil Chahbazi Patrick Larmon Eva L.ndgvist lan Duncan

™ Tenure in yBars



Individual roles of the Board

Group Chief Executive

Chief Financial Officer

leadership and governance of the Board overall responsibiity and leadership of m maintains strong financial maragement
and chairs the Normination Commuttee the Group performance and implements effective financial
controls
Board effectiveness stewardship of Group assets
b | g ‘ b d m provides financiai and commercial
ensures members receive accurate, plans and executes objectves ar decision lsadership, vision and SuppOTt
tmely and clear information or Board strategies
I55Ues m ersures the appropnateness of nsk
maintains a close working relationskip
management systems
ensures, togetrer with the Group with the Charrman, ensuring effective
Compary Secretary, comprehensive dialogue with investors and stakeholders  m oversees all aspects of accounting/
induction of rew directors finance cperations including accountirg
ersures the leadership and development
policies and integrity of firancial data and
sets Board agerda, style and tone of frameworks are developed to generate a exterral financial reporting
Board discussiors positive pipehne for future opportunities
nsur foctive comm " th for the Group m resporsible for corporate finance
ErSUres & : umCaTon wi 3 furctions, firancial planning ard budget
sharehclders has overzall responsibility for the Group's
mManagement
sustamnabiity performance
tes th dval i m supports and advises the senior
communicates the visicn ard values ¢ management team
the Group
m leads the development of investor

Senior Independent Director

manages the serior management team

Non-Executive Directors

relations strategy and communications

Group Company Secretary

acts as a sounding board for the provide constructive challenge m secretary to the Board and its
Chairman committess
help develop strategy
serves as an intermediary for other u ensures efficient ntormation flows
dieclors ersure kinancial controls and systems withir the Board and s committees and
of nsk management are robust ard between semor management and non-
s availlable to meet sharebolders if they defensible
executive directors
have concerms which they have not
been able 1o resolve through the normal determine appropriate levels of facihtates induction of new directors and
charnels remuneratior for the executive drectors assists with training and development
conducts ar annual review of the monitor reporting of performance needs as required
performance of the Charrman and scrutimse performance of management a regularly updates the Board on corporate
convenes a meeting of the nor-executive governance matters, legislative changes
directors to discuss the same are available to meet with major ard regulatory regimes affecting the
shareholders Group
m ensures comphance with Board
procedures
m co-crdinates external Board evaluation

and corducts interral Board evaluation

o
(%]
£
o
E
2
)

Q

Core values
The Board acknowledges its responsibility for determining and mairtaining the Group’s values and ensurss these are reflected in the

business practices This 1s monitored by the Board at regular intervals Further detaiis are availlable on page 33

Pre-emption rights

In ine with best practice provisiors ir the Pre-Emption Group Statement of Principles, the Board cenfirms that it does not interd to issug
rore than 75% of the 1ssued share capial of the Group or a non pre-emptive basis 1n any rolling three-year penod



Corporate governance statement continued

Compliance reporting
Ir respact of the firancial year 2017 Bodycote's obligation under the Disclosure ard Transparency Rules is to prepare a corporate
goverrance statemert with reference to the UK Corporate Goverrance Code 1ssued by the FRC in Apnil 2016 {"the Code”)

in respect of the year erded 31 December 2017 Bodycote has complied with the provisicns of the Code with the exception of provisions

£ 11 Regarding £ 71, the Board has, In recert years, taken the view that generally 1t1s the responsitiity of the Group Chief Executive and
the Chief Financial Officer to manage relationships with institutioral investors The Charrman also meets irstitutional invegstors to discuss
overall strategy, governance and any concerns that shareholders may bave Only where these more usual channels of commurcation

have failled weuld the Board expect the Senior Irdependent Non-Executive Director (SID) or other ron-executive directors to become
Involved, notwitPstarding that the Code specifies attendance of the 510D at meetings with major sharekolders The SID ras contacted major
shareholders and offered to faciitate meetings with them should they have any concerns they wish to discuss Regular feedback from

the Group's advisers on investor meetings and results presentatiors is circutated 1o all directors Dunng the year the Chairman met with
shareholders to discuss governarce matters

Apart from these distirct areas, Bodyoote was in compliance with the prowvisions of the 2016 Code throughout 2017

Operation of the Code

Taken together with the Report of the Audit Committee, the Report of the Nomimaton Commitiee ard the Board report on reruneration
presented or pages 48 to 75, this statement explains how Bodycote has applied the principles of good corporate governarce as set out in
the Code

Leadership
The Board 1s responsible to sharetolders for good corporate governance, settirg the Group's strategic objectives, values and stardards,
and ensuring the necessary resources are In place to achieve the objectives

The Board met on ming accasions duning 2017 including a spearfic meeting to review and update the Group's long-term strategy The Board
of Directors compnses sevenr members, of whom five are non-executive directors and two are executive directors, led by the Group's part-
time Non-Executive Chairmar, A C Qunn, who also chairs the Nomination Comrmittee The Group Chief Executve 1s 5 C Harns ard the
Senior independent Non-Executive Directoris | B Durcan, who also chairs the Audit Committee E Lindgvist 1s Chair of the Remuneration
Commuittee P Larmon ard L Chahbaz are non-executive directors Bnef biographical details of all directors are given or pages 36 to 37
During the year the Board visited a rumber of UK and overseas facilities, including sites in France and the USA Such events wvolved
meetings with local managemert and the unit workforce to understand more clearly technical and operational performance in countries
where Bodycote has a sigrificant presence

Matters reserved for the Board were reviewed duning the year and updated where required Certair defined powers and 1ssues reserved
for the Board to decide are, inter aha

m Strategy.

® Approval of finarcial statements and circutars,

& Captal projects, acquisitions and disposals,

m  Annual budgets,

m Directors’ appointments, service agreements, remuneration and succession planring,
& Policies for financial statements, treasury, safety, health and envirorment, dorations,
m Committees’ terms of refererce,

m Board and commuittee charmen and mermbership,

m Investments,

u Equity and bank financing,

m Internal control and nsk management,

» Corporate governance,

m Key exterral ard internal appointments, and

8 Employee share incentives and pension arrangements

Bodyeote ple _



In advance of Board meetings, directors are supplied with up-to-date information regarding the tradirg performance of each operating
division and sub-dnasion, In addition to the Group's overall inangial postion and its achievement against prior year results, budgets and
forecasts They are also supplied with the latest available information on safety, health and environmental and nsk management 1ssues and
detalls of the safety and health performarce of the Group, and each division, in terms of severity and frequency rates for accidents at work
Senior managemert from across the Group and adwisers attend some of the meetings to provide updates The exposure to members of
senior management from across the Group helps erhance the Board's understanding of the busiress, the implementation of strategy and
the changing dynarmics of the markets in which the Group operates

Where required, a director may seek independent professional advice, the cost of which 1s reimbursed by the Group Al directors have
access to the Group Compary Secretary and they may also address specific issues with the SID In accordance with the Articles of
Asscciation, all newly appointed directors must submit themselves for election Al directors stand for yearly re-election Nor-exscutive
directars, including the Chairman, are appointed for fixed terms not exceeding three years from the date of first election by shareholders,
after which the appointmert may be extended by mutual agreement A statement of the directors’ responsibilities 1s set out on page 76
The Board also operates three committees These are the Nemmation Commuitiee, the Remuneration Committee ard the Audit Committee
All non-executive directors serve on each Board Committee

In accardance with the recommendations of the Code, Board members serve for a penod of six years, which will only be extended in
certain circumstances If letters of appointmant are extended beyond six years, the fixed term s reduced to one year

In order that necessary actions car be taker promptly, 2 finance sub-committee, compnsing the Chairmar (or failirg her, any other non-
executive drrector}, the Senior Independent Director, the Group Chief Executive and the Chief Financial Officer operates between the dates
of scheduled Board meetings ard s authonsed to maxe decisions, within imits defined by the Board, in respect of certair finance, treasury,

tax or investment matters

Shareholders

!

The Chairman - key responsibilities

8  Effectve ruanng of the Boad B Monors progress ot strategy ard objectives
8 CGudance to Executive Directors B Safeguatds the interests of sharehclders

!

The Board - key responsibihties
m Overall direction of the Group's strategy and the ‘ong term success of the Group's business

1 I

Nomination Remuneration
Committee Committee

Determines
remune

Finance Chief Executive
Committee : ihle for

Audit
Committee
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Corporate governance statement continued

Independence of non-executive directors
The Board considers that P Larmon, E Lindgwist, | B Durcar and L Chahbazi are all irdependent for the purposes of the Code The
Chairman was considered indeperdent Lpon appaintrent

Commitment
Attendance of directors at regular scheduled meetings of the Board ard its Committees is shown in the table beiow

Remuneratior

Full Board Audit Comirnittee Committee Normination Committee

Director Elgible Attended Eligible Attended Eligible Attended Eligible Attended
A M Thomson! 9 9 - - 4 4 7 7
SC Harns? 9 9 - - ~ B 4 4
E Lindgwist 9 9 4 4 8 5 7 7
| 8 Duncan 9 9 4 4 8 & 7 7
P Larmen g 9 4 4 6 5 7 7
D Yates ] 9 - - ~ - — -

1 AW Thomson resigned from the Remuneration Committee on 24 July 2017
2z S C Harris resigned from the Nomingtion Committee on 24 July 2017

All directors, attended the maximum number of Board, Audit and Nomination Committee meetings that they were scheduled to attend P
Larmon did not attend one Remuneratior Committee due to an unpredictable diary clash In addition, non-members Messrs A M Thomson,
S C Harns, D Yates attended by invitation some parts of the meetings of the Audit, Nemination and Remuneration Committees

Proposals for re-election

The Board decided, in ine with the Code, that all directors will retire annually and. other than in the case of any director who has decided to
stand down from the Board, will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM Accordingly, S C Harns, E Lirdgwvist, P Larmen, | B Duncan
and D Yates will stend for re-election at the AGM 1n May 2018 Hawving been appeirted since the last AGM, A C Quinn and L Chahbazi will
stand for election

The Board recommands to shareholders that they re-siect {(or elect} all the directors In accordance with the recommendations of the Code,
Board members will serve for a penod of six years which may be extended in certain circumstances

The performance of each director was evaluated as indicated above and the Board confirms in respect of each that ther performance
continues to be effective and that each continues to demonstrate cormnmitment 1o his or her respective role

Internal control and risk management

The Board 1s responsible for the Group’s systern of internal controls and risk management poiicies and Fas an ongoing responsibility for
reviewing its effectivenass Such a system 1s desigred to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against materal misstatement or loss The Board has applied Principle C 2

of the Code by establishing a continuous process for identfying, evaluating and managing the Group's significart nsks, including nisks
arsing out of Bodycote's corporate and social engagement The Board’'s monrtoring covers all controls, including financial, operational and
comphance controls and nsk management systems 113 based principally on reviewing reports from management and from Internal Audit
(1A} to consider whether any significant weaknesses are promptly remedied or indicate a need for more extensive monitonng The Audit
Committee assists the Board in discharging these raview responsibilities

a
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The Board believes that the Group maintains an effective system of internal controls which 1s in accerdarce with the FRC’s guidarce
entitled ‘Interral Contrel Revised Guidarce for Directers’ formerly referred to as the Turnbull Report guidance) and, in the view of the
Board, no significant deficiencies have been idertified in the system The systerm was in operatior throughout 2017 and continues to
operate up to the date of the approval of this report Key elements of the Group’s system of internal cortrol are as follows

a The Group prepares a comprehensive annual budget which 1s closely monitored and updated guarterly The Group's authonty matrix
was reviewed and updated durnng 2017 and this clearly sets out authonty imits for those wath delegated responsibiity ard specrfies
what can only be decided with central approval

m The Board, with the assistance of EY, whro provide co-sourced |A services, monitors the Group's internal finarcial control system A
reviews are conducted on the basis of a nsk based plan approved annually by the Audit Committee This includes regular visits to each
dwision, shared service centres ard plants The findings and recommendations from |A are reported on a regular basis to the Executive

and Audit Commitiees

m An arnual internal control self-assessment, with management certificatior, I1s urdertaken by every Bodycote site The assessment
covers the effectiveness of key financial ard compliance controls and was revised at the start of 2017 The results are validated by 1A
through spot checks and are reported to the Executive and Audit Committees

m Group Core Values and Group Policies {including the Code of Conduct, Group Authority Matrix and Finarce Policies} are documerted
and are avallable to all employees vig the Group’s intranet system

m The Chief Financial Officer, Group Financial Controller, President and Vice President of Finance for each divisior sign a letter of
represertatior annually This 1s to confirm the adequacy of their systers of irternal cortrals, their comphance with Group Core Values
and Group Policies, relevant laws and regulatiors, and that they have reported any control weakresses ard actual, or atterpted, frauds
or thefts through the Group's assurance processes

m A Group-wide nsk register and assurance map 1s maintained trroughout the year toidentify the Group's key strategic ard operational
nsks Any changes to these risks dunng the year are promptly reported to the Executive Commuttee ard the Board

Durirg 2017 1n compliance with provision C 2 1 of the Code, management performed a specific assessmert of its nis< maragement processes
for the purpose of this Arrual Repert Maragement's assessment, which has been reviewead by the Audit Committee and the Beard, included
a review of the Group's key strategic and operational nsks The review was based on work performed by the Group Head of Risk and the
Group's Risk and SHE Comrmittee {by means of workshops, interviews, investigations and by reviewing departmental or dvisional risk
registers) These risks have beer reviewed throughout the year and two new nsks have been added since 2016, Environmental and Capial
Projects Further information regarding the ways in which the principal business nisks and uncertanties affecting the Group are managed 1s
shown on pages 25 to 29

Investor relations

Tre Group Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer regularly talk with and meet institutional investors, both individually and collectively,
and this has enabled irstitutional investors to ircrease therr understanding of the Group's strategy and operating perforrmance In addition,
inrternet Lecrs are able Lo view up-to-date news on the Group and its share price via Lhe Bodycole website at www bodycote com Users
of the website can access recent announcemerts and copies of results presentatiors and car enrol to hear live presentations On a
regular basis, Bodycote's financial advisers, corporate brokers and finarcial public relatons corsultarts provide the directors with opirion
surveys from aralysts and investing mstitutions following wisits and meetings with the Group Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer
The Chairmar ard SID are available to discuss any 1ssues not resclved by the Group Chiaf Executive and Chief Financial Officer On specific
issues, such as the raview of remuneration packages, the Group has sought, and will continue 1o seek, the views of leading investors

By order of the Beard

.S, Ball
Group Company Secretary
6 March 2018

Sprnrgwood Court
Springwood Close
Tytherington Business Park
Macciesheld

Cheshire
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Directors’ report

The diréclors are pleased to submut therr report ard the audited financial statements for the year erded 31 Decermber 2017

The Chairman’s statemert, the Chief Executive’s review, the Chief Financial Officer’s report and all the informatior contained on pages 36
to 75 together comprise the Directors’ report for the year ended 31 December 2017

Strategic report

The Strategic report 13 provided on pages 3 to 35 of this Anrual Report Ths 1s a review of the development of the Group’s businesses,

the financial performance during the yvear ended 31 December 2017 key performance irdicators ard a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group The Strategic report Fas beer prepared solely to assist the shareholders in assessing the Group's strategies
and the potential of those strategies It should not be relied on by any other party for any other purpose Forward-looking statements have
been made by the directors in good faith Lsing information avalable up to the date of this report and such statements should be regarded
with caution because of the inherent uncertairties in economic trends ard business rnisks Since the end of the financial year no important
events affectirg the business of the Group have occurred

Dividends

The Board has recommended a hinal dividend of 12 1p (2016 10 8p) bringing the total ordirary dividerd to 174p per share (2016 15 8p) If
approved by shareholders, the final gividend of 12 1p per share will be paid on 1 June 2018 to all shareholders on the register at the close
of business on 20 Aprd 2018 A specal drvidend of 25 Op has also heen proposed and will be subsect to shareholder approval If approved it
will be paid on 1 Jung 2018

Share capital

Thre Compary's 1ssued ordirary share capital as at 31 December 2017 was £33 1Tm No shares were 1ssued dunrg the year At the AGM
on 17 May 2017 the shareholders authorised the Company to purchase up to 22,046,468 of 1ts own shares This authbority expires at the
conclusion of the forthcoming AGM to be held on 30 May 2018, at which tme a further authonty will be sought from shareholders

Capital structure

Details of the 1ssued skare capial are showr in note 22 The Compary has one class of ordinary shares, which carnes no nght to fixed
income Each share carnes the right to one vote at general meetings of the Compary There are no specific restrictions on the size of a
halding nor on the trarsfer of shares, both of which are governed by the general provisions of the Articles of Association ard prevailing
legislation The directors are not aware of any agreements between holders of the Company's shares that may result in restrictions on
the transfer of securities or on voting nghts Detalls of employee share schemes are set out in note 26 and shares held by the Bodycote
Employee Benefit Trust abstain from voting and warive dvidend nghts No person has any special rights of control over the Company's
share capital and all issued shares are fully paid The appointmeant and replacement of directors 1s governed by the Company's Articles of
Associatior, the UK Corporate Governance Code, the Comparies Act and related legislation The Articles of Assocration may be amended
by a special resclution of shareholders The powers of the directors are described in tre Corporate goverrance statement on page 42
Under the Arucles of Association the Company has authority to 1ssue ordinary shares with a norminal value of £11,023,234

There are alsc a number of other agreements that take effect, aiter, crystalise or terminate upon a change of control of the Company
following a takeover bid such as commercial contracts, bank loan agreements, property lease agreements, employment contracts and
employee share plans Nore of these are considered to be significant ir terms of their likely impact on the business of the Group as
awhole, and the directors are not aware of any agreements between the Company and themselves or employees that provide for
compensation for loss of office or employment that occurs because of a takeover bid except where specifically mentioned in this report

Directors

The current directars and therr biographical detaiis are listed on page 36 to 37 and all served throughout the year A M Thomson retired
as Charman and Non-Executive Director as of 31 December 2017 and was replaced by A C Cuinn as of 1 January 2018 A further Nor-
Executive Director, L Chahbazi was appointed effective 1 January 2018 Under the Aricles of Association of the Company each director
must retire from office and stand for re-election by shareholders as a minimum at every third AGM in order to continue to serve as a
director However, in line with the UK Corporate Governance Code ard to further increase accountability, all directors retired at the AGM
In 2017 and stood for re-election by the shareholders Going forward all directors wall retire at the AGM and will stand for re-election by the
shareholders, If they wish 10 contirue to serve as directors of the Company Accordingly, those directors retinng and offering themselves
for re-election at the 2018 AGM are S C Harns, | B Duncan. E Lindgwist, P Larmon and D Yates Since A C Quinn and L Chahbaz were
appointed after the AGM In 2077 both will stana for election at the AGM in May 2018 The service agreements for Messrs S C Harnis
and D Yates are terminable by 12 months' notice The remaining directors do not have a service agreemert with the Company and their
appointments are terminabile by sx months' notice

Directors’ interests in contracts and shares

Detalls of the executive directors’ service contracts and detalls of the directors’ interests in the Company’s shares and share incentjve
plans are shown i the Board report on remuneration on pages 54 to 75 No director has had any dealings in any shares or options in the
Compary since 31 December 2017 Qualifving third party indemnity provision {as defined by section 234 of the Companies Act 2006) has
remained in force for the directors for the year ended 31 December 2017 and, as at the date of this report, remains i force for tre benefit
of the current directors in relation 1o certain losses and liabilities which they may incur {or have incurred) to third parties In the course of
therr duties Apart from these exceptions, rone of the directors had a material interest in any contract of sigrificance in relation to the
Company and its subsidiaries at ary time dunng the financial year

|
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Potential conflicts of interest
During 2008 the duties owed by directors to a company were codified ard extended by the Companies Act 2006 so that directors not

cnly had to declare actual conflicts of irterests In transactions as they arose, but also had a duty to avoid such corflicts whether real
or potential Potential conflicts of interest could anse where a single director owes a fiduciary duty to more than ore orgarisatior (a

“Situational Conflict™} which typically will be the case where a director holds directorships i more than one company in order to ersure
that each director was complying with the duties, each director provided the Company with & formal declaration to disclose what Situatioral

Conflicts affected him or her The Board reviewed the declarations and approved the existence of each declared Situational Conflict up

untl September 2019 ard permitted each affected director to attend and vote at Bodycote directors’ meetings, on the basis that each such
director continued 10 keep Bodycote's information confidential, and provided overall that such authonisation remained appropriate and in the
interests of shareholders Where such authonsation becomes inappropriate or not in the interests of Bodycote shareholders, the Chairmar

or the Norination Committee can revoke an authorisation No such revecations have been made

Employment

The Group recogrises the value that can be added to its future profitability and strength by the efforts of employees The commitment of
smployees 1o excel 1s key to the Group's cortirued success Through therr attendance at or participatior in strategy, production, safety and
heaith meetings at site level, employeses are kept up to date with the perfarmance and progress of the Group, the contribution to the Group
made by therr site, and are adwised of safety and health 1ssues Under the Group’s Open Deor Line employees’ corcerns car be voiced over
the phore on ar ancnymous basis i the local language Approximately 3,600 Bedycote employees are connected to the Bodycote intranet,
which improves knowledge of Group activities, and assists greatly with technology excrange and co-ordiration It1s the Group's policy 10
give full and fair consideration to applications for employment from disabled persens, having regard to therr particular aptitudes and abilities,

ard to encoLrage the training and career development of all personnel employed by the Group, includirg disabled persors Should an
employee become disabled, the Group, where practicable, will seek to contirue the employment and arrange appropriate trairing
An equal opportunities policy 15 1 operation in the Group

Greenhouse gas emissions
Detalls of greenhouse gas emissions are included within the Corporate responsibility and sustainability sectior of this report

Donations
There were ro political contrbutiors in 2016 or 2017

Shareholders
Ap analysis of the Company’s shareholders and the shares in 1ssue at 21 February 2018 together with detalls of the interests of major
skarekolders in voting shares notified to the Company pursuant to chapter 5 of tre Disclosure and Transparency Ruies are given or

page 143
Auditor

Ir accordarce with the provisions of section 489 of the Companies Act 2008, a resolution for the reappoirtment of Delortte LLP as auditor
1$ to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting Each person who is a director at the date of approval of this Arnual Report

confirms that

m so far as each director 1s aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Compary's auditor 1s urawere, and

m each director has taker all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a director to make himself or herself aware of any relevant

audit iInformation and to establish that the Company's auditor 1s aware of that information

This statemert 1s given and should be mterpreted i accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the Companies Act 2008

Annual General Meeting

The 2018 Annual Gereral Meeting will be held on 30 May 201810 accordarce with the notice being sent to shareholders with this repert

By order of the Board

U.S. Ball
Group Company Secretary
6 March 2018

Springweod Court
Springwood Close
Tytherirgton Business Parx
Maccleshield

Cheshire
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Report of the Nomination Committee

Committee membership No. of meetings 2017: 7 Main committee responsibilities

Director Attendance m Regularly review the structure, size and cornposition {including the
AM Thomsonr 7 skils, krowledge, expenerce and diversity) of the Board and make
SC Harns*® 4 recommendations to the Board with regard to ary changes

18 Duncan 7 m Give full consideration 10 succession plarming for direciors and other
E Lindgvist 7 senior executives In the course of Its work

P Larmon 7 m Be responsible for identitying and rominating for the approval of the
*resigned membership on 24 July 2017

Board, candidates to fill Board vacancies as and when they arise

Dear Shareholders

| am pleased to irtroduce the Nomination Committee report for 2017 The Committee’s key objective 1$ 10 support the Board i fulfilling
1ts resporsibilities to ensure there 1s a formal, nigorous and transparent process for the appointment of new directors to the Board and to
ensure that effective succession planning processes are in place across the Group

This was a busy year for the Committee In addition to its main respersibiites, the Committee oversaw the process of appoirting a new
Chairman and a new Non-Executive Director Alan Thomson, Charman, retired on 31 December 2017 after more than nine years of service
L Chahbazi was appoirted Non-executive director on 1 January 2018 at the same ume as | took over as Chairman from Alan The
Committee will continue to focus on ensuring that the present and future composition of the Board 1s appropnate for the delivery of

the Group's strategy and that all relevant UK Corporate Governance Code requirements continue to be met

A. C Quinn
Chairman of the Nomination Committee

Role of the Nomination Committee
Vacancy tor g director 1s identihied whnen one of the existing The Nomination Committee 1s a sub-comrittee
directors corfirms mis/her intenton to retire of the Board, whose principal purpose 1s to advise
on the appomtmerit and, f necessary, dismissal

of executive and non-executive directors The
Communtee’s terms of refererce, which are histed on
m The need for specific <nowledge. skills and role behaviours the Group's website, include all matters required by

15 identified dunng discussions ar Nomirauon Committee the UK Corporate Governance Code (“the Code”)
Board Further irforrmation on the Code can be found on

. meetings
Composition the Finarcial Reporting Council's website wwwy
fre org Uk The terms of reference are reviewed
annually by the Group Company Secretary and the
Chairman, and ary changes are then referred to tre
Board for approval Me changes were made 1o the
terms of refererce during the year

Succession
Planning

J

& External interrational search consultarcies were appointed
tc assist with the search Zygos assisted the SID in the
Recruitment Chairman’s recruitment and Russell Reynalds assisted the

Charrrnan wath the NED recrutment .
Composition of the

Nomination Committee
A sub-committee examined the long list of candidates As recommended by the Code, the Chairman of
against the role specidications and a shortist of candidates the Board acts as the Chalrman' of the Committee
was itentified whose members also compnse the directors listed
J above The Charman canrot char the Committee
when it 18 dealing with either the succession to
Y

[ |
® Canddates were nitally intsrviewed by the SID and the Cluef the Charmanship of the Group or the review

Executive for the Chairman's position and by the Chairman and of his or her own performance Only members
the Chief Executive for the non-executive director role The final of the Committee have the nght to attend the
candidates then met wath alt other directors Committee meetngs Other individuals and external

N

o

advisers may be invited to attend for all, or part of,
any meeting when it 15 appropriate The quorum

a in order to maximise the effectiveness of the Board an necessary for the transaction of business is two
Balan additional ron-executive director was appomied increasing
?Sak‘([:ge the size of the Board and ensuring that the Board has the The Group Company Secretary 15 secretary to the
of SKiie nght skills and expenences ) Committee

The Commuttee has the authority to seek any

® Anre C Quinn and Lil Chahbazr were announced as joining mformation that s required, from any officer or
the Board Anpe succeeds Alan Thomson as Non-Executive employee of the Company or its subsicharies
E Appointment Chatrman In connecuon with its duties, the Committee 1s
authonsed by the Board to take such independent

advice lincluding legal or other professional advice,

at the Group's expense) as it considers necessary,
m The Committee and the Group Company Secretary will play including requests for infermation from, or
an actve part in an wnduction programme that is taiored to commissioning mvesligations by, external advisers
the needs, skills and expenences of the new non-executive
directars

Bodycote plic -




Director appointment policy and progress

The Commuttee has developed a formal ngorous and transparert procedure for the appontment of new directors Prior to makirg ary
appeintment, the Committes, having evaluated the skills, expenence and diversity of the Board, will deterrine the qualities and experience
they seek and will then prepare a detalled description of the role with a view to appointing the most appropriate candidate The Comrmittee
will use open advertising or the services of indeperdent exterral advisers to facilitate the search

A long list of candidates will be drawn up, from which an appropnate number will be selected for irterview Upon completion the
Comrmittee will reccmmend to the Board the appointment of the preferred cardidate

Board succession planning
Upon the retirement of A M Thomsaon on 31 December 2017 he was replaced by A C Quinn as Chairman as of 1 January 2018 The

recruitment process was led by the Senior Independent Director, | B Duncan tan was advised by international search consultarcy Zygos
in the process of identifying suitably qualified individuals Li Chahbazi joined the Board as a non-executive director on 1 January 2018
and A M Thomson was advised by international search consultancy Russell Reynclds Neither Zygos ror Russell Reynolds have other

connechions 10 Bodycote plc

Nomination Committee — Main activities of the Nomination Committee
allocation of agenda time In 2017 the Commitiee formally met seven times and reviewed the composition and skills
of the Board, with a view to corsidernng the current and future skifis and expenence that the

Board might require

The Committee discussed succession planring and Board dversity, and reviewed the
performance of the Group Chief Executive and other semior executives In particular, the need

to broaden the Board membership with respect to gender, ethnicity and age was discussed The
Committee has sought to ensure that appoirtrents are of the best candidates to promote the
success of the Company and are based on mernit, with due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board Further information corcerning Board diversity car be fourd on page 39 as part of
the corporate governance report VWe are pleased to report that as of 1 January 2018 the femals
representation on the Board bas riser to 43% compared to 17% n 2017

The Comnmittee considered and authonsed the potental conflicts of interest which right
arise where a director has fiduciary responsibilities ir respect of other organisations The
" Commuttee concluded that ro inapproprate conflicts of interest exist The Commitiee also
S:grsdugzg\?;:ggmm 5% assigred the Chairman to review and agree with the Group Chisf Executive s personat
e ° objectives for the forthcorning year

B Performance of Charrman

and Group Chief Executive  20% Followng the external Board evaluation in 2015, the Board agreed to urdertake an internal

avaluation during 2017 Further detalls of the review can be found in the Corporate Governance

W Goverance and 10% sectior of the Arnual Report Recormmendations ansirg frem the 2017 Board evaluation are in
reportng ° the process of being addressed
2nce and
Independznce and p In our 2017 AGM results anrouncement we stated that Eva Lirdgwst had confirmed 1o
re-election 5%
reduce her number of directorships with histed companies Corsequently, Eva will not stand

for re-election at three listed companies Cavenon Oy in March 2018, Assa Abloy AB ir Apnil
2018 and Alimak Holdirg in May 2018 This wall reduce Eva's other directorships to five In our
view, this enables Eva to allocate sufficient time to Bodycote to discharge her responsiilities

effectively

In December 2017 the Nomiration Committee reviewad the Board’s size and composibon, the frequency of the process for Board and
Committee meetings, and best practice for dealing with Board 1ssues including drawing up & tramning and/or irduction programme for

the directors The terms of reference of the Committee were reviewed in conjunction with the Model Terms of Reference 1ssued by the
Institute of Chartered Secretanes and Administrators The biographical details of the current directors car be found on pages 36 and 37 The
Committee, having reviewsd ther independerce and contributior: to Board matters, confirms that the performance of each of the directors
standing for re-electior at this year's AGM continues 1o be effective and demonstrates commitment to therr roles, including independence
of judgement and time commitrment for Board and Committee meetirgs Accordirgly the Committee has recommended to the Board that
all current directors of the Compary be proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM

As Charrman of the Committee, | will be availlable at the AGM in May 2018 to answer guestions relating to the work of the Committee

On behalf of the Norunation Commitiee

A.C. Quinn CBE
Chairman of the Nomination Committee
6 March 2018
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Report of the Audit Committee

Committee membership No. of meetings 2017: 4 Main committee responsibilities

Director Attendance m Encourage and safeguard the tughest standards of irtegnty, financial

| B Buncan 4 reporting, firancal risk management and imternal controls

E Lindgvist 4 ® Monitor the integrity of the financial statemerts includirg arnual ard

P Larmon 4 half-yearly reports, trading updates and ary other formal announcemerts

relatirg to its financial performance Reviewing ard reporting to the
Bearg on significart finarcial reporting 1ssues and judgements

m Review the content of the Annual Report and adwise the Board whether,
taxen as a whoie, 1118 fair, balanced and understandable and prowides the
nformation necessary for shareholders to assess the Company’s position
ard performance, business model and strateqy

® Monitor and review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial control and risk managemert systers including the
robust assessment of principal nsks

® Oversee the relationship with the external auditor including consideration
of fees, audit scope, terms of engagement, setting palicy for the
provision of non-audit services te make recommaendations to the
Board, subject to the approval by shareholders, on the appointment,
reappointment of removal of the external auditor

» Moritor and resnew the effectiveness of the Company's internal audi
function

m Rewviaw the adequacy and security of the Company's arrangements for its
employees to raise concerns, ir confidence, about possible wrongdoing
in financial reporting or other matters

Introduction

The Committee has continued to focus or the integrity of Bodycote's financial reporting, nsk managemeant and intemal controls and on
the guality of the external ang internal audit processes The Committee will continue to Keep our activiies under review as the regulatory
environment changes

Membership
The members of the Audit Committee are all iIndependent non-executive directors Their biographical details are shown on pages 36 to 37
and their remuneratior on page 59 The Group Company Secretary 1s the secretary to the Audit Committee

I B Duncan 1s Chairman of the Audit Committee The Board considers that | B Duncan has recent and relevant financial expenence He
qualed as a Chartered Accountant with Deloitte & Touche, served as a plc Finance Director (Royal Mall Holdings ple 2006-2010) and has
chared the Audit Committee of several other publicly isted companies

Other members ot the Committeg have significant and widespread experignce in both executive and non-executive capacities in
multinational industnal companies Accordingly, all members of the Audit Committee are considered 10 have competence relevant to ther
duties

Objective

The Committee's chiective 1s to provide effective goverrance over the Group's financial reporting, ircluding the adequacy of related disclosures,
the management and oversight of the Group's systems of internal control, financial nsks and the performarce of internal audht and tre
appontment and performance of the external auditor

Committee meetings

The Audit Committee met four times dunng 2017 and n March 2018 and al! members attended all the meetings The Commiteg Charrman
also invited the Charman, Group Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer, Group Financial Controller and Group Head of Risk fwhe s
responsible for nternal audit) to attend all meetings Other executives from the Group were also invited, as approprate, to attend certain
meetings to provide a deeper level of insight into key 1ssues The Committee Chairman afso invited the external auditor, Deioifte LLP

(" Deloitte”), to every meeling

I B Duncan also held preparatory meetings separately with Delonte, the Group Financial Controller and the Group Head of Risk prior
to Committee meetings 1o review therr reports and discuss 1ssues in detall Both the external and internal auditors met wath the Audit
Committee without the executives present

a
m Boedycote pic -



Main activities of the Committee during the year
As part of the process of working with the Board te carry out +ts responsibilities and lo maximise effectiveness, meetings of the Committee
generally take place just prier to Board meetings

At its meetings, the Committee focused on the following main areas

Financial reporting
The primary role of the Committee in relation to finarcial reporting bas been to review, with managemert and the exterral auditor,
the appropriateness of the intenm and annual financial statements concentratng or, amongst other matters

a the quality and acceptability of accounting pelcies and practices,

the apphcation and impact of significant judgements or matters where there was significant discussior with the external auditor, ;

m the clanty of disclosures ard compliarce with Financial Reporting Standards, and

m whether the Anrual Report, taken as a whole, 1s far, balanced and understandable and provides the irformation recessary for
shareholders to assess the Group's strategy. business model and performance

Reports from management were considered on sigrificant matters, including ir respect of iigation, treasury and tax matters and also
reports from the exterral auditor on the outcome of their work The Committee challenged both management and Deioitte to ensure that
the scope of the audit was appropnate andg that Deloitte had applied the necessary level of professional scepticism in their work

Areas of focus
The areas of focus considered by the Committea ir relation to the 2017 Annual Report included the following

m Imparment of goodwill The Committee challenged the future forecast underlying the value wr use calculation, and the assumptions,
particularly the discount rate ard growth factors, used ir the discounted cash flow calculatiors for each cash generating unit, the
sensitivity analysis appled and the projected future cash flows used to support the carrying values of the gocdwill Details of sensitivity
analysis applied to key assumptiors used in the impairment review are set out In note 11 to the Financial Statements on page 108 The
Committee has concluded that ro impairment charge 1s required in the year

® Restructuring, reorganisation and environmental provisions The Commuttee received reperts, including fram professional advisers, and
challenged the basis and completeress of the assumptions used Lo calculate the provisions ard the appropriateness of disclosures in
the Beport The Commuttee discussed with management the key judgements behind provisions, taking rote of the range of pessible
outcomes, and agreed with their recommendatiors

8 Taxation A rumber of judgements are irvolved in calculating tax provisions and the level of deferred tax assets to be recogrised The
Committee reviewed assoctated nsks and challenged managemert's assassment concerning the Group's key tax nsks, noting the
work of the QECD in respect of Base Erosion and Profit Shiftirg {BEPS), and management's forecast of the future taxable profits of
the relevant businesses

m Viahiiry Statement The Committee challerged the validity of the assurnptions used i the preparation of the three year strategic plan,
used as the basis of the assessment of the longerterm viability of the Group, In particular considering the Group's forecast for profits
and cash generatior, 1ts hguidity position, available borrowing facilities ard covenant comphance Sersitivity aralysis was urdertaken
to consider the impact of certain nsks and to understand the impact of changes 1o all key varables

m Going corcern The Committee challenged the vahdity of the going concern assumption used in the preparation of the Annual Report,
In particular considenng the Group's forecast for profits and cash generatior, 1ts hgquidity positior, available borrowirg facihties ard
covenart comphance Sensitivity analysis was undertaker to urderstand the impact of changes to key vanables

m Pensicn llabllities Maragement took external professional advice in determining pensior liabiitias The Committee challenged the
assumnptions used, particutarly in respect of inflation, the discourt rate, Iife expectancy and the application of IFRIC 14 to the UK pansion
scheme, by considenng current norms and the sensitivity of the reported hability to changes in the assumptions

Risk management

The Comrittee reviewed a report at each meeting from the Group Head of Risk who has pnimary responsibility for developing the Group's
risk maragement framewor< The Committes reviewed changes 1o the principal nsks and mrigating actiors identfied by maragement The
Committee also receved quarterly reports on 1ssues raised via the Open Dooer Line {ar external independent service where employees may
report matters of corcernt and assessad botk how such calls are dealt with and whether there was any indication of materal nsk Dunng 2017
there were 15 Open Door Cases, all of which were investigated and closed during the year, with appropnate action taken where necessary

Intemal control

At each meeting the Committee corsidered and challenged reports from the interral auditors on the effectiveness of irternal controls

The Committee also parformed an arrLal review of the Group's internal cortrol processes and considers the system 1o be effective ard in
accordance with the Guidarce on Risk Maragement, Irterral Control and Related Financial and Business Reporting as 1ssued by the FRC

(September 2014)

Intemal audit

The irterral audit plan for 2018 was preserted to the Committee in October 2017 ard accepted following discussions ard challenge as to
the scope ard areas of focus Al each meeting the Group Head of Risk presented a report to the Commuttee or the status of internal audit
plans for the current year, points ansing from audits completed and follow up action plans to address areas of weakress The status of
these actions 1s monitored closely by the Commitiee until they are completed The Cormmittee also received reparts on actual or suspected
frauds and thefts by third parties and employees Neore had any matenal finarcial impact on the Group and where necessary. syslems ard
procedures were altered toc mirimise the rnisk of recurrence
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Report of the Audit Committee continued

External audit

At the May and October meetings the external auditor presentad therr audit plars for the intenm review ard yearend audit respectively The
Commuttee considered and challerged both the scope and materahty to be applied to the Group audit and its components The Committes
considered carefully the scope i respect of smaller ard more rerote locatiors ard noted that the majonty of local audits are undertaken
by Deloitte

Training
Updates were presented to the Cormmittee on new accounting developmerts and any changes In corporate governance requirements that
may affect the Group Committee members also attended training briefirgs by accounting firms and other adwisers

Overview

The Committee examined the 2017 Arnual Report and was specifically tasked by the Board 1o advise 1t on whether thre 2017 Annual Report
1s farr, balanced and urderstandable The Committee did this by satisfying itself that there was a robust process of review and chalienge to
ensure balance ard consistency Ir doing so the Committee examined these processes, which included the allocation of responsibility for
the preparation of certain sections of the Arnual Report to individuals 1n the head office team and a second person taking responrsitility for
the review process of each section of the Annual Report Additional reviews were carried out by internal and external persornel ircluding
an independent legal review

The Committee also reviewed the Anrual Report Taker as a whole, in the hight of their xnowledge of the Group and its performance, the
outcome of the activities described above ard based on robust discussion with both maragement and the external auditor, the Commuttes
has conciuded that it 1s fair, balanced and understandable ard provides the information necessary for sharghelders o assess the Group's
strategy. busiress model, position ard performance, and reported to the Board accordingly

External audit

Appointment

The Committee considers the re-appoiriment of the external auditor each year and as part of this process considers the independence of
the auditor and the effectiveness of the external aL.dit process Having reviewed the performarce of Deloitte in 2017 the Committee has
decided to recommend to the Board that Deloitte be reappointed for the 2018 audit and a resolution to this effect will be put to the 2018
AGM The Cormmittee reviewed and agreed the fee for 2017

The external auditor 15 required to change the lead partrer every five years and other partners periodically in order to protect independence
and objectivity and provide fresh chailerge to the Group Mr M Mulins has been lead partner sirce 2015

Deloitte has been the Group's auditer for 16 years

In accordance with the transiior arrangerents of the Competition and Markets Authonty Audit order, the Group has urtil 2023 to hold
a competitive tender for external audit services, 1ts the irtention of the Group to hold a competitive tender, at a time which coincides
with the next change of the lead audit partner, as the committee Helieves that the audit partner’s knowledge of the business contributes
to the quabtty of the audit process

The Group comphes with the provisions of the " Statutory Audit Services for Large Companies Market Invesugation Order 20147

independence
The indeperdence of the external auditor has been confirmed by Deloitte every half year and was last confirmed in March 2018 The
Committee considered Deimtte’'s presentatior and confirmed that it considered the auditor to be independent

Significant controls surrounding the financial reporting process
The Group operates under a system of internal controls which Fave been developed and refined gver time to meet its needs and the nsks
to which it s exposed This mcludes

m preparatior: of the Strategic Plan,

m comprehensive budgeting process with an annual budget which 1s approved by the Boara,

m quarterly review and revision of financial forecasts for the year,

®m moenthly monitoring of financial performance,

m recruitment of suitably qualified staff for the Group's admiristrative offices, shared services centres and regional accountirg centres,
B provision of appropriate 1T and reporting systems, and

W appropnate delegation of authonty to operational maragerment

Delegations and ather Group corperate and financial policies are mantained on the Group intranet An annual representation letter from all
busiress unit Presidents and Vice Presidents of Finance, with regard to the financial reporting process and the veracity of the information
they have submitted, i1s provided 1o the Commitiee
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Effectiveness of the external audit process
The Commitiee has adopted a formal frameworx for the review of the effectiveness of the external audit process and audit quality whick

includes the following aspects

m zssessment of the engagement partner, other partners and the audit team,
m audit approach and scope, including 1dentification of nsk areas,

m execution of the audt,

m irteraction with management,

m communication with and support to the Audit Committee,

m insights, maragement letter points, added value and reports, ard

m independerce, objectivity and scepticism

An assessment questionnare was completed by each member of the Committee, the Chief Firancial Cfficer ard other senior firance
executives The feedback from tre process i1s considered by the Audit Commuttee ard provided to the external auditor and management
The full formal guestionnaire 1s completed every three years with key areas beirg completed svery year

The Commitiee assessed the eflectiveness of management 1n the external audit process by considenng tmely idertificatier and resolutior
of areas of accounting jJudgement, the quality and timeliness of papers analysirg those judgements and other documents provided for
review Dy the external auditor and the Committee

The Committee corsidered the FRC Audit Quality Review Tearm report on Deloitte LLP dated June 2017 if the audit 1s selected for quality
review, the Committee understards that any resultirg reports will be sent to the Committee by the FRC After considenng the above
matters, the Committes felt that the external audit had been effective

Non-audit services

The external auditor may be invited to provide services where their position as auditor renders them best placed to undertake tre work
Fingnoial due diligence, taxation, internal audit, and actuanal services are not typically contracted to the external auditor No contracts in excess
of £20,000 can be awarded to the external auditor without prior approval from the Charman of the Committee or, in his absence, another
member of the Committee Non-audrt fees paid 10 the auditor are shown in note 3 on page 104 ard amounted to 11% of the audit fee

Governance

The review of the Group'’s Intenm report was the only sigrificant non-audit engagerent undertaken by the external auditor Given the
external auditor's detarled knowledge of the Group, the Audit Committee believes that it 15 i the interests of the Group that the external
audrtor performs this review

Internal audit

The internal audit programme 15 managed by the Group Head of Risk ang provides independent assurance cver the kay financial processes
and controls in operation across the Group The Group has engaged Ernst & Young LLP {"EY™) to provide certain internal audit services The
Commuttee reviewed and approved the annual interral audit plar before the start of the financial year and considered 1t appropriate t6 retamn
EY as an internat audit service provider The plan takes account of the Group’s strategic objectives and risks and provides the degree of
coverage deemed appropnate by the Committee

Additional assurance has beer obtained through control self-assessment internal auditors have received self-certficatior from every
plart and shared service certre that internal controls have been comphied with and noting any ren-compliarce A summary of results is
presented to the Committee The accuracy of returns i1s monitored by Internal Audit by venfication visits to a random sample of sites

The effectiveness of internal audit I1s reviewed and discussed annually with the Group Head of Risk and the EY engagement partner

An assessment questionnaire was completed by each member of the Committee, the Chief Financial Officer ard other senior finance
executives The views of senior operational management have alsc been canvassed The review takes into account the views of directors
and senior management on matters such as independence, proficiency, resourcirg and audit strategy, planning and methodology On the
appointment of a new engagement partner the Committee assesses the expenence ard expertise of the partner and other senior staff
members Audit quality 1s assured through a detalled review of each report beirg carned out by the Group Head of Risk, and a summary of
each report’s firdings being reviewed by the Audit Committee The review corfirmed that the internal audit fupction was independent and
objective and remained ar effective element of the Group's corporate governance framework

Committee evaluation

The Committee’s activities formed part of ar interral review of Board effectiveness which was undertaken in July and August 2077 and
approved by the Board in September 2017 There were ro matenal deficiercies noted in the review ard directors indicated a high level of
satisfaction with the work of the Committee Based on this, and as a resuit of the work dore durning the year, the Committee bas concluded
that it has acted in accordarce with its terms of reference and carned cut its respensibilities effectively

On behalf of the Audit Comrmuttee

I.B. Duncan
Chairmar of the Audit Committes
6 March 2018



Board report on remuneration

Committee membership No. of meetings 2017: 6 Main committee responsibilities

Director Attendance

E Lindgwist 6 m Responsibility for settirg the remuneratior pohcy for ail Executive

A M Thomson* 4 Directors and the Company’s Chairmar

I'B Duncan 8 ® Recommend ard monitar the level and structure of remuneratior for
P Larmor 5 S&RICTr Managerment

* Resigned mempership on 24 July 2017
m Review the ongoing appropnateness and relevance of the remuneratior

policy
m Appoint remuneration consultants

m Approve Lhe desigr of and determine targets for Executive Directers and
other senior executives’ performance-related pay schemes

m Review the design of all share ncentive plans for approval by the Board and
srarehciders Determine whether awards will be made on an annual basis

Chair’s letter

As Chair of the Remuneratior Commuttee (“the Committee”) and on behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present our Board
regort on remuneration for the 2017 financial year, in ine wath the requirements of the Large and Medium sized Companies and Groups
{Accourts and Reports) (Amendment) Regulatiors 2013

Structure of report

This year we have restructured our report to support greater transparency ard ease of use We have included a new ‘at a glance’ section
presenting the key outcomes for 2017 and have brought our 'mplemertation of policy in 2018" section to the frort of the report to make
it @asier for our readers to see our interded approach ir 2018 The main body of the report includes the followirg sections

m Section A: This describes how the existing poficy, approved at the 2016 AGM, was implemented in 2017,

® Section B: This summanses the remuneration policy of the Board with regard to the remuneration of the directars The full remuneration
policy, as approved by shareholders at the AGM in 2016, s also available on our website in the 2015 Anrual Report at
www bodycote com/en/investors/reports-and-results/2015 aspx

Wider workforce considerations and approach to remuneration

Our approach to remuneration emphasises simplicity, with strong alignment to our strategic priorities We recognise that the emerging
governance ervironment places an increased importance on corsideration of pay and condiions in the wider workforce Following the
anticipated retease of revisions 1o the UK Corporate Governarce Code, the Committes will review 11s approach to corsidenng wider
waorkforce reward, and how the views of employees and other stakeholders imput to our decisions

Business performance and incentive outcomes for 2017
Bodycote has performed strengly through 2017 with a top ine revenue growth of @ 8% at constart currencies The Group’s general
industrial markets performed particularly strongly, with a return to growth after a multi-year negative trend

Annual bonus

Improved profitabihity alongside tight controls on working capital and a focus on higher value added businesses have enabled us to deliver
a headiine operating profit of £123 9m (an increase of 24% on 2018) together with a headline operating cash flow of £1117m Our bonus
13 based on these metrics, and therefore performance was above maximum under the profit measure and urder the cash flow measure
The annual bonus 15 also, in part, based upon the achievemert of personal objectives which relate to the strategic focus of the Company
such as growth In emerging markets and Specialist Technologies, aganst which the CEQ performed at 84% of maximum, and the CFO at
70%

Owverall the bonus therefore paid out at 97 9% of maximum for the CEQ and 96 1% of maximum for the CFO, of which 35% and 23% for
the CEO and the CFO respectively, will be deferred into shares for three years, 1n line with our approved palicy for bonus deferral

Long term incentive

The Company's principal lorg term ircentive, the Badyeote Incertive Plan (BIP) 1s based on performance agairst return on capital ermnployed
{ROCE) and earnings per share (EPS) targets over a three year penod Our ongeing focus on operating efficiency, margins, and targeted
nvestments mn high growth markets has supported earnings development over the three year penod despite the challengirg environment
Strong returns have also been delivered, helped by the focus on capital investment in specialist markets and performance was achieved at
48 7% of maximum

The 2014 Co-Investment Plan (C!P)1s based on absolute total shareholder returns growth, and the TSR CAGR value of 5 4% we have
delivered over the three year performance penod s reflected in a vesting under this plan of 54 2% No awards have been made urder the
CIP since 2015, and so this s the penultimate vesting for this plan

Nete that Dawid Landless, our former Finance Director, will recelve pay-outs from these incertives pro-rated for the proportion of the
performance penod for which he was i the role
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Application of the policy for 2018
The Committee contirues to operate within the Remuneration Poley agreed at the 2016 AGM We set out below a bref overview of how

the policy will be applied ir the year ahead

u Base salaries: An increase of 2 9% will be applied to the base salarnes of the Group Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer with
effect from 1 January 2018, 1in ine with inflation

m Benefits and pension. There will be no changes to berefits and pensior during 2018

m  Annual bonus. The maximum bonus opportunity remains 200% of salary for the CEQ and 150% of salary for the CFO, wath 35% of any
bonus pard being deferred in shares for three years following conclusion of our transitional deferral arrargements The measures and
weightings used have been reviewed and we believe & bonus cersisting of 77% headline operating profit, 10% headline operating cash
management and 13% personal objectives continues to enable the annual borus to be aligned to the Company's strategy and ensures
our exacutives are focussed on delivery of improved proftability ard control on working capital

m Bodycote incentive Plan (BIP): Award levels will remain 175% of salary for Executive Directors Similarty, measures ard weightings
have beer reviewed and we believe the equal focus on returns and earnings 1s strorgly aligned with our strategic pnorities The growth
of our busingss ard our ability to deliver strong and sustainable returns to investors is based on delivery of an effectve deployment of
capital ir rapid growth areas and bolt-or acquisitions ROCE and EPS metrics wili ensure strorng alignment between these strategic
goals and the reward of our executives over the longer term

Non-Executive Director changes

Qn 30 March 2017 Alan Thomsen informed the Board of his intention to retire as Chairman and on 31 October 2077 we arnounced the
appomntment of Arne Quinn CBE as Non-Executive Chairman with effect from 1 January 2018 Alar Thomson stepped down as Chairman
and retired as a director or 31 Decemnber 2017 As of 1 Jaruary 2018 we have appointed ar additional Non-Executive Director, Lil Chahbaz

At the March 2017 meeting of the Remuneration Committee, it was agreed that the fee pad to the Non-Executive Charrmar would
be ircreased from its 2016 level of £169,125 to £200,000 In determining the appropriate fee lavel the Committee considered market
benchmarking against the FTSE 250 and other companies of comparable size ard complexity in line with our approved policy set out
ir Section B of this report The Commuttee sought to ensure the revised fee was sufhiciently competitive to support the attraction and
retention of a Chairman ot sutably high calibre and experierce to support our leadership as our Company contirues to evolve The fee
agreed as of 1 Jaruary 2018 for the new Non-Executive Chairmar, Anre Quinr, was £225,000

| trust the information presented ir this report enables our shareholders to understand both how we have operated our remuneration policy
over the year and the rationate for our decision makirg We remair fully committed to continuing ar open and transparent dialogue with our
shareholders | would welcome your views on the content of this report or ary other items you would bks to discuss and | look forward to
meeting you and arswenng ary guestiors you may have at the AGM

E. Lindqvist
Charr of the Remureration Committee
6 March 2018

This report has been structured to support the reader ir quickly ard easily accessing refevartirformation

Main body Page
Section A At a Glance 56
Section A Implementatior of Policy 57
Sectior A Annual Report on Remuneration 59
Section B Remuneration Policy 66




Board report on remuneration continued

Section A
Remuneration at a glance
This introduction provides a high-level overview of the remuneration received by our Executrve Directors Full detalls can be found in the

Annual Repert on Rermuneration

Single figure of remuneration for Executive Directors

Dividend

Total Total Total other Arryal equivalent
Financial salary/fees pension benefits bonus  Total BIP® Total CIP for BIP + Total
Ircumbent year {FO00) {£000) (E000)2 {£000) {£000) (ECQO) CIP {£000}
SCHarns 2017 527 132 27 1.031 485 34 44 2,280
2018 5N 128 23 191 - 19 3 875
D Yates' 2017 380 95 26 548 - - - 1,049
206 63 16 2 - — — - 81

Dominigue Yatas was apponted as Executive Diractor on 1 Navember 2016 and Chief Financia Officer on 2 January 2017 following the retrement ot D F
Landless

2 Other penefits consist of company car {or allowancel, ‘am 'y lever private medica. insurancs, salary supglerrant in leu of pension hife assurance cover ana
sick pay Certan other expenses mourred w pursut of bona fide busness act wities are, under UK tax regulations, treated as & taxable beneft v king, and the
director has received grossed up compensation *or thrs in order to leave him in a nautral oes.tion

a BIP value calcuiated by reference to the closing share price on & March 2018 of £3 11

Annual performance related bonus

The 2017 arnual bonus was based on three elements - headline operating prefit, readhne cash maragement ard persorai objectives
Stretehing targets were set in the context of the challenging market corditions we faced and the invaestments that were plarned in the year
Followirg strong performance 0 the year the bonus pad out at 8979% for the CEQ and 96 1% for the CFO, 35% and 23% of the award will
be deferred in shares for the CEQ and the CFO respectively The performance targets and actual performance are set out below

Outcome
Actual S$.C. Harris D.Yates
% of performance % of % of % of % of
award Threshold Target Maximum achieved max salary max salary
Group headling operating
profit 77% £99 Bm £103 6m £108 8m £123 9m 100% 164 % 100% 116%
Group headlire operating
cash flow 10% £97 4m £56 Om £96 O0m £1117m 100% 20% 100% 15%
Personal scorecard 13% 84% 22% 70% 14%
Total 98% 1896 % 96% 145%

Bodycote Incentive Plan (BIP)
BIP awards made in 2015 had a three-year performance period ending on 31 December 2017 with 50% of the award subject to satisfaction

of a ROCE target and 50% subject to the headline earnings per share {EPS) target Over this penod our skare price has increased by 41%,
demonstrating the returrs we have made 10 sharetolders This s reflected in the 48 2% of max vesting of the BIP The threshold and
maximum targets along with the vesting schedule are set out in the tables below

ROCE Headline EPS
Vesting of element Vesting of element
Performance target [% of maximum) Performance target (% of maximum)
Threshold performarce 18 7% 0% 45 Op 0%
Maximum performance 230% 100% 513p 100%
Performance achieved 198%* 48 3% 49 2p* 48%

* Note The head ne ZPS “igure and ROCE percentage used to calculate the BIP award exclude the exceptional £6 4rm gan from the US Tax Cuts and Jobs Act

2015 BIP gutcome

S C Harns 48 2% of maximum opportunity
D Yates nf/a
D F Landless 48 2% of maxmum opportunity {to be pro-rated)




Legacy Co-Investment Plan (CIP}

Unul 2015 Executive Directors were invited anrually to purchase shares up to 40% of tasic salary (net of tax) against which performance
based matching shares are granted on a 1 1 basis CIP awards are subject to an absolute TSR target No further awards will be made under
this plan The CIP awards made in 2014 had a three-year performance pernod ending on 30 April 2017 The absoiute TSR performance targets
applicable to this award are set out below

Absolute TSR performance target Vesting level
4% CAGR + CPI 50% {0 5 1 match)
10% CAGR + CPI 100% {1 1 match)

Over the three-year period, the Group achieved absolute annual TSR growth of 5 4%, reflecting the value we have delivered to our
shareholders over this pariod This performance resulted in a vesting of 54 2% under the plan The number ard vaiue of shares which
vested for S C Harng s set out on page 61 As D F Landless 1s ro longer an Executive Director, vesting urder this plan tc Fim s set out
urder paymerts to past direclors

Shareholding requirements

Executive Directors and other senior executives are expected, wathin five years of appointment, to bulld up a shareholding in the Company
For the purposes of this requiremert, only beneficially-owned shares and the value of deferred shares under the arnual borus will be
courted The table below sets out the mimimum shareholding requirements, as a percentage of salary, for the Chief Executive ard for the
Chief Firancial Officer, noting that Mr Yates has reached his holding requiremenrt

Shareholding requirements Minimum shareholding requirement Current shareholding’
SC Harns 200% 303%
D Yates 150% 481 %

1 At the 31 Decernber 2017 share prce

Implementation of the Remuneration Policy in 2018
The table below provides infermation on how our Remuneration Policy will be implemented 1n 2018

Element of pay Implementation for 2018

Total salary Base salanes are reviewed on an annual basis
S C Harris will receve a salary of £541 923 in 2018, an ncrease of 2 9% (2017 £526,650)
D Yates will receive a salary of £391,0201n 2018, an increase of 2 9% (2017 £380,000]

Note that Nor-Executive Director fees wall next be reviewed at the March 2018 meeting of the Committee, and the
outcome of this review will be disclosed in the followirg years' report

Pension and benefits No changes proposed

Executive Directors receive a salary supplement ir lieu of pension at a rate of 25% of base salary

Annual bonus No change to maximum opportunity 200% of base salary for CEQ, 150% of base salary for CFO

The performance measures and therr relative weightings also remain uncharged 77% operating profit, 10%
operating cash maragement ard 13% personal cbjectives

The Committee reviews the performance measures and targets on ar annual basis to ensure that they remain
approprately aligned to the overall business strategy but do not encourage excessive risk taking

The Committee has determined that parformance targets will not be disclosed on a prospective basis for reasons of
commercial sensitivity, but will be disclosed on a retrospective basis in next year's Annual Report on Remuneration
to the extent that the Committee determines that the measures are no longer commercially sensitive

Bodycote Incentive  No change to maximum cpportunity 175% of base salary for Executive Directors

Plan (BIP
(BIP) Tre performance measures and their relative weightings also remain uncharged 50% ROCE and 50% headline EPS

The targets for the 2018 BIP awards are disclosed below ard ensure that the Committee are able to deliver upper
quartile reward for upper quartile performance
BIP targets for 2018 award

Performance metric Headline EPS ROCE
Weightirg (% of total award) 50% 50%
Performance penod 3 years 3 years
Threshold performance 50p 17 %
Vesting level 0% 0%
Maximum performance 84p 23%
Vesting level Full vesting Full vesting
EPS underpin 42 5p

Durning the year, the Committee reviewed the BIP structure ard measures in the context of our strategic prnonties
over the coming three years The Committee deterrmined that the current framewaork contirues to appropriately
support dehvery of our strategic plan




Board report on remuneration continued

{llustration of application of remuneration poficy for 2018

Tre remureration package for the Executive Directors 1s desigred to provide an appropriate balance between fixed and variable
performance-related components The Committee 1s satisfied that the composition ard structure of the remureration package 1s
appropriate, clearly supports the Compary’s strategic ambitions ard does not incentivise Inappropriate nsx taking This s reviewed on an
arnual basis The composition and value of the Executive Diractors’ remuneration packages should they achieve below, at or above target
performance are set oLl In the charts below

mF xed *Bonus BIP
£3,000 460
£2 826,731
£2 500 €30
%
£2,005,000 £1,873,323
£1,785,234
2%
15600
£ 0% 8%
1 208,380
£° 060 0co 2%
£703 146
£514 419
E5C0.000
£y — -
Mimimum On-Target Maximum Minimum On-Targat Maxamum '
Group Chief Exacutive - Staphen Harris Chisf Financial Officer - Domimque Yates

For the purposes of the above analysis, the following methodology has been used

Fixed elements comprnse base salary and other benefits

— Base salary reflects the base salary as at 1 January 2018

- Benefis reflect berefits recerved in 2017 {including pension)

For on-target performance, an assumption of 60% of annual bonus 1s applied and vesting of 50% of the maximum for the BIP
No share price increase has been assumed or dividend remvestment

Fixed elements are salary, henefits and pension

Annual varable element i1s the annuat bonus botr cash and deferred shares

Long-term vanable element 1s the BIP award and dividend equivalents

. -
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Annual report on remuneration
This section prowvides detalls of remureration outcornes for Executive Directors who served during the firancial year ending 31 Decemnber
2017 This section of the report 1s audited and subjecl to ar advisory vote by shareholders at the 2018 AGM

Auditabie section
Total single figure table

Share
price
gau on
vesting
Total Total BiP value of 8IP
salary/ Total other Arrual at grant between
Finarcial fees pension  benefits’ borus Total BIP? price grant and Total CIP? Total
Incumbent year (£000) (£000) (£000) {£000) (£000) (£O00) vest date {£000} (£000)
Executive Directors
S C Hams 2017 527 132 27 1,031 526G 408 77 37 2,280
20186 51 128 23 191 3 — - 19 875
D Yates* 2017 380 95 26 548 - - - - 1,049
20186 63 16 2 - — — — — 81
Non-Executive Directors
A M Thomson® 2m7 200 - 1 - - - - - 2m
2018 169 - - - - - - - 169
P Larmon® 207 54 - 6 - - - - - 60
26 15 - - - - - - - 15
E Limndgwist 2017 63 - 2 - - - - - 65
2016 62 - - - - - - - 62
I B Duncan’ 2017 72 - - - - - - - 72
2016 67 - - - — — — — 67

MNotes accompanying the total sing:e figure table

1 Other beng®its consist of company car lor allowance), ‘amily leves private medical ‘nsurance, | fe assurance cover and s ck pay Certan other expenses
ncurred in pursurt of pona fide business activities are, under UK tax regulations, treated as a taxable beneft in kind, and the directors have received grossed
up compensation for this in order to leave him/her in a neutral pcsition

2 The 2017 figures relate to BIP awards made in 2015 w-th performance peniods endng on 31 December 2017 Shares vested as the targes were achieved
at 48 2% This inctudes divaend equivalents For 2017 dvidend equivalents for S C Harns were £40,621 The share price of £9 11 at close of markets on
5 March 2018 was used (0 est mate the value

3 The 2017 fgures redate to CIP awards made n 2014 with performance periods ending 30 Apne 2017 The sharas vested n May 2017 at a share price of 7775p
This includes dvidend equivaients For 2017 dividend equivalents for S C Harris were £3,284

s D Yatzs was apponted on 1 Noverber 2016 as Group Finance Director designate B F Landless retired on 1 January 2017 as Group Finance Director

5 A Thomson announced on 30 March 2017 hus intention 1o retire as Chairman and stepped down on 31 December 2017 A Thomson's fee was increased *rom
£169k to £200k dunng the year In deterrmming the approprate fee lavel the Committes considerad market benchmarking aga nst the FTSE 250 and other
companies of comparacie size and complexity n iing with our approved policy set out in Section B of th s report

& P _arron was appomted on 13 September 2016 as Non-txecutive Director

7 1B Duncan tock over as Senor Independent Director from R Rajagopa on 27 May 2016

Base salary

The base salaries of the Executive Directors are reviewed in January every year As described ir Section B Directors” Reruneration Policy.
a number of factors are taker into account when salanes are reviewed, including companies of a similar size and complexity, and the
ndividual's role, experience and performarce, as well as a consideration of marxet level salares payable in FTSE 250 The table below sets
out the base salary figures for 2018 alorg with comparative figures for 2017

Salary from Salary from
Name Position 1 January 2017 1 January 2018 Salary increase
SC Harmns Group Chief Executive £526,650 £541,923 2 9%
D Yates lappointed as Executive Director  Chief Financial Officer £380,000 £391,020 2 9%

or 1 November 2016 and CFC on
2 January 2017)

Pension
S5 C Harris and D Yates are entitled to a salary supplement in lieu of pension at a rate of 25% of basic salary In addition a death in service
benefit of eight times basic salary I1s payable
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Taxable benefits
The Group providaes other cash benefits and benrefits in kind to directors as well as siok pay and life nsurarce Thase wclude the provisior of

company car (or allowance) and family level private medical insurance

Other taxable
Name Car/car allowance Fuel Healthcare benefits*
5C Harns £17.560 £2 400 £1.476 £5,307
D Yates £12,000 £1,200 — £12,444

# Certan gther expenses incurced n pursut of hona fide husiness actiaties are, under UK tax regu ations, treated as a taxable venefit n knd, and the diractor
has recewed grossed up compensation for this in arder <o leave him/her 'n a neutral position

Incentive outcomes for 2017
Annual performance related bonus
The table below provides the details of the annual bonus awards received in respect of the Group and individual performances in the 2017

financial year

The annual bonus potertial for the penod to 31 December 2017 for Executive Directors was sphit 77% in respect of Group headlire
operating profit, 10% on Group headhne operatirg cash fiow and 13% on personal stralegic oojectives These performance cordibons
and their respective weightings reflected the Committee’s belief that any incentive compersation should be linked both to the overall
performance of the Group and to those argas of the business that the refevart indmduzal can directly influence

Stretching targets were set in the cantext of the challenging market conditons we faced and the irvestments that were planned in the year
Following strarg performance in 2017, the bonus pad out at 979% for the CEQ and 96 1% for the CFQ, 35% and 23% of the award will be
deferred in shares, for the CEQ and the CFO respectively The performance targets and actual performance are set out below

Outcome
Actual S.C. Harris D.Yates
% of performance % of % of % of % of
award Threshold Target Maximum achieved max salary max salary
Group headline cperating
profit 77% £99 6m £103 6m £108 8m £123 9m 100% 154 % 100% 116%
Group headiing operating
cash flow 10% £214m £96 Om £96 0m £1117m 100% 20% 100% 15%
Personal scorecard 13% 84% 22% 70% 14%
Total 98% 196 % 96% 145%

Note that in the 2016 Directors’ Remuneration Report the weighting of annual bonus measures were incorrectly disclosed The weightings above are the correct
waighting for 2017 and are unchanged on those used .n 2016

The Committee assessed the performance of the Group Chief Executive and Chief Finangial Officer against their personal objectives
For the CEQ these included targets relating to safety, focus on driving growth in emerging markets and in Specialist Technologies,
implementaticn of sales strategy, and maintaining market capitaltsatior For the CFO targets included implemertation of major IT and
finance process prejects The Committee concluded that personal strategic objectives were achigved at a level of 84% of the maximum
award for the CEQ The CFO achieved 70% of maximum

Bodycote incentive Plan {BIP)
BIP awards made in 2015 had a three-year performance period ending on 31 December 2017 after which they will vest immediately, with
50% of the award subject to satisfaction of a ROCE target and 50% subject to the headine earnings per share (EPS) target

Over this period our share price has increased by 41%, demonsirating the strength of tre returns we have made to shareholders The
threshold and raximurm targets along with the vesting schedule are s&t out in the tables below

ROCE Headline EPS
Vesting of element Vesting of element
Performance target (% of maximum) Performance target {% of maximum)
Threshold performance 18 7% 0% 45 Op 0%
Maxirmum performance 23 0% 100% 613p 100 %
Performance achieved 198%* 48 3% 49 2p* 48%

* Note The headling £PS figure and ROCE percentage used w calcuiate the BIP award exciude the exceptional £6 4m gain from the US Tax Cuts and Jobs Act

If headline EPS at the erd of the performance penod was below 41 8p, then no awards will vest Over the peniod, ROCE was 19 8% and the
headine EPS tigure for the year was 49 2p

a
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The table below sets cut the 2015 BIP outcome for S C Harns As D F Landiess is no forger an Executive Directer, the vesting under this
plar to fum (s set oLl under payments to past directors

2015 BIP outcome
S C Hams 48 2% of maximum cpportunity

The table below sets out a summary of shares vesting for BIP awards made ir 2015 for S C Harnis The clesing share price of £9 11 on
5 March 201815 used to estimate the value

Number End of Number

of shares performance % award of shares
Executive Award type Grant date granted petiod vesting vesting Vesting date
5 C Harns 2015 BIF 13 Apnl 2015 110,687 31 Dec 17 48 2% 53,317 12 Mar 18

Legacy Co-Investment Plan {CIP)

As described in Section B Directors’ Remureratior Policy, CIP awards are subject to an absolute TSR target Executive Directors were
invited to purchase shares up to 40% of basic salary (net of tax} agairst which performance based rmatching shares are grartedona 1 1
basis The CIP awards made in 2014 had a three-year performance penod ending or 30 Apnil 2017 ard vested or 31 May 2017 The absolute

TSR performance targets applicable to this award are set out below

Absolute TSR performance target Vesting level
4% CAGR + CPI 50% {0 5 1 match)
10% CAGR + CPI 130% (1 1 match)

Cwver the three-year period, the Group achieved absolute annual TSR growth of 5 4% This strong return to shareholders over the pencd 1s
reflected In the vesting of B4 2% Lnder the CIP Note that awards are no lorger made under the CIP

The number of shares which vested for 5 C Harnis 1s set out below As D F Landless is ro longer an Executive Director, vesting under this
plar to him 18 set out urder payments to past directors

Scheme interests awarded in the financial year
CIP awards granted during the year
Ng awards were made under the CIP — the final award was made in 2015 with vesting occurrng it May 2018 This plan no tonger features e

the Company's policy

BIP awards granted during the year

Awards corsisting of conditional shares were granted to both Executive Directors, eguivalent In value to 175% of their base salanes on 18
May 2017 and will vest after three years ir March 2020 The performance period will end on 31 December 2019 Details of the awards are

set out belfow Awards are subject to continued employmert and the achievement of BOCE and headline EPS growth performance targets,

35 summarnsed in the table below

The Committee has reviewed the performance targets and these have been revised appropriately 1o ensure that they remarin stretching
targets which underpin the Group's objectives Our long term targets reflect the cortinued challenges in the wider commercial environment
but the improved growth we expect to see foliowing our emphasis on operational efficercy and the expansicn of our footprint in rapid
growth ternitories

ROCE Headline EPS
Vesting of element (% Vesting of element (%
Performance target of maximum]) Performance target of maximum)
Thresheld performance 15 5% 0% 317p 0%
Maximum performarce 23 0% 100% 52 Op 100%

If headiinre EPS at the end of the perfoermance period is below 270p, ther no awards will vest The Comrmittee has decided that the
ROCE figure of 23% 1s a robust aspiration for the Group ir view of our expected programme of iInvestments, recognising the potental for
unintended corsequences in terms of short-term caprtal undennvestment for the business Dividend equivalents are payable In respact of

those shares that vest
The rumber of shares that were awarded, at a grant price of £8 02, to the Executive Directors during the year 1s set out below
Market price at date Face value at date of

Executive Award type Grant date Number of shares of award award
SC Harris 2017 BIP 18 May 2017 111,569 7605 848,482
D Yates 2017 BIP 18 May 2617 82 916 £7605 £63,576
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Chairman and Non-Executive Directors’ fees
Fees were reviewed against comparable companies of similar size ard were effective as of 1 January 2017 The fee payabte to the Chairman
of the Board and other Nor-Executive Directors were as follows

% increase

in actual
% increase in fee paid to
Individual Roles Fee for 2017 Fee for 2016 NED role fees individual
Eva Lindgvist ® Non-Executive Director £63,345 £61,500 3% 3%
m Charr of Remuneration Committee
m Member of Audit, Chair and Normiration Committees
lan Duncan m Nor-Executive Director £72 318 £66,582 3%* 9%
a Char of Audit Committee
m Member of Audit, Chair ard Norination Committees
m Senior Independert Director
Patnck Larmon ® Non-Executive Director £54,372 £52.788 3% 3%
u Member of Audit, Chair and Normination Committees
Alan Thomson m Non-Executive Chairman £200.000 £169.125 18% 18%

Non-Executive Director fees were ircreased for 2017 based on market berchmarang against Non-Executive Director fees in the FTSE 250
and other companies of similar size and complexity ir ine with the Policy set out in Sectior B of this report

The Chairman fee for Alan Thomson was increased by 18% In determinming the appropriate fee level the Committee considered market
benchmarking aganst the FTSE 250 and other companies of comparable size and complexity in line wath cur approved policy set out In
Section B of this report

* At the 2016 AGM lan Duncan was appointed Senior Independent Director (SID) s fee for 2016 tharefare represents a pro-rated fee covenng SID

responsibdiues for 7 months of 2016 The 9% increase shown above represents the diference between this pro-rated fee and the total annual fee inciua ng
the SID role for 2017 His annual sed fee was 'ncreased by 3% 1n ine with the Company s other Non-Executive Dractors

At 31 December 2017 the aggregate arnual fee for all Non-Executive Directors, ircluding the Chairmar, was £390,035, which i1s below the
maximum aggregate fes allowed by the Company’s Articles of Association of £500,000 p 2

Board changes in 2017

Payments for loss of office

No payments for ioss of office were made in the year Dawid Landless resigned as an Executive Director as of 1 January 2017 The
Remuneration Committee determined that Mr Landless would be treated as a good leaver, and all payments made to Mr Landless were
withir the approved loss of office policy set out in Sectior B

Payments to past directors
In March 2017 David Landless received a bonus payment relating to the year ending 31 December 2016 amounting to £68,128 This was in
ine wath our appreved policy and related to tus full year of service 1in 2016, but was pad to Mr Landless in 2017

Under a consultancy agreemert follewing cessation. David Landless agreed to be avallable to the Company duning January and Fetruary
2017 to support Dominigue Yates and Stephen Harris through this transitioral perod ard receved a fee of £6,000 1n exchange for his
services during the pericd No other cash payments were made to Mr Landless

In June 2017 Dawvid Landless receved dividend equivalents in connection with the pro-rsted vesting of the 2014 CIP amourting to £3,386

David's 2015 Bodycote Incertive Plar (BIP) and Co-Investmert Plan {CIP) awards are 1o be pro-rated to his leaving date and are subject to
actievement of performance conditiors at the end of the three year performance period The 2016 BIP award has lapsed No CIP awards
were made in 2016 or 2017

2014 CIP {vested on 31 May 2017)

Over the three-year pernod, the Group achieved absolute TSR growth of 5 4% This performance resuited in the TSR targets being achieved
at a level of 54 2% This meant that the number of pro-rated shares which vested for DF [andless was 4,497 at a share price of £778 at the
date of vesting on 31 May 2017

2015 BIP (to vest on 12 March 2018)

The tables below set out the 2015 BIP award outcome for D F Landless and a summary of shares vesting for BIP awards made in 2015 The
clasing share price of £9 11 on 5 March 2018 1s used to estimate the value

2015 BIP outcome

D F Landless 48 2% of maximum opportunity (to be pro-rated)

E Badycoate plc




Number

Number End of of shares

of shares performance % award vesting {pro-
Executive Award type Grant date granted period vesting rated) Vesting date
DF Landless 2015 BIP 13 Aprit 2015 70,691 31 Dec 17 48 2% 22,71 12 Mar 18

He also receved dividend equivalents in connection with the 2015 BIP vesting amounting to £17253

Directors’ shareholdings

As described in Section B Directors’ Remuneration Policy, the Board operates a shareholding retention policy under which Executive
Directors and other semior executives are expected, within five vears of appointment, to bulld up a shareholding it the Compary For the
purposes of this requirement, only beneficially-owned shares and the net of tax value of deferred shares under the annual bonus (as they
are not subject to further performance conditions) will be courted

The sharehoiding requirement for the CEQ 1s 200% of salary and for the CFQC 15 150% of salary

The interests in ordirary shares of directors and therr connected persors as at 31 December 2017 inciuding any interests awarded under
the annual bonus, CIP or BIP are presented below along with whether Executive Directors have met the shareholding guidehnes \We note
that shares under the annual bonus and the BIP are corditioral on cortinued employment untl vesting

As at 12 March 2018, the interests of the directors were unchanged from those at 31 December 2077

Outstanding scheme interests
Counted towards the {not counted towards
shareholding requirement shareholding requirement}

Deferred shares
to be granted Shares subject Shares subject Shareholding

Beneficially under the to performance to performance requirement
owned annual bonus  conditions BIP! conditions CIP' met’

Executive Directors
S C Harns (200% rmimmum holdirg
reguirement} 174,980 £360.987 374,023 5.113 Yes
D Yates (150% mintmum holding
requirgment) 200,000 £12787¢C 82,918 - Yes
Non-Executive Directors
{No holding requirement)
A M Thomson 53,012 - - nfa
E Lindgwist 12,200 - - rfa
| B Durcan - - - nfa
P Larmor 5,000 - - n/a
A Quinn {appoirted 1/1/18) 1,000 — - nfa
L Chahbaz (appointed 1/1/18) - — — n/a

F-gures relate to unvested awards under the BIP and the CIP
7 Atthe 31 December 2017 share orice

Summary of outstanding share awards, including share awards granted during the year - Executive Directors
The interests of the Executive Directors in the Company's share schemes as at 31 December 2017 are as follows Note that ro CIP award
was made in 2016 or 2017 with the last award being granted i 2015

Interests Market Market

as at At 31 price at value at
1 January Awarded Vestedin Lapsedin December award date of Vesting
2017 in year' year? year 2017 date vesting date
Badycote Incentive S C Harns 371,763 111,569 - 109,299 374,023 £761 — March 20620
Plan (BIF) DF Landless® 237423 - - 166,732 70,691 - - n/a
D Yates 0 82,916 - - 82,916 £761 — March 2020
Legacy Bodycote S C Harns 13,160 - 4 361 3,686 5,113 - £778 May 2017
Co-lrvestmert Plan D F Landless? 14,448 - 4,497 3,801 6,150 - £778  May 2017

(CIP}

1 Mig-market ¢ osing price of a share on the day oefore the BIP 2017 grant was £783 The face value of the award to S C Harr 5 was {879 721 The face value
o' the awarg *o D Yates was £653,793

; As performrance conditions were not met, the 2014 BIP awara did not vest CI7 The awards that vested dunng the yvear vested at 54 2% idetals of the
relevant performance condinions are set on page 611

1 [etired a5 Group Finance Director on 1 January 2017 D Yates apponted Chief F nancial OFficer on 2 January 2017

End of auditable section

Governance
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Fees retained for external Non-Executive Directorships

To broaden the expenence of Executive Directors, the pasition of Non-Executive Director may be held ir other companies, provided that
permissior 1s sought Ir advance Any external appointment must not conflict with the directors’ duties ard cormmitments to Bodycote
plc 5 C Harris has held the position of Non-Executive Director of Mond ple since T March 2011 and in accordance with Group policy he
retained fees for the year of £95,771

Comparison of overall performance and pay

Tre chart below shows the value over the last mine financial years of £100 invested 1in Bodycote plc compared wath that of £100 irvested
n the FTSE All Share Industnal irdex The Committee has chosen this index as itis a broad market index of which Bodycote pic1s a
constituent and refiects the wider sector in which we operate Tre points plotted represent the values at each financial vear end

Historicai TSR Performance

Growth in the value of a hypothetical £100 holding over nine years

FTSE All Share Industrial Index comparison based on spot values
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The table below shows how total remuneration for the Group Chief Executive, S C Harns, developed over the last nine years
2009 2010 20m 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Single figure of remuneration £°000 531 906 3,252 3,840 3.089 1.803 77 875 2,280
Annual variable elemert award

(as a % of maximum) opportunity 5% 98% 95% 73% 46% 73% 20% 19% 98%
Long-term incentive vestirg

{as a % of maximum) 0% 0% 100% 100% 99% 44% 0% 0% 48%

Percentage change in remuneration of Group Chief Executive

The table below sets out the percentage changs in the Group Chief Executive’s remuneration from the prior year compared to the
average percentage change in remureration for the senior management population The Remuneration Committee has chosen the senior
managerment population as the wider global employee population operates uader ar incomparable pay structure The senior management
population 1s the most relevant and comparable population and 1s primanly based in the UK

Senior management

Chief Executive Officer population

2017 (£000) 2016 {£000) % change Average % change

Salary 527 511 30% 37%
Annual bonus 1,031 191 439 8% 50%*
Total 1,558 702 122 0% 4 0%*

*Average senior managernent population benus change 1s based on the maxmum potential bonus payout

Relative importance of pay spend
The table helow shows the total expenditure in relation to staff and employee costs and distributions to shareholders in 2016 and 2017

2017 206
£m fm % change
Staff and employee costs 283.8 2395 18 5%
Distributicrs to shareholders 30.6 481 {36 4)%

n
m Bodycote plc ) -




Committee membership
Durning 2017 the Comrmittee was chared by £ Lindgvist The Committee also compnsed A M Thomson {retired from the Committee on
24 July 2017}, 1 B Durcar ard P Larmoen

The Commuttee's full terms of reference are available or the Group's website No Committee members have any personal finarcial interast
{other thar as a shareholder), confiict of interest, cross-directorships or day-to-day involvemert in the running of the business We set

out below the members of the Committee, the number of meetings ach Committee member attended dunrg the year ard the mamn
responsibilities of the Committee

Commiittee activities
During 2017 the Committee met 6 times to consider, amongst other mMatters

Theme Agenda items

Best practice m Tre Group's Remureration Policy, discussiors and feedback from the Group's AGM in 2017 and
the Corporate Governarce Code and Investment Management Associatior {IMA) quidelines on
executive remureration

Review of the current UK corporate goverrarce ervirorment ard the implications for the Group

Implementation Report m Consideration ard approval of the Implementatior Report to be put to shareholders and as
surnmarised in Sectior A of the Board report on remuneration

Executive Directors’ m Basic salarnies payable to each of the Executive Directors
and senior executives’

. m The arnual bonus and payments for the year ended 31 December 2017
remuneration

® The arnual bonus structure ard performance targets for the year ended 31 December 2018
m The awards ard vestings made under the Bodycote Incentive Plan {'BIPY)

m The vestirg made under Co-irvestrmenrt Plar 'CIF’} dunrg the vear

& Pension arrangements for senior executives

Fee for incoming Chairman

Reporting m Corsideration and approval of the Board repert on remuneration

Advisers to the Committee

Tte Committee was advised by Pw(C during 2017 on remuneration matters including providing advice on matters under consideration by the
Committee, updates or good practice, legislative requirements and market practice PwC were appointed by the Remuneration Committee
ir July 2015 following a competitive tender process Pw(C's fees far the year, hased or the quantity and complexity of the work undertaker,
amounted to £44.000 PwC also urdertakes tax and accolnting work for the Company PwC is a fourding member of the Remuneration
Consultants Group and voluntarly operates under the code of conduct :r refation to executive remuneration consulting in the UK The Code
of Conduct car be found at remuneraticnconsultantsgroup com The Remuneration Commuttee 1s satisfied that the advice provided or
exacutive remuneration s objective and independent, and that no confhct of interest anses as a result of these services The Committee
reviews the objectivity and indeperdence of the advice It receives from Pw(C at a private meeting each vear Legal advice was provided by
Eversheds and fees amounted to £0 1m All fees are based on the quantity and complexity of work urdertaken

The Committee also received assistance from the Group Chief Executive and Group Company Secretary, although they do not participate
In discussions relatng to the settirg of their own remuneration The Committee in particular consulted with the Group Chief Executive and
received recommendations from bim in respect of his direct reports

Statement of shareholder voting
The table below displays the voting results on the remuneration resoluticn at the 2017 AGM as well as the result of the Remunreration Policy

at the 2016 AGM

2017 Board
report on 2016 Directors’
remuneration (% Remuneration
votes)  Policy (% votes)
Votes cast 86% 83%
FOT 960/0 85%
Against 4% 15%
Number of abstertions 2,034,367 596,122

E. Lindqvist
Chair of the Remuneratior Committee
6 March 2018

Governance
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Section B: Directors’ Remuneration Policy
Remuneration Policy
Bodycote's Executive Remureration Policy 1s Lo attract ard motivate our senjor executive team to execute our strategy and deliver value to

oLr shareholders while ensuning the Group pays ro more than 1s recessary

\r order to ensure cortinued algnmenrt between remuneration ard the evolving strategic direction of our business, a revised policy was
approved by our shareholders at the AGM in May 2016 Tris policy. apphcable from the date of the 2016 AGM, i5 set out below

Discretion

The Commuttee has discretion i several areas of policy as set out in this report The Committee may also exercise operational and
adrinistrative discretions under reievant plan rules approved by shareholders as set out in those rules In addition, the Committee
has the discretion to amend policy with regard to minor or adrministrative matters where it would be, in the opirior of the Committee,
dispropartionate to seek or await shareholder approval

Executive Remuneration Policy
The table below sets out the key components of Executive Directors’ pay packages, mcluding why they are used and how they are operated

N practice

Current Remuneration Policy table

Element and how Maximum

it supports our opportunity under the

strategy Operation of the element element Performance measures
Base salary Base salaries for Executive Directors are Whilst the Commitiee None

To award competitve  typically reviewed annually {or more frequently  has not set a maxmum

salaries to attract i specific arcumstances recessitate thisi by level of salary, ordinarly,

and retain the talent the Committee ir December each year salary increases wilf

required to execute not exceed the average

Salary levels are set and reviewed taking mio

increase awarded to
account a number of factors including

other Group employees

the strategy while
ensuring the Group
pays no more than s

m Role expenence an dormarce of th In m
necessary ole, experne d pe arce e creases may be

executive above this level ir
certair exceptional
circumstances, which
rmay, for example,
nclude

m The Company's guidelings for salaries for ali
employees in the Group for the forthcoming
year

m  The competitivensess of total remuneration
assessed against FTSE 250 comparies
and other companies of similar size ard
complexity, as approprate m A new Executive

Directer who 1s being
moved to market
positioning over time

® Increase In scope or
responsibility

m Bodycote pic -



Element and how
it supports our

Maximum
opportunity under the

strategy Qperation of the element element Performance measures
Benefits The Company provides a rarge of cask The Commitiee has rot Nore
Provides market- berefits and benefits in kind to Executive set @ maximum level of
competitive benefits at  Directors in line with market practice benefit, giver that the
an approprate cost These include the provisior of company car cost of certain benefits

{or allowance), private medical insurance, will deperd on the

short- and long-term sick pay and death in individual’s particular

service cover This will also extend to the circurmstances However

rembursement of taxable work-related benefits will be set at

expenses, such as travel and relocation an appropriate level

The provision of other berefits payable to against marxet practice

an Executive Director 1s reviewed by the ard naeds for specific

roles and individual
Commuttee on an annual basis to ensure
circumstances

appropriateness ir terms of the type ard level

of benefits provided

The Compary prowides a long-term savings

vehicle inte which the Executive Directors

rmay elect to walve a proporticn of persion

allowance

In the case of non-UK executives the

Committee may consider providing additional

aflowances in hne with relevart market

practice
Pension The Group operates a defined contribution Company contribLution {or  Nore

Provides a market-
competitive benefit
i order to attract the
talent required to
execute the strategy
and provide a market-
compelitive levef of
provision for post-
retirement income

scherme Executive Directors are provided
with a contribution to this schere or a cash
allowance of equivalent value Base salary is
the orly pensicnable element of remuneratior

The same general approach applies to all
employees, although contribution levels vary
by senicrity

cash eguivalert) of up to

30% of salary

Governance
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Element and how
it supports our
strategy

Operation of the element

Maximum
opportunity under the
element

Performance measures

Annual bonus

To icentivise delivery
of corporate strategy
on an annual basis
and reward defivery of
supertor performance
The deferred

portion of the bonus
supports longerterm
shareholder alignment

The level of bonus paid each year is
determined by the Committee after the year
end based or performance against targets

A portior of the annual bonus s pad i cash
shortly after the financial year end with the
rermainirg portion deferred for three years in
Bodycote shares (see detalls below) Vesting
of the deferred shares s not subject to further
performarce conditiors (please see the 2016
AGM Notice for a summary of the Plan)

Dividerd equivalents are payable in respect of
the shares which vest

Frarm 2018 onwards, 35% of any bonus
earned 1s deferred into shares for three years,
conditioral on continued employment until
vesting date

Transttional treatment applies to deferrai for
2016 and 2017 For 2016, any porus earned
over 130% of base safary s deferred into
shares

For 2017 15% of any bonus paid up to 2 value
of 130% of base salary 1s deferred, with
bonus earned over 130% alsc deferred in fulf
The deferral above 130% of salary would be
capped so that no more thar 35% of the total
bonus 1s deferred

Malus provisions apply for the duration of the
performance pernod and to shares held under
deferral

Clawback provisions apply to cash amounts
paid for three years following payment

Malus andfor clawback may be appled in the
fellowing scenanos

m Discovery of a matenal misstaterent
resuiting in an adjustment in the audited
accounts of the Group or any Group
Cormpany;

m The assessment of any performance
conditien or condtion was based or error,
or iraccurate or misleading information,

m The discovery that any information used
1o determine the cash payment under the
bonus or the number of shares subject to
deferral was based on error, or inaccurate
or musleading information, of

m Action or conduct of @ participant which
amounts to fraud or gross misconduct

The Committee beheves that the rules of the
Plan provide sufficrent powers to enforce
malus and clawback where required

The maximum potential
15 200% of base salary
for the CEQ ard 150%
of base salary for the
CFO and other Executive
Directars

At the threshold
performarce level there
will rormally be no
mare thar 30% vesting
Awards commence
vesting progressively
from this point witk
maximum perfarmance
resulting ir awards
vastng 1n full

The Committee considers the
performance corditiors selected for the
annual bonus to appropniately support
the Company's strategic objectives ard
provide a balance between generating
profit and cash to enable the Group to
pay a dwidend, reward 1ts employees
and rmake future iIrvestments, and
achigve other strategic goals to drive
lorg-term sustainable return

Tre weighting of the measures and
specific targets are reviewed on an
annual basis to ensure alignment to
strategy and are set t¢ be in hne witk
budget Information on measures and
weights that wiil apply for specrfic years
will be inciuded ir the refevant year's
Annual Report on Remuneration

At least 70% of the ponus vl be
based on the achievernent of Group
financial targets

The Committee retairs discretion

ir exceptioral circumstances to
change performance measures and
targets and the weightings attached
to performance measures part-way
through a performance year if there s
a significant and material event which
causes the Committee tc believe the
original measures, weightings and
1argets are no ionger appropriate

Discretion may alse be exercised in cases
where the Committee beheve that the
bonus outcome 1s not & far and accurate
reflection of business performance The
exercise of this discretion may result in

a downward or upward movement m

the amount of bonus earned resulting
from the apphcahor of the performance
measures

Any adjustments or discretion
applied by the Commuttea wall be
fully disclosed in the followang year's
Remureration Report

The Committee 1s of the opimion that
given the commercial sensitivity ansing
in relation to the detaled financial
1argets used for the annua! bonus,
discfosing precise targets for the annual
bonus plan i advance would not be in
shareheldes inierests Actual targets,
performance achieved and awards
made will be published at the end of the
performance penads so shareholders
can fully assess the basis for any pay-
outs urder the annual bonus

n
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Element and how
it supports our
strategy

Operation of the element

Maximum
opportunity under the
element

Performance measures

Bodycote Incentive
Plan (BIP) 2016

fo incentivise

dehvery of long-term
strategic goals and
shareholder value and
aid retention of semor
managemaeant

Awards will be granted annually under the
Bodycote Ircertive Plan {please see the
2016 AGM Notice for a summary of the Plan)
subject to a three year vesting penocd and
stretching performance conditions measured
over three years

Dividend eguivalents are payable in respect of
the shares which vest

The Committee retains the discretion in
exceptional circumstances to adjust the
vesting cutcome or the targets for awards

as long as the adjusted targets are ro less
stretching In such an event the Committee
will consult with major sharetoiders and waill
clearly explair the rationale for the charges in
the report on remuneration

Discrehion may alsc be exercised In cases
where the Committee believes that the
outcome 1s not a fair and accurate reflection
of business performance The exercise of
this discretion may result in g dowrward or
upward movement in the amount of the LTIP
vesting resulting from the application of the
performance measures

Malus prowvisiors apply for the duration of the
performance period

Clawback provisions apply to amounts for two

years following vesting

Malus and/or clawback may be apphad ir the

following scenartos

a Discovery of a matenal misstatement
resulting in an adjustment in the audited
accounts of the Group or ary Group
Comparny,

m The assessment of any performance
condition or condition was based on error,
or inaccurate or misleading information,

m The discovery that any information used to

determine the number of shares subject to
an award was based on error, or inaccurate

or musleadirg infermation, or

m Action or conduct of a partcipant which
amounts to fraud or gross misconduct

The Committee believes that the rules of the
Plan provide sufficiert powers to enforce
malus ard clawback where required

The maximurm face value
of an award which may
be granted under the
pian in any year s up to
175% of base salary for
the Executive Directors

At the threshold
performance level there
waill normally be ro more
than 0% vesting Awards
commence vesting
progressively from this
poirt with maximum
performance resulting in
awards vestirg in full

Awards vest based on performance
over three years against performance
measures chosen by the Commitiee
to align with business and strategic
priornties

The measures for Executive Directors
are

m 50% ROCE
m 50% readline EPS

In addition, the vesting of awards may
only occur +f headline EPS 1s above &
defired hurdle level

The Commuiiee considers thase
performance corditions selected for
the BIP to currently appropriately
underpin the Company’s strategic
cbiectives Due to the rature

of the Company's actvities the
Committee consider ROCE te provide
shareholders with an approprate
measure of how well the Company

15 perforring and 1s being managed,
while EPS provides a measure of the
level of value created for shareholders
ROCE and EPS are our top two KPls
as shown on page 16 of the Annual
Report

Tre Cormmittee may adjust the
perforrmance measures attaching to
awards and the weighting of these
measures If it feels this will create
greater ahgnment with business ard
strategic priorities

A sigmificant ¢change to the measures
used would only be adopted following
consultatior with major shareholders

The targets for the performance
measures are reviewed on an annual
basis to ensure alignment 1o strategy
and are set to be ir ine with budget
Detalls of performanrce targets will be
included In the relevant year's Annual
Report on Rermuneration

Governance



Board report on remuneration continued

Element and how
it supports our
strateqy

Operation of the element

Maximum
opportunity under the
element

Performance measures

Shareholding
requirement

To provide alignment
of intergst between
carticipants and
shareholders

The Board operales e shareholding retention
policy under which Executive Directors are
expected, within five years from appointment,
to bulld up a skareholding in the Company

The CEO and CFO

(and other Executive
Directors) are requived
1o bulld up a holding of
200% ard 150% of base
salary respectively

None

Legacy awards - Co-
investment Plan (CIP)
To provide a ik
hatween short- and
fong-term incentive
arrangements and

to provide further
alignment with
shareholders

Final award made in
2015

The CIP provides for the grant of awards

of performance based matching shares to
participarts on an anrual basis in a Mmaximum
ratio of 1 1 to the gross investmenrt made in
deferred shares The deferred shares must be
Feld for at least three years The vesting of
matching skares will be based on sharg price
related performance conditions as deterrined
by the Committee

Dividend equivalents are payable i respect of
the matchirg shares which vest

Executive Directors

are nvited annually 1o
purchase stares up to
40% of basic salary (net
of tax) against which
pertormance bassed
matching shares are
grarted on a1 1 basis

The matching shares are subject to
an absolute Tota! Shareholder Returr
(TSR} performarce measure which s
expressed as percertage Compound
Anrual Growth Rate (CAGRI) in excess
of CPI

B Threskold performance results in a
Q571 mateh

B Maximum performance resuits ina
11 match

Legacy awards -
Bodycote Incentive
Plan (BIP) 2006

To incentivise
defivery of long-term
shareholder value

Auds retention of
senior management

Final award made in
2015

Awards are grarted annually under the
Bodycote Incentive Plan subject to a three year
vesting pencd and stretching performance
conditions measurad over three years

Shares delvered following the vest of ar
award attract additional dividerd shares
calculated cn the basis of the re-investment
back into shares of the dividend that would
have been recerved had the shares been
beneficially held

The Committee retains the discretior in
exceptional circumstances to adjust the
vesting outcome or the targets for awards

as long as the adjusted targets are no less
stretchirg In such an event the Committea
will consult with major shareholders and wiil
clearly explain the rationale for the charges in
the report on remuneration

Malus provisions apply for the duration of the
performance period and to shares held under
deferral

The maximurn face value
of an award which may
be granted under the
plar in any year 1s up to
175% of base salary for
the Executive Directors

At the threshotd
performance level there
will normally be no more
than 0% vesting Awards
commence vestirg
progressively from this
pont with rmaxmurm
performance resulting in
awards vesting in full

Awards vest based on performance
over three years against performance
measures chosen by the Commitiee
to align with busiress and strategic
prionties For recent grants, the
measures for Executive Directors have
been

® 50% ROCE

m 50% headlne EPS

Ir addition, the vesting of awards may
only occur If headline EPS 1s above a
defined hurdle tevel

Notes to the Remuneration Policy table
The Committee reserves the right 1o make any remuneration payments and payrments for loss of office notwithstanding that they are not
0 hine with the policy set out on pages 66 to 75 where the terms of the payment were agreed {1 before the policy came into effect or (1)

at a time when the relevant individual was not a director of the Company and, in the opiion of the Commuttes, the payment was not in
consideration for the individual becoming a director of the Company For these purposes “"payments” include the Committee satisfying
awards of vanable remuneration and, in relatior to ar award over shares, the terrms of the payment being “agreed” at the time the award 1s

granted

Executive Directors’ rernuneration 1s reviewed anrually and takes into account a number of factors The Company adopts a policy of
positioning fixed pay for all its employees at a level which 15 competitive to market but which does not require the Company to pay any
more than 1s necessary Senior and high performing individuals at ail levels and across alf functions within the organisation are invited to
participate in both arnual and leng-term incertive arrangements, which are similar to those offered to the Executive Directors to ensure
reward strategy is calibrated to provide substantive reward only on achievement of superior performance

m Bodycote plc



Non-Executive Director {(NED) fee policy

The policy or Non-Executive Director (INED) and Charrman fees 1s set out below

Element and how it

supports our strategy Operation of the element

Maximum opportunity under the

element Performance measures

The fees for the non-executlives are
determined by the Chairman and the
Group Chief Executive

Fees for Non-Executive
Directors

To attract NEDs who
have a broad range

of expenence and

skilfs to oversee the
implementalion of our
strategy

The tee for the Chairman is reviewed
by the Board in the abserce of the
Chairman

Tre Chairman and non-executive fees
are reviewed or an annual basis Wher
reviewing fees, the pnmary source

of comparative market data 1s FTSE
250 companies and other compartes
of similar size and complexity, as
appropriate

The fees for the Chairmar and non-
executives are set at a level that wili
attract indnduals with the necessary
experience and ability to make a
significant contribution to the Group’s
affars The fees reflect the time
commitment and responsibiities of the

Fees for Non-Executive Directors for None
the following year are set outin the
statement of impiementation of policy

on page 57

The Company's policy 18 that the
Charrman and Non-Executive Directors
receive a fixed fee for their services
as members of the Board and its
Committees The fee structure may
also include additional fees for chainng
a Board Commuttee ard/for further
responsibilities (for example, Senior
independent Directorship)

I lime with the Articles of Association,
accumulative total fees for Non-
Executive Directors are capped at
£500,000p 2

@
roles 2
s
The Chairman and Non-Executive §
Drrectors are not entitled to ary &
pension or other employment berefits
or to participate in ary incentive
scheme
Appropriate berefits may be provided
to non-executives and the Chairman
from time to time The Company will
pay reascnable expenses incurred
by the Mon-Executive Directors and
Chairman and may settle any tax
incurred in relation to these
Fees retained for extemal Non-Executive directorships
To broaden the expenence of Executive Directors, they may hold positions in other companies as Non-Executive Directors provided that
permission 1s sought In advance Any external appoirtment must not conflict with the directors’ duties and commitments to Bodycote plc
Statement of consideration of employment conditions elsewhere in the Group
The Compary adopts a policy of positioning fixed pay for all its employeeas at a level which 15 competitive 1o marxet but which does not
require the Company to pay any more thar 1s necessary Senior and high-performing individuals at all levels and across all functions witkmn
the organisation are nvited 1o partictpate - botk annual and long-term incentive arrangements, simiar to the Executive Directors to ensure
reward strategy 1s calibrated to provide substantive reward only or achievament of sugenor performance
The Committee doas not consLlt directly with employees when formulating Executrve Director pay policy However, it does take into
account information provided by the Human Resouwrces function on pay ard condittons across the Compary, ard considers these as part of
its discussions and decision making, alorg with feedbac< from employee satisfaction surveys
In formulating Executive Director pay policy, tre Committee receives information on all employee pay conditiors througrout the Group The
Committee does not Lse any remuneration comparisen metrics
We recognise the Government’s recent commentary in this area, and will ensure that our approach to consideration of employee views ard
pay and conditiors across the Company reflect approprate legislative and corporale governance requirements
|



Board report on remuneration continued

Statement of consideration of shareholders’ views

The Committee always welcomas the views of shareholders in respect of pay policy as well as those views expressed or behalf of

sharenciders by irer respective proxy adwisers The Cormmitiee docurnents all rernureration refated comments made at the Company’s

AGM ard feedback receved dunrg consuitatior with shareholders throughout the year Any feedback received is fully considered by the |

Committee

tn developing the proposed Rermureratior Policy for 2018 and beyond the Remureratior Committee ergaged extensively wath the
Cormpany's xey shareholders and therr representative bodies Through this process the Remuneration Committee took on board the
feedback recewed and refined the proposed Remuneration Policy as appropnate to ensure it meets the expectations of our shareholders

Approach to recruitment remuneration

When recruiting revw Executive Directors, the Company’s policy 1S to pay what 1s necessary (o attract individuals with the skills and
experience appropriate to the role to be filled, taking Into account remuneration acrass the Group, including other senwor executrves, and
that offered by other FTSE 250 companies and cther companies of similar size and complexity New Executive Directors will generally be
appowied or remuneration packages with the same structure and pay elemerts as described in the pay pohcy table on pages 86 1o 70
Each element of remuneration to be included in the package offered to a new director would be corsidered separately and collectively i

{his contexi

Component

Policy

General

The Company’s policy 1s to pay what 1s necessary to attract individuals with the skills and experience
approprate 1o the role to be fited |

The inwial notice pencd may he longer than the Campany's one year palicy (LR to a maximem of twa years)
However, this will reduce by one month for every month served, urtil the Cornpany’s policy pesition Is reached

Base salary

Base salary levels will be set at an appropnate level to recruit the best candidate in corsideration of the new
recrut’s extsting saiary, location. skills and expernence and expected contnibution to the new role, the current
salanes of other Executive Directors in the Company and current market levels for the role

Cther benefits

Other benefis will be considered ir hght of the provision in place for the other Executive Directorst 1f 11150
the best interests of the Company and shareholders, the Committee may consider providing additional benefts,
potentially including relocation costs, tax equalisation or advisers’ fees

Pension

Pensior will be considered in light of the retrement arrargerments which are in place for the other Executive
Directoris) with a contrnibution tevel considered by the Commuttee 1o be appropnate in hght of the new recruit’s
package as @ whole, market practice at the time and on a broadly equivalent basis to existing provisiors for
cther executives

Annual bonus

Normal awards will be made under the annual bonus pfan in ling with the Remuneration Policy The Executive
Director may be mvited 1o participate in the bonus on a pro-rated basis in the first year of appointment

Long-tenm incentives

Normal awards will be made under the BIP in ine with the Remuneration Policy The Executive Director may be
invited to participate in i fight’ BIF awards on a pro-raled basis when appointed

The Compary (s required to set out the maximum amount of variabie pay which could be pad to a new diectaor
in respect of tis/her recrutment In order to provide the Company with sufficient flexibiity in a recruitment
scenarno, the Cormnmitiee has set this figure as 450% of base salary This covers the maxmum annual borus
and the maximum face vaiue of any fong-term in¢entive awards This level of variable pay would only be
avattable in excepbonal circurnstances, and in order to achieve such a level of vanable pay, stretching targets
would need to be met For the avoidance of doubt, this 450% varable pay imit excludes the value of any
"buyout” payments or awards associated with forferted awards

Replacement awards

For an external appointment, although there are no plans to offer additional cash and/or share-based payments
on recruitment, the Committee reserves the right to do so when 1t considers this to be in the best interests of
the Company and shareholders Such paymenis may take into account remuneration relinguished when feaving
the former employer and would reflect the nature, tme honzons and performance requirements atiached

to that termuneration Shareholders will be nformed of any such payrments at the tme of appointment Tre
Committee may make awards on hinng an external candidate to “buyout” awards which will be forferted on
leaving the previous employer Our approach to this 1s 1o carry out a detaied review of the awards which the
individual wiil lose and calculate the estimated value of them In doing so, we will consider the vesting pertod,
the option exercise perod f applicable, whether the awards are cash or share based. performance related or
not, the Company’s recent performance and payout levels and any other factors we consider appropnate If

a buyout award 1s to be made, the structure and level will be carefulty designad and will generally reflect and
replicate the previous awards as accurately s possible Ve wiil make the award subject 1o appropriate malus
and clawback provisions in the avent that the individual resigns or 1s summanly terminated within a certain
tmeframe An explanation will be prowided at the tme of recruitment of why a buyout sward has been granted

intemal promotions

For interral promoetions any commitments made prior 1o appontment may continue to be honoured as the
executive 18 transitionad to the new remuneration arrangements

u
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Shareholders will be informed of any director appointment and the individual's remuneration arrangemerts as soon as practicable followirg
the appointment wia an anrouncement to the regulatery rews services

Fee levels for a rew Crairman or rew Non-Executive Directors will be determined in accordance with the policy set out on page 71

Service contracts

All directors’ service cortracts ard letters of appointment are avallable for inspection at the Company's registered office

A summary of the key terms of the Executive Directors’ service contracts 1s set out below Note that this section has been revised 10
include the service contract of D Yates

§.C. Harris, Group Chief

D.F. Landless, Group Finance

D, Yates, Group Finance Director
designate - appointed Chief
Financial Officer on

Executive Director (retired 1 January 2017} 2 January 2017
Date of service contract 6 QOctober 2008 26 Septembaer 2001 1 November 2016
Notice period 12 morihs 12 morlhs 12 months

Remuneration

m Annual base saiary

m Potental for cash in heu of
pension

m Rembursement of expenses (if
satisfactory evidence provided)

® Private medical insurance
m Company car allowance

m Entitlement to receve ar annual
performance-related bonus
award

®  Anrual base salary

m Potertial for cash in eu of
pension

m Remmbursement of expenses (If
satisfactory evidence provided)

& Private medical insurance
m Compary car allowance

m Entitlement to receive ar annual
performance-reiated borus
award

m Enttlement to ore year's
remureratior If employment
15 terminated on a charge of
control

a Arnual base salary

m Potential for cash in leu of
pension

m Reimbursemert of expenses {If
satisfactory evidence prowvided)

® Private medical insurance
B Cormpary car allowance

B Enttlement to receve ar annual
performance-related borus
award

a Enttlerment to a reasonable
relocation package If D Yates
relocates within 30 months of
starting date of 1 November
2016

Termination

Company has night to terrminate or
payment of a terrmmation paymert
with agreement of executive

Company has nght to terminate on
payment of a termiratior payment

Campany has nght to terminate or
paymert of a termination payment

Non-competition

During employment and for 12
months thereafter

During employment and for 12
months thereafter

During employmenrt and for 12
months thereafter

Otrer than the contents of the contracts, there are no obligations that may give rise to remunerabon

Govemance



Board report on remuneration continued

Director Date of appointment Notice period
A M Thomson 1 Decermber 2007 6 months
P Larmon 13 September 2016 6 months
E bLindgvist 1 June 2012 6 months
I B Duncan 17 November 2014 6 montbks
A Quinn 1 January 2018 6 manths
L Chahbazi 1 January 2018 6 morths

The Non-Executive Directors of the Compary {including the Chairman) do not have service contracts The Nen-Executive Directors are
appeinted by letters of appointmert Each independent Non-Executive Director’s term of office runs for a maximum three year perod

The nitial terms of the Non-Executive Directors’ positions are subject to their re-election by the Company’s shareholders at the next AGM
and to re-election at ary subseguent AGM at which the Non-Executive Directors stand for re-election

All directors will be put forward for re-election by shareholders on an annuat basis

Termination remuneration policy

It is the Company's polcy that Executive Directors have service cortracts with a one-year notice penod ard termirable by one year's notice
by the employer at any tme, and by payment of one year’s basic salary and other fixed benefits in lieu of notice by the employer All future
appointments to the Board will comply with this requirement This section of the report has been revised to reflect the service contract of
Domimque Yates, Group CFO, which operates under different terms to that of the CEQ and the former FD

The Commitiee will honour Executive Directors’ contractual entitlements Service contracts do rot contain hquidated damages clauses

If a contract 1s to be terrmirated, the Committee will determine such mitigation as it corsiders fair and reasonable ir each case There are
no contractugl arrangements that would guarantee a persior with imited or no abaterment on severance or early retirement Thers 1s no
agreement between the Company ard its Executive Directors or employees. providing for compensation for loss of office or employmenrt
that occurs because of a takeover bid

|
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Component

Policy

Compensation for loss
of office in service
contracts

Currenrtly, under the terms of the Chief Executive’s contract, the Company may at its chaice, ir lieu of gvirg
notice, termimate an Exacutive Director's service contract by making a payment equivalent to, one year's annual
base salary, 25% of base salary in respect of all other remuneration and berefits (other than annual bonus and
incertives) and annual borus equal to the average bonus paid up to three years pricr to the date of notice

Under the terms of the Chief Financial Officers’ contract, the contract 1s terminable by one vear's notice by the
employer at any time, and by payment of one year's basic salary and other fixed benefits ir heu of notice by the
employer

Treatment of cash
element of the bonus
under Plan rules

If termination 1s by way of death, injury. iliress, disability, redundancy, retirement or any other circumstances
the Committee determines {a "good leaver”}, the level of bonus will be measured al the bonus measurement
date Bonus will normally be pro-rated for the penod worked dunrg the financial year The Committee retains
the discretion

m 1o determire that an executive 1s a good leaver 1t1s the Committeg’s irtertion to only use this discretion i
circumstances wherea there 1s an appropriate business case which will be explained in full to shareholders,

w ot to pro-rate tre bonus to time The Commuttee's policy 15 that st will pro-rate bonus for time Itis the
Committee's intentior to Lse Its discretion to not pro-rate Ir circumstances where there 1s an appropriate
business case which will be explained tn full to sharehclders

Urder all other circumstances ne borus will be earned on cessation of employment (other than set out above In
the legacy arrangements for current Executive Directors)

Treatment of unvested
deferred bonus awards
under Plan rules

If terrmiration 1s by way of death, Irjury, Illness, disability, redundarcy, retirement or any other circumstances
the Committee determines (& “good leaver "}, deferred shares may be released to the participant at the normal
vesting date

Under all other circumstarces unvested awards will lapse on cessation of amployment
The Committes has the following elerments of discretion

m o determine that an executive 1s a good leaver 1115 the Committee’s intention to only use this discretior in
crcumstances where there 15 an aperoprate business case which will be explaied ir full to shareholders,

m to vest deferred shares at the end of the onginal deferral pericd or at the date of cessation The Committee’s
policy 1s that shares will vest on the ongiral date of vestirg The Committee will make this determination
depending on tre type of good leaver reason resulting in the cessation

Treatment of unvested
BIP 2016, BIP 2006 and
CIP awards

On cessatior of employment, awards under the BIP ard CIP will lapse in fuil, unless the Cormmittee determines
that the individual 15 a good leaver (see above for defimition) In instances where the Committee determires that
awards should not lapse in full, awards will normally vest at the narmal vesting date, pre-rated for ttme served
ard subject to the achievement of the onginal performarce conditions

The Committee has the following elements of discretior

m to determire that an executive 1s a good leaver Itis the Committee’s intention to only use this discretion In
circurmstances where there 15 an appropnate busiress case which will be explained in full to shareholders,

m 1o measure performance over the onginal performance period or at the date of cessatior The Committee
will make this determination depending on the type of good leaver reasor resultirg ir the cessation, and

m topro-rate the maximum rumber of shares to the time from the date of grant to the date of cessation The
Comrmittee’s policy 15 that it will pro-rate awards for tme 1tis the Committee's intertion to use discretion to not pro-
rate in circumstances where there s an appropriate business case which wiil be explained in full to shareholders

Exercise of disc¢retion

In the event that ar Executive Director leaves the Company, tre Committee's policy for exit payments is to
corsider the reasons for cessatior and consequertly whether any exit paymerts other than those contractually
required are warrarted

Further, in the event of a compromise or settlement agreement, the Committee may agree payments it
considers reasonable in settlement of legal clairms This may irclude ar entitlement to compensation in
respect of therr statutory nghts Lnder employment protection legislation in the UK or in other junisdictiors The
Comrmittee may alsc irciude In such payments reasonable reimbursement of professional fees ir connection
with s..ch agreements

Change of control

Qur palicy 15 not to Fave a change in cortrol clause in Executive Directors’ service contracts Neitrer S C Harns
nor D Yates' cortract bave a change of control clause To the extent that executive contracts are renewsd,

or new appomntments made, the Committee will continue Lo adopt a policy of not having change of control
clauses ir service contracts In ary case, legally approprate factors would be taker into account to mitigate
any compensatior payment, covering basic salary, annual ircentives ard benehts, which may anse or the
terminatior of employment of any Executive Direclor, other thar paymerts made on a change i control or for
payments ir ey of rotice

On change of contral the awards urder the Company’s incertive plans will generally vest subject to
performarce and time apportionment as determined by the Committee and i accordance with the rules of the
relevant Plar




Directors' responsibilities statement

Responsibility of directors for the preparation of the Annual Report and financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the finarcial statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the directors are required to
prepare the Group firarcial statemerts in accordarce with Internetional Finarcial Reportirg Standards [IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and have elected to prepare the Parent Company firancial statements in accordarce with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accountirg Practice (Urited Kingdom Accourting Standards and apphcable law), incl.ding FRS 101 *Reduced
Disclosure Frarmnework” Under company law the directors must not approve the accounts uniess they are satisfied that they give a true and
fatr view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that penod

In preparirg the Parent Company financral staterments, the directors are required to
u select suitable accounting policies ard ther apply them consistently,
®  mMake judgments and accourting estimates that are reascnable and prudert, and

m prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s INappropriate to presume that the Compary will contirue 1n
business

In preparing the Group firarcial statements, international Accounting Standard 1 reguires that directors
® properly select and apply accounting policias, ,

m oresent irformation, including accourting pohicies, o a manner that provides relevant, rehable, comparable and understandable
irformation,

m provide additionai disclosures when compharce with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable users to understand
the impact of particular trarsactions, other everts and conditions on the entity’s finarcial position and finarcial performance, and

m maxke an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s transactions
and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any ime the firancial position of the Compary and enable them to ensure that the financial
statemerts comply with the Comparies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company ard hence foc
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other rregulanities

The directors are responsible for the mamterance and irtegnty of the corporate and financial information included on the Company's
website Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemiration of financial statemants may differ from legislation
in aother junsdictions ,

Responsibility statement of the directors in respect of the Annual Report and financial statements

We confirm that 1o the best of our knowledge

m the financial statements, prepared n accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework, give a true and farr view of the assets,
habilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Campany and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole,

m the strategic report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the positicn of the Company and the
undertakings included in the consolidatior taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that they
face, and

m the arnual report and financial statements, taker as a whole, are fair, balanced and understandable and provide the information
recessary for shareholders to assess the Company's performance, business model and strategy

This responsibility statement was approved by the Board of Directors on 6 March 2018 and 1s sigred on its behalf by

$.C. Hamis D.Yates
Group Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer '
6 March 2018 6 March 2018
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Independent auditor’s report

To the Members of Bodycote plc

Opinion on financial statements of Bodycote plc
Opinion
In our opinion

m the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent Company’s affairs as
at 31 December 2017 and of the group’s profit for the year then ended;

m the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs} as adopted by the European Union;

m the Parent Company Financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice including Financial Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework™ and;

m the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards
the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

We have audited the financial statements of Bodycote plc (the ‘Parent Company’) and its subsidianies {the 'Group’} which compnse

m the Consoldated Income Statemenrt,

® the Consolidated Statemenrt of Comprehensive Income,

m the Consohdated ard Parent Company Staterments of Financial Position,
m the Consoldated Cash Flow Statement,

m the Consoidated and Parenrt Company Statements of Changes in Equity,
m the Group and Company Accolnting Policies,

m the related notes 1 to 29 to the Group financial statements, and

m the relates notes 1 to 12 to the Parert Company financial statemerts

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements is applicable law and IFRSs as
adopted by the European Unior The firancial reporting framewaork that has been apphed ir the preparation of the Parert Company financial
statements 1s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Stardards, including FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework” (United
Kirgdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK) (ISAs {(UK)) and applicable law Our responsibiites
under those standards are further described ir the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of tre finarcial statements section of our report

We are independert of the Group and the Parent Company in accordance with the etfical requirements that are relevart to our audit of the
financial statemerts in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Stardard as applied to hsted public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements We confirm that the non-audit services prehibited by the FRC's Ethical
Standard were not provided to the Group or the Parent Company

We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a bas:s for our opinion

Summary of our audit approach

Key audit matters The key audit matters that we identified i the current year were
m Imparrment of goodwill and intangible fixed assets in Europe ST
w Taxation accounting — valuation of certain tax structure provisicns
m Pensions — UK defined benefit scheme lability assumptiors
m Revenue recognition — manual adjustments to revenue

Within this report, any new key audit matters are identified with @ard ary <ey audit matters which are the same
as the prnior year identified with

Materiality The matenality that we used for the group linancial statements was £5 6 million wkich was determined on the
basis of 5% of expected pre-tax profit

Scoping As a conseguence of the audit scope deterrmined, we achieved coverage of approximately 73% of revenue, 78%
of profit before tax ard 79% of net assets

Significant changes Our approach 1s corsistent with the prewvious year with the exception of the removal of the completenass and
in our approach accuracy of ervironmental provisions as a <ey audit matter for the 2017 audit repert, ard the additicn of the
potential fraud risk in relation to revenue recognition, as outlined in further detall below
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Independent auditor’s report continued

To the Members of Bodycote plc

Conclusions relating to going concern, principal risks and viability statement

Going concern

® We have reviewed tre directors’ staternent on page 24 to the finarcial statemerts We confirm that we have nothing material
about whether they considered 4t appropnate to adopt the going concern basis of to report, add or draw attention to in respect
accounting in preparng them and therr identification of any matenal uncertainties of these matters.

to the group’s and company’'s ability to contirue to do so over a penod of at least
twelve months from the date of approval of the irancial statements

® We are required to state whether we have anything matenal to add or draw attertion
to i relation to that statement required by Listing Rule 9 8 6R(3) ard report «f the
statement 1s matenally inconsistent with our knowledge obtained ir the audit

Principal risks and viability statement

Based solely on reading the directors’ statements ard corsidernng whether they were We confirm that we have nothing material
consistent with the krowledge we obtained in the course of the audit, ireludierg the to report, add or draw attention to in respect
knowledge obtained in the evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the Group's ard of these matters.

the Company's ability to continue as a gong concern, we are required to state wheather
we have anything matenal t¢ add or draw attention to 1n relation to

m the disclosures or pages 25-29 that describe the prircipal nisks and explam how they
are being managed or mitigated,

8 the diwectors’ comfirmation on page 76 that they have carried out a robust
assessment of the principal nisks facing the group, including those that would
threaten its business model, future performarice, solvercy or hquidity, or

m the drectors’ explanation on page 24 as to how they have assessed the prospects
of the Group, over what penod they have dene so and why they consider that
penod to be appropriate, and therr statement as to whether they have a reasonable
expectation that the Croup will be able 1o continue 10 operation and meet its
habiiies as they fall due over the period of their assessment, ircluding any related
disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications or assumptions

We are also required to report whether the directors’ statement relating to the
prospects of the Group required by Listing Rule 9 8 6R(3) 1s matenaily inconsistent with
our knowledge obtained n the audit

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are trose matters that, in our professional jJudgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements
of the current penod and include the most sigmificant assessed nsks of matena! missiatement (whether or not due to fraud) thet we
identified These matters included those which had the greatest effect on the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit,
and directing the efforts of the engagement team

These matters were addressed in the context of cur audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinicn thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters

n 2017 we no longer corsider the completeness and accuracy of environmental remeadiation provisions to be a <ey audit matter This
assessment 1 based on the stable nature of the site portfolio and associated environmenrtal obligations across the Group, and support
provided by third-party environmental specralist valuatior reports

We have included a new key audit matter for 2017 in relation to the fraud risk in reverue recognitior, focused on the risk of manual

adustments made 1o revenue, which has been included following consideration of the rature of revenus transactiors recorded by the
Group and the typical sales cycie for services provided, as described further within the Key Audit Matter baiow

We have also refined our key audit matter in relation to impairment to focus anintangible fixed assets (including goodwill balances for the
Europe ST cash generating unit ("CGU™), as opposed to tangible and intargible fixed assets across the whole business

n
n Bodycote plc - - e e [ -



Impairment of intangible fixed assets (including goodwilt) ()

Key audit matter
description

Tre Group has a sigrificant non-current asset base relating to intangible assets (ircluding goodwill) of £2010m (2016
£206 7m) a5 shown in notes 13 and 12 Our risk assessment procedures have pimpointed our key audit matter with
regards to impairment 1o focus or the Europe ST CGU {which has £12 6m of goodwill allocated (2018 £12 ém)), due
to the contirued adverse performance related 1o the ol and gas markets served by this CGU

Perforrming an impairment review of the non-current assets within this CGU requires the exercise of judgement
regardirg future growth rates, discourt rates and sensitivity assumptions, as described in note 11, and1s included as
an area of focus in the Report of the Audit Committee

How the scope
of our audit
responded to the
key audit matter

We chalienged the assumptions used in the impairment modet for intangible assets withir the Europe ST CGU As
part of our procedures we

m We challerged the assumptions used in the impairmert model for intangiie assets wathin the Europe ST CGU
As part of our procedures we

m considered the approprnateress of the growth rate assumptions by comparing them to historical trading
performance and World Bank historical GDP data for the markets served by Europe ST, and reviewing ard
challerging management'’s budget fer 2018,

m corsidered the impact of the sensitivities performed by management ir assessing whether they reflect a
reasonable possible change scenarno, and

m assessed the appropriateress of the assumptions concernming the discount rate apphed by engaging our internal
valuation speciabists to review the irputs used to determine the discount rate apphed by comparnrg them against
exterral market data

Key observations

Based on the procedures performed, ro imparment was roted and we bave concluded that the assumptions in the
impairment model are appropnate

Taxation - valuation of certain tax structure provisions

Key audit matter
description

The tax nsk concerns the judgements and estimates apphed ir the determination of provisions for habilities attributed
to specific uncertain tax positions linked to the Group's corporate arrangements as described as an area of focus in
the Report of the Audit Committee

How the scope
of cur audit
responded to the
key audit matter

In corjunction with our taxation audit specialists, we have assessed the assumptions and judgements concerring
the adeguacy of certam tax structure provisions by challenging management’s assumptions, reviewing the available
correspondence from the vanous tax authonties and drawing on the expenence of our taxation specialists In respact
of simelar situations

Key observations

From the work performed above we are satisfied that the provisiors held on the balance sheet for certair tax
structure posttrons are reasonable
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Pensions — UK defined benefit scheme liahility assumptions

Key audit matter
description

This nsk concerns the appropraterass of the actuanal assumpliors applied ir calculating the Group's UK defined
benefit scheme hability of £109 9m {2016 £126 6m) within the net UK defined benefit surplus of £2 4m (2076 habulity
of £3 6m} as shown i note 28 The valuation of the Group's 1AS 12 lability involves sigrificart judgement in the
choice of discount rate used and ir the key sources of estirmation uncertainty in particular 1n relatior to the discount
rate assumptions, as described In the Group's accounting policies, ard s included as an area of focus i the Report of
the Audit Committee

How the scope
of our audit
responded to the
key audit matter

We have assessed the appropriateness of the assumptions underpimning the valuation of the scheme labilities
Specifically we challerged the discount rate, inflation ard mortality assumptions appled in the calculation by using
our internal pension specialists to benchmark the assumptiors applied against comparable third party data and
assessed the appropriateress of the assumptions ir the context of the Group’s owr position

Key observations

From the work performed we are satisfied that the assumptions applied in respect of the valuation of the Group's I1AS
19 UK defined benefit scheme labilities are reasonable We consider the assurmptions to be towards the prudent end
of our berchmarked range




Independent auditor’s report continued

To the Members of Bodycote plc

Revenue recognition - manual adjustments to revenue (&) ‘

Key audit matter
description

When assessing the potential risk of fraud in relation to revenue recognitior, we have considered the nature of the
automated and manual transactiors recorded across the Group, considenrg the typical sales cycle for the services
provided by the Group as descrbed n the Group’s accounting pohcies, ard have determined that the key audit matter
in relation to fraud s pinpointed to the nisk of inappropnate manual adjustmerts beng recorded n revenue

How the scope
of our audit
responded to the
key audit matter

We have profiled the population of journal entnies made throughout the year in order to identify manual adjustments
made 1o revenLe and have tested the identified population to validate their authenticity ard commercial substance

Key observations

From the work performed we bave not roted any manual adjustments to revenue that we would not expect in the
usual course of business, or that cannot be supported

Our application of materiality

We define matenality as the magritude of russtatement 1 the financial staterments that maxes it probable that the econonic decisions af
a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced We use matenaity both in plarring the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work

Based on cur professional judgemert, we determined matenality for the financial statements as a whole as follows

Group financial statements Parent company financial statements
Group materiality £5 8 million (2016 £4 8 mullion) £4 5 million (2016 £3 6 ruilicn)
Basis for determining 5% of expected pre-tax profit (2016 5% of pre-tax The parent companry malenality represents 1% (2016
materiality orofit) 1%) of equity which 1s capped at 80% (2016 80%) of
Group matenality
Rationale for the Pre-tax profit 1s determined to be the most stable As a non-tradirg parent company, equity 1s the key
benchmark applied basis of underlying business performance driver of the company

FBT £117m Component

matenality range

E1 8m 1o £2 8m
S —

\ Audit Committee
reporting threshold
£0 28m

Groug materiality
£5 6m

B PBT
Group materiality

We agreed wilh the ALdit Committee that we would report 1o the Commitiee all audit differences in excess of £0 28 millior {2016 £0 20
million) for the group, as well as differences below that threshold that, (n our view, warranted reporting on quaiitative grounds We also
report to the Audit Committee on disclosure matters that we identified wher assessing the overall presertation of the financial statements
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An overview of the scope of our audit
Qur Group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the Group and its environment, including group-wide controls, and assessing

the nisks of matenal misstatement at the Group level

Based or this assessment, we focused our Group audit scope primarnly or the audit work relating to twelve components across rire core
locations, being USA, UK, France, Germary, Sweden, the Netherlards, Czech Republic, Turkey, and Mexico Components wathir China,
Italy and Poland were removed from Group scope as part of our nisk assessmert process to pinpoint our focus and attertion to maternial
comporents whare the ey audit matters and judgements affecting the Group financial statements are expected The parent company 1s

located n the UK ard audited directly by the Group audit team
As a conseguence of the audit scope determined, we achieved coverage of approximately 73% 2016 86%) of revenue, 78% {2016 92%)

of profit before tax and 79% (2016 90%!} of net assets Our audit work at each location was executed at levels of matenality applicable to
each ndividual entity which were lower than Group matenality Componert matenality, excludirg the Parent Company, ranged from £1 5m

to £2 8m (2016 £0 5m to £2 5m)
The Group audit tearn continued to follow & program of planned visits that has been designed so that a senior member of tre Group audit

team visits eack of the significant finance furction locations included as full scope for the Group audit at least once every three years
Dunng the year, semor members of the Group audit team have visited the US, UK, France and the Czech Shared Service Centre

In years when we do rot visit a significart component we ircllde the component audit team 1 our team bnefing, discuss their risk
assessment, attend close meetings by conference call and review documentaton of the findirgs from treir work

At the parert entity tevel we also tested the consolidatior process and carned out analyticat procedures to confirm our conclusion that there
were no significant nsks of matenal misstatement of tre aggregated hinancial infermaton of the remaining components Not subject 10 audit

or audit of specified account balarces

Revenue Profit before tax Net assets
W Full audit scope 73% B Full audit scope 78% 8 Full audir scope 79%
Review at Group level 22 % Rewiew at Group level 21%

Review at Group level 26%
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Independent auditor’'s report continued

To the Members of Bodycote plc

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other mformation The other nformation comprises the information We have nothing to
included v the annual report, other than the finarcial statemerts and our auditor's report thereon report in respect of these

matters.
Our opinian on the financial statements does nat cover the other information and, except to the extent

otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do nat express any form of assurance conclusion thereon

In connectior with our audit of the hinancial statements, our responsibility 1s to read the other information
ard, 0 doirg so, consider whether the other information 1s matenally ircorsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtaired In the audit or otherwise appears fo be matenally misstated

If we identfy such matenal inconsistencies or apparent matenal misstatements, we are required to
determine whether there 1s a matenal misstatement in the firancial statements or a material misstatement
of the other information If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there 15 a matenal
misstatement of this other information we are reguired to report that fact

In this context, matters that we are specrfically required 1o repert to you a8s uncorrected maternal
misstatemerts of the other irformatior include wheres we conclude that

m Fair, balanced and understandable - the statemert given by the directors that they consider the arnual
report and finarcial statemenrts taken as a whole 1s far, balanced ard understandable and grovides the
informatior necessary for shareholders to assess the group's position and performance, business model
and strategy, 1$ matenally irconsistert with our knowledge obtained i the audit, or

®  Audit committee reporting — the section describirg the work of the audit commuttee does not
approprigtely gddress matters comrunicated oy us to the audit commitiee, or

m Directors’ statement of compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code - the parts of the directors’
statement required under the Listing Rules relating to the companry’'s compliance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code containing provisions specifled for review by the auditor in accordance with Listirg Rule
9 8 10R {2) do not properly disclose @ departure frorm a relevant provision of the UK Corporate Governance
Code

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully ir the directors’ resporsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the firarcial
staternents and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair wew, and for such internal cortrol as the directors determine is recessary to
enable the preparation of finarcial statemenrts that are free from matenal russtatement, whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent company’s atility to continue
as a going concern, disclosing as appiicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concérn basis of accounung unless the
directors either intend to iguidate the groug or the parent compary of 1o cease operations, of have no realistic alternative but to do so

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are Lo obtair reasonable assurance about whether the financial staternents as a whole are free from matenal misstatemert,
whether due to fraud or error, and to 1ssue an auditor's report that includes our opinion Reasonable assurance I1s a high level of assurance,
but1s not a guarantee that an audit conductad 1n accordance with 1SAs (UK) waill always detect a matenal misstatement when it exists
Misstatements can anse from fraud or error and are considered matenal if, iIndwidually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to irfluence the economic decisions of users taken or the basis of these financial statements

A further description of our responsibiiities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website
at www frc org uk/auditorsresponsibibties This descrniption forms part of our auditor’s report

Use of our report

Tris report 1s made solely to the companry’s members, as a body, in accardarce with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Cormpanies Act 2006 Our
audit work has been urdertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required 1o state to them in an
auditor's report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent perrmutted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility 1o anyone other
than the company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the part of the directors’ remuneration report tc be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies

Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work Lundertaken in the course of the audrit

® the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the finarcial year for which the financial statements are

prepared s consistent with the firancial statements, ard

B the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordarce with apphcable legal requirements

In the hight of the knowledge and understanding of the group and of the parent company and their environment obtained in the course of

the audit, we have not identified any materal misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, n our opirior

m we have not received all the iIrformation and explarations we require for our audit, or

m adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent compary, or returns adeguate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by LS, or

m the parert compary finarcial statements are rot in agreement with the accounting records and returns

We have nothing to
report in respect of these
matters.

Directors’ remuneration

Under the Comparies Act 20086 we are also required to report if i~ our opinion certain disclosures of
directors’ remuneration have rot been made or the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited 1s
not In agreernent with the accounting records and returrs

We have nothing to
report in respect of these
matters..
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Independent auditor’'s report continued

To the Members of Bodycote plc

Other matters

Auditor tenure

Foliowirg the recommendation of the audit committee, we were appointed by the Board of Directors in 2002 to audit the financial
statements for the year endirg 31 December 2003 and subsequent firanciai pernods The period of total unirterrupted engagement
including previous renewals and reappointments of the firm s 16 years, covenrg the years endirg 31 December 2003 to 31 December
27

Consistency of the audit report with the additional report to the audit committee

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reesonabie assurance
that the finarcial statemenrts are free from matenal misstatemert, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's and the Parent Company's circumstances and have been consistertly
apphed and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accountirg estimates macde by the directors, and the overall
presertabon of the financial staterments |n addition, we read all the financial and ron-financial information in the Arnual Report to identify
matenal incorsistercies with the audited financial statements ard 10 idertify ary information that s apparently matenally incorrect based
on, or materally imconsistert with, the knowledge acquired by us In the course of performing the audit [f we become aware of any
apparent matenal misstatements or Inconsistencies we consider the imphcations for our report

Mark Mullins FCA (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Londen, Umted Kingdom

6 March 2018
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
Note £m £m
Revenue 690.2 600 6
Cost of sales and overheads {570.8) (505 5)
Operating profit prior to exceptional items 119.4 351
AcquISItion costs 5 - {0 6)
Operating profit 3 119.4 94 5
investrment revenue [+ 01 -
Finance costs 7 (2.5) {2 &}
Profit before taxation 170 919
Tax impact in relation to change in US tax rate 6.4 -
Taxation (26.1) (24 9}
Taxatior charge B8 {19.7) {24 9}
Profit for the year 973 670
Attributable to
Equity holders of the parant 9721 670
Non-controlling interests 0.2 —
973 670
Earnings per share 10
Pence Pence
Basic 51.0 352
Diluted 51.0 352

All actvities have anigen from continuing operations

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
£m fm
Profit for the year 973 670
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: £
Actuarnal gain on defined benefit pensior schemes 6.7 {50 2
4
Tax on items not reclassified (1.0} 10 %
Total items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 57 (4 0) =
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: :'-',-’
Exchange losses on translation of foregn operations {11.7} 655 5
Cumulative exchange differerces recycled to profit or loss on disposal of busiresses/group reorganisation - 12 2)
Total items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss (1.7} 633
Other comprehensive (expensel/income for the year {6.0) 593
Total comprehensive income for the year 91.3 126 3
Attributable to
Equity holders of the parert 81.2 126 3
Non-controllirg irterests 0.1 -
91.3 126 3




Consolidated balance sheet
At 31 December 2017

2017 2016
Note £m £m
Non-current assets
Goodwill T 157.6 160 9
Other intargibie assets 12 43.4 458
Property, plant and equipment 13 5205 5090
Deferred tax assets 19 245 325
Trade and other recenvables 15 1.0 04
7470 748 6
Current assets
Inventories 14 16.4 166
Demvative firarcial instruments 18 - o1
Current tax assets 12.8 190
Trade and other receivables 15 140.4 1263
Cash and bank balarces 15 41,9 120
Assets heid for sale 18 2.1 18
212.7 1758
Total assets 959.7 924 4
Current liabilities
Trade and other pavables 20 1384 1336
Current tax liabilities 29.2 365
Obligations under finance leases - g1
Borrowings 17 14 58
Provisions 21 8.7 "7
1777 1876
Net current assets/(liabilities) 35.0 118)
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 17 - 50
Retrement benefit cbligations 28 15.2 275
Deferred tax abilities 19 572 68 8
Provisions 21 8.7 88
Other payables 20 34 44
84.5 1085
Total liabilities 262.2 296 1
Net assets 6975 6283
Equity
Share capital 22 33.1 331
Share premium accourt 1774 1771
Own shares (72) B8O
Other reserves 141.0 1338
Translation reserves 459 575
Retained earnings 3071 2343
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 697.0 6279
Non-controlling interests 0.5 04
Total equity 6975 6283

The financial statements of Bodycote ple, registered number 519057 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for 1ssue on

& March 2018
They were signed on its behalf by

S.C. Harris D. Yates
Director Director
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Consolidated cash flow statement

For the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
Note £m £m
Net cash from operating activities 24 159.9 1259
Investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (73.3) {64 7)
Proceeds on disposal of property, glant and eguipment and intangible assets 3.7 76
Purchases of intangibie fixed assets (5.2) 60
Acquisition of businesses [14.2} 123 7)
Disposal of sundry irvestments - 03
Disposal of businesses - 19
Net cash used in investing activities {89.0) {84 6}
Financing activities
Interest received 0.1 -
Interest paid {2.1) (23)
Dwidends paid {30.6) {48 1)
Repayments of bark loans (5.0} 23
Payments of obhgations under firarce leases (0.1) 1
New banx joars raised - 50
Net cash used in financing activities {(37.7) {478)
Net increase/(decrease} in cash and cash equivaients 33.2 {6 5)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 6.2 124
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 0.2 g3
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 24 39.6 62
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Equity
attributable
Share to equity Non-
Share premium Own Other Translation Retained holders of controlling Total
capital account shares reserves reserves eamings the parent interests equity
£m £m £m £m £m £fm fm £m £m

1 Jaruary 2016 331 1771 93} 1341 (58} 2200 5497 a4 549.8
Net profit for the vear - - - - - 670 670 - 670
Exchange differerces or
translation of overseas
operations - - - - 655 - 855 - 655
Cumulative excharge
differences recycled to profit or
loss on disposal of businesses - - - - 22) - 12 2} - 12 2]
Actuarnal losses on defined
benefit pensior schemes net of
deferred tax - - - - - 40) 40 - 4 0)
Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - 633 630 126 3 - 126 3
Acquired in the year/settlement
of share options - - 13 07 - iDB) - - -
Share-based payments - - - 05 - - 05 - 05
Dividends paid - - - - - 48 1) 48 1) - (48 1)
31 December 2016 33.1 1771 (8.0) 133.9 575 234.3 6279 0.4 628.3
Net profit for the year - - - - - 971 971 0.2 973
Exchange differerces on
translation of overseas
operations - - - - (11.6) - {11 6) (0.1) {11.7}
Actuanal gains on defired
beretit pension schemes net of
deferred tax - - - - - 5.7 5.7 - 57
Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - {11.6) 102.8 91.2 0.1 91.3
Acquired in the year/settlement
of share options - - 08 {0.7) - - a1 - 0.1
Share-based payments - - - 78 - - 78 - 78
Deferred tax on share-based
payrment transactions - - - - - 0.6 06 - 06
Dividerds paid - - - - - {30.6) {30.5) - {30.6)
31 December 2017 33.1 1771 {7.2) 141.0 45.9 3071 697.0 0.5 6975

Included in other reserves i1s the capital redermption reserve of £129 8m {2016 £129 8m} and the share-based paymerts reserve of £10 4m

(2016 £3 3m)

The own shares reserve represents the cost of shares in Bodycote plc purchased ir the markat At 31 Daecember 2017 1,171,190 {2018

1,289.378) ordinary shares of 17 3/11p each were held by the Bedycote Interrational Employee Benefit Trust to satisfy share-pased

payrments under the Group's incentive schemes (see note 26}



Group accounting policies
Year ended 31 December 2017

Basis of accounting

The financial statements of the Group have been prepared ir accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) The
financial statements have also been prepared in accordance wath IFRS adopted by the Eurcpean Union and therefore the Group financial
statements comply with Article 4 of EU |1AS Regulatior as adopted for use in the EU

The Group bas adopted Standards ard Interpretations 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB} and the International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Commuittee of the IASRB (IFRIC) Indwidual standards and interpretations have to be adopted by the
Eurcpesan Commission (EC) and the process leads to & delay between the issue ard adopticn of new standards ard in some cases
amendment by the EC

International Finarcial Reporting Standards are subject to ongoing amendment by the IASB and subsequent endorsement by the EC and
are therefore subject to change

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, with the exception of accounting for certain financial instruments
Historical cost 1s generally based on the far value of the consideration given in exchange for the assets The principal accounting policies
adopted are set out below

Going concern

The directors have at the time of approving the financial statements a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have
adequate resources 1o continue 1n operational existence for tre foreseeable future Thus they continue to adept the going concern basis
of accountirg in preparning the financial statements Further detail s contained in the Chief Finarcial Officer's report on page 24

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its

subsidianes) made up to 31 December each year Control s achieved wrere the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating pohcies of an investee entity so as to cbtair benefits from s activities

The results of subsidiares acquired or disposed duning the year are included in the consohidated income statement frem the effective date
of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate Where necessary, adjustmerts are made to the firancial statements of
subsidiaries to brirg the accounting policies used In line with thase used by the Group All irtra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are elimmated on corsohdation

Non-cortrolling Interests in subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group's eguity therein Those interests of non-controiling
shareholders that are present ownershig interasts entithng therr Folders to a proportionzate share of net assets upon iguidation may initsally
be measured at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the farr value of the acquirse's identfiable net assets

The choice of measurement 15 made on an acquisitior-by-acquisition basis Other non-cortrolling interests are initially measured at fair value

Subsequent to acquisition, the carryirg amourt of nor-centrolling irterests 1s the amount of those interests at inital recognitior plus the
non-contraling interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity Total comprehensive income 1s attributed to non-controlhrg interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance

Changes in the Group’s irterests in subsidianies that do not result in a loss of control are accourted for as equity transactions The carrying
amount of thre Group's interests and the non-cortrolirg Interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in therr relative interests in the
subsidiaries Ary difference between the amount by which the non-contreling interests are adjusted and the farr value of the consideration
paid or recewved is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company

When the Group loses cortrol of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal 1s calculated as the difference between (I} the aggregate

of the fair value of the consideration recewed and the far value of any retained interest and (1) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (Including goodwill), less labiities of the sLbsidigry end any non-controling interests Amounrts previously recegrised in other
comprebensive Income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for {1 e reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retamned
earnings) In tre same manner as would be reguired if the relevant assets or habilities were disposed of The fair value of any nvestment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control 1s lost 1s regarded as the far value oninitial recognition for subsequent
accounting under |AS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement or, when applicable, the costs on initia! recogniion of an
investment ir an associate or jointly cortrolled entity
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Tre key assumptions concerning the future, ard other key sources of estimatior uncertainty at the balarce sheet date, that have a
significart risk of causing a materal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities withir the next financial year, are

discussed below

Taxation
The GroLp 1s subject to taxes In numeroLs junsdictions Provisions lor corporation tax cortirgencies reguire the directors to estimate the

level of corporation tax that will be payable basec upor the interpretation of applicable tax legislation on a courtry-by-country basis and

an assessment of Lhe Ikely outcome of any oper tax computations VWhere the final tax outcome of these matters 1s different from tre
amourts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the currert tax provision, deferred tax provisiors and income statemert in
the period ir which such determination 1s made Please refer to note 19 on page 117 for further details



Group accounting policies continued

Year ended 31 December 2017

Retirement benefit schemes

Accounting for retirement benefit schemes under 1AS 19 lrevised) requires an assessment of the future benefits payable in accordarce
with actuanal assumptions The discount rate appled in the calculation of scheme liabiliies 1s a key source of estimatior uncertainty for the
Group Details of the accounting pelictes appiied in respect of retirernent benefit schemes are set out on page 92 ard see note 28 or page
123 for further details

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

In the course of preparirg the firancial statements, no judgements have been made in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies, other than those involving estimations (above), that have had a significart effect on the amourts recognised in the financial
statements

Investments in associates
An associate 1s an entity over which the Group 1s In a position to exercise significant irfluence, but not cortrol or joint control, through
partictpation in the financial and operating pohey decisiors of the investee

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated ir these financial statements using the equity method of accounting
Invesiments 10 associates are carried Ir the balance sheet at cost as adjusted by post-acquisitior changes in the Group's share of the net
assets of the associate, less any impairment in the value of indmidual investments Losses of an asscciate in excess of the Group’s interest
in that associate {which includes any long-term irterests that, In substance, form part of the Group's net investmenrt In the associate) are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payrents on behalf of the associate

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the farr values of the identifiable assets, habilities and cortingert habilities
of the associate at the date of acquisition 1s recognised as goodwill The goodwill 13 included witkin the carrying amount of the investmert
Any deficiency of the cost of acquisition below the Group's share of the far values of the identifiable assets, habilities ard cortingent
habilities of the associate at the date of acquisition e discount on acqusition) 1s credited in profit and loss in the penod of acquisition

Where a Group company transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated 1o the extert of the Group’s interest In
the relevant associate Losses may provide evidence of arn imparrment of the asset transferred, in which case appropnate provisior 1s made
for impairment

Non-current assets held for sale
Nen-current assets (ard disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and farr value less costs
1o sell

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale trarsactior
rather than through cortinuing use This condition 1s regarded as met only when the sale 1s highly probable ard the asset for disposal group)
s avallable for immediate sale in its presert condition Managerment must be committed to the sale which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale withir one year from the date of classification

Goodwill

Goodwill ansing in a business combination 1s recognised as an asset at the date that control s acquired {the acquisition date) Goodwill

15 measured as the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's interest in the net farr value of the identfiable assets, iabilities and
continrgent labiiities of a subsidiary or associate at the date of acquisition |f after restatement, the Group's interest in the net farr value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets, habilities and contirgent liabilittes exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess s recognised
immediately in profit or loss

Goodwill 1s not amortised but 1 reviewed for impairment at least annually For the purpose of imparment testing, goodwill 1s allocated

to each of the Group’s cash-generating units expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination Cash-generating units to which
goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment at least annuatlly, or more frequently when there 1s an indication that the unit may be
impaired [f the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit 1s less thar the carrying amount of the unit, the imparrment foss 1s allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwall allocated to the unit and then to assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis An impairment
loss recognised for goodwall 1 not reversed in & subseguent period

On disposal of a subsidiary or associate, the attnbutable amount of goodwill 1s Included in the determiration of the profit or less on
disposal Goodwill ansing on acquisitions before the date of transtion to IFRS has been retained at the previous UK GAAP amounts, subject
to being tested for impairrment at that date Goodwill written off to reserves under UK GAAP prior to 1998 has not been rerstated and is
not ircluded in determining any subsequent profi or loss on disposal




Revenue recognition
RevenLe 1s measured at the fair value of the consideration received or recevable and represerts armounts receivable for goods and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts, VAT and other sales-related taxes

Reverue 1s recognised or the completion of services rendered

Interest income 1s acorued on a tme basis, by reference to the prircipal outstanding and at the effsctive interest rate applicatle, which s
the rate that exactly discourts estimated future cash receipts through the expected hife of the firancial asset to that asset’s net carrying
armount

Dividend income from investments 1s recognmised whern the shareholder’s nghts to receive payment have been established

QOther operating income represents scrap sales, rents recevable and other operatirg iIrcome

The Group as lessee
Leases are classthed as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease trarsfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the

lessee All other leases are classified as operatirg leasses

Assats held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at therr fair value or, if lower, at the present value of the runimum

lease payments, each determined at the mnception of the lease The corresponding hability to the lessor is ircluded in the balance sheet as

a firance lease obligation Lease payments are apportioned between finance ¢harges and reductior of the lease obligation so as to achieve
a constant rate of interest or the remaining balence of the habifity

Firance charges are charged directly against income
Rertals payable under operatirg leases are charged to ircome on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease

Berefits received and recevable as an incertive to enter into an operating lease are also spread on a straight-ine basis over the lease term

Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than pounds sterling are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailirg on the dates of the transactions At
each balarce sheet date, moretary assets and habilimies that are denorminated i foreign cusrencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the balance sheet date Non-monetary riems 1hat are measured it terms of bPistoncal cost in a foreign currency are not retransiated
Gains and losses ansing on retranslation are included in net profit or loss for the perncd

Exchange differerces are recogmised in profit or loss in the penod in whick they arse except for
m exchange differences on trarsactions ertered irto to hedge certain foreign currency risks {see page 9%), and

m exchange differences or monetary items recewable from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlerment 1s reither planned nor
kely to occur ttherefore forming part of the net investment ir the foreign operaticr) which are recognised initially in the corsolidated
staternent of comprehensive income and reclassified from aquity to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the net investment

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s overseas operations are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date Income and expense iterns are translated at the average exchange rates for the period unless exchange rates fluctuate
sigrificartly Exchange differences ansing, if any, are classified as equity and transferred to the Group’s translation reserve Such translatior
differerces are recognised as income or as expenses in the penod in which the operation 1s disposed of

Goodwill and fair value adjustments ansing on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate The Group has elected to treat goodwill ard fair value adjustments ansing on acquisitions before the date of
transition to IFRS as sterling-denomirated assets and habilites
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recogrised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred Borrowing costs directly attributable 1o the
acquisition, constructior or praduction of qualifying assets, which are assets that take 2 substartal period of time to get ready for therr
intended use, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their interded use

Government grants
Government grants relatirg to property plant and eguipmert are treated as deferred income and released to profit and loss over the
expected useful ives of the assets concerned

Operating profit
Qperating profit 15 stated after charging restructunng costs, goedwill impairment, amortisation of acguired intangible assets and after the
post-tax share of resuits of associates but before investment income and finarce costs



Group accounting policies continued
Year ended 31 December 2017

Exceptional items

The Group corsiders exceptional items to be those which derve from events or trarsactiors whick are significant for separate disclosure
by virtue of ther size or incidence in order for the Lser to obtain a proper understardirg of the Group's financial performance These items
include, but are rot imited to, acquisition costs, impairmert charges, reccganisation costs ard peofits and losses on disposal of subsidianes
ard other ane off iters which meet this definition, this included the irmpact of the US Tax Reform in the current vear

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution schemes are recognised as ar expense when ermployees have rerdered secvice entitling them to the
contributions Paymerts made to state-managed retirement berefit schemes are dealt wath as payments to defined contnibutior schemes
where the Group's obligations under the schemes are equivalent to those ansing in a defined contribution retirerment benafit scheme

For defined benefit schemes, the cost of providing benefits 1s determined usirg the Projected Unit Credit Methaod, with actuanal valuators
being carried out at the end of each reporting period Remeasuremert comprsirg actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling
fif applicable) and the return or scheme assets (excluding interest) are recognised immediately in the Dalance sheet with a charge or credit
to the statement of comprehensive income in the pened in which they occur Remeasuremert recorded 10 the statement of comprehersive
ircome 1s not recycted Past service cost 1s recogrised in profit or loss in the perod of scheme amenrdmant Net interest

18 calculated by applyirg a discount rate to the defired benefit lability or asset Defired benefit costs are split into three categories

B current service cost, past-service cost and gains and losses on curtallmants and settlements,
& netinterast experse or iIncome, and
B remeasurement

The Group presents the first two components of defired benefit costs within ¢ost of sales and administrative expenses {see note 3} 1ts
consoiidated income statemert Curtaimenrt gains and losses are accounted for as past-service cost

Net-interest experse or income Is recognised withir finarce costs {see note 7)

The retirerent benefit obhgation recognised In the consclidated balance sheet represents the defiot or surplus 1N the Group's defired
benefit schemes Ary surplus resulting from this calculation 1s imited to the present value of ary ecoromic benefits avallable in the form
of refunds from the schemes or reductions ir future contnbutiors to the schemes

A habiity for a terrminztion benefit1s recogmised st the earher of when the entity can no longer witrdraw the offer of the termmnator berefit
and when the entity recognises any related restructunng costs

Taxation
The tax experse represerts the sum of the tax currently payabie and deferred tax

The tax currertly payable 1s based on taxabie profit for the year or tax assessment adjustments made to prior years Taxable profit differs
from net profit as reported in the Income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible The Group's hability for current tax s calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacied by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carryirg amounts of assets and habidities in the
financial statements ard the correspondirg tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and s accounted for using the balance
sheet hability methed Deferred tax llabiltties are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that 1axable profits will be avaiiable against which deductible temporary differences can be
utihsed Such assets and habilities are rnot recognised i the temperary difference anises from goodwill or from the irtial recogrition {other
than in a busiress combination) of other assets and liabilities 1n a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax habilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences anising on investrents in subsidianies and associates, and interests
In joint ventures, except where the Group I1s able to cortral the reversal of the temporary difference and it 1s probable that the temporary
difference will rot reverse in the foreseeable future Deferred tax assets ansing from deductible temporary diffierences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that thera will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future

The carrying amourt of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that 1t 1s no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be avallable to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the pernod when the hability 1s settled or the asset 15 realised based
on tax laws and rates that have been eracted or substantively enacted at the balarce sheet date Deferred tax s charged or crecited in the
Income statement, except when it relates 1o 1tems charged or credited in other comprehensive income, i which case the deferred tax s
also deait with in other comprehensive iIncome

The measuremenrt of deferred tax habilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow fram the manner in whick the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting penod. to recover or settle the carrying amount of 118 assets and habilibies

Deferred tax assels and aplities are offset when there 15 a legally erforceable rnght ta set off current tax assets against current tax
llabiities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxatron authonty and the Group intends to settle 1ts current tax assets
ard liabilities on a net basis
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Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equiprent are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment loss

Depreciation 1s charged so as to write off the cost of assets, other than land and properties urder corstruction, less their residual values,
over their estimatad useful ives, using the straight-ire method, on the following bases

Freehold bulldings 2%

Leasehold property over the penod of the lease
Fixtures and fittings 10%-20%

Plart and machirery 5%—20%

Motor vehicles 20%-33%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful ives on the same basis as owned assets or, where shorter,
over the term of the relevant lease The gain or loss ansing on the disposal or retirement of an asset 1s deterrined as the differerce
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset ard 1s recogrised in income

Assets in the course of corstructior are carmed at cost, plus appropnate borrowing costs, less any recognised impairment oss
Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their interded use

Business combinations

Acquisitiors of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acquisitior method The corsideration for each acquisition
s measurad at the aggregate of the far values (at the date of exchange) of assets giver, habilities incurred or assumed, and equity
nstruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or loss as

ncurred

Subsequent changes in such fair values are adjusted agairst the cost of acquisition where they qualify as measurement pernod adjustments
All other subsequent charges in the fair value of contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability are accounted for
ir accordance with relevart IFRSs

The acquiree’s identifigble assets, habiities and contingent habilities that meet the conditions for recognition under IFRS 3 (2008} are
recognised at therr fair value at the acquisition date, except that

m deferred tax assets or habihities and labilities or assets related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised ard measured in
accordarce with 1AS 12 Income Taxes and |1AS 19 {revised! Employvee Benefits respectively, ard

u liabilities or equity instruments related to the replacerent by the Group of an acquiree’s share-based payrment awards are measured In
accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based Payrment

Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-currert Assets Heid for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that stardard

Intangible assets

fntangible assets with firite useful ives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation ard accumulated
impairment losses Intargible assets acquired ir a business combination and recognised separately from goodwill are initially recogmsed at
fair vatue at the acquisition date iwhich 1s regarded as therr cost) Subsequent to inhal recognition, Intangble assets acquired in a business
combinatior are reported at cost less accumulated amertisation and accumulated impairment losses

Amortisation of these assets s recognised on a straight-ltine basis over their estimated useful ives, on the following bases
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Software 10%-33%
Non-compete agreements 20%-33%
Customer relatiorsfips 7%-10%

Arortisatior s recognised within administration expenses

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangble assets (o determire wrether there
15 any mdication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss If any such indication exists. the recoverable amount of the asset
s estimated in order to determine the extent of the iImpairment loss (f any) VWhere the asset does not generate cash flows that are
indeperdent from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs 1o sell and value in use In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted 1o ther presert value using a discount rate that reflects current mar<et assessments of the time value of meney and the
nsxs spectlic 1o the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted

If the recaverable amourt of ar asset (or cash-gererating unith 1s estimated to be less than 1ts carrying amount, Lthe carrying amownt of the
asset (cash-generating unithis redlced to 1ta recoverable amount An impairment loss 1s recognised as an expense immediatety

Where an impairmenrt loss subsequently reverses, the carrying arnount of the asset {cash-generating unith 1s increased to the revised
estimate of s recoverable amount, but so that the ircreased carrying amourt does rot exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determmned had no imparmert loss been recognised for the asset {cash-generating unit) in prior years A reversal of an impairment loss 1s
recognised as ircome immediately



Group accounting policies continued
Year ended 31 December 2017

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost compnses direct matenals and, where applicable, direct labour
costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringirg the inventories to therr present location and condition. Net reahsable value
represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completior and costs to be incurred i marketirg, seling and distnbution

Financial instruments
Financial gssets and financial labiliues are recogrised on the Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the instrument

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that have fixed or determinabie payments that are rot quoted in an active marxet are
classified as 'loars and receivables’ Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less ary
imparrment Interest ircome 1S recognised by applyirg the effective irterest rate, except for trade recevables, which do not carry any
interest and are stated at therr nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amourts

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and demand deposits and other short-term highly hquid investmaents that are readily
convertible to a known ameunt of cash and are subject to an insignificant nisk of changes in val.e

Financial liabilities and equity
Financial habiities and equity Instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into An equity
instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabiles

Bank borrowings
Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds received, net of transaction costs Finance charges, ircluding

premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct 1Issue costs, are accounted for on an accruals basis to the income statement
using the effective interest method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extert that they are not settled in the
penod in which they anse

Other financial liabilities
Other financral liabilities are not interest-beanng and are stated at their nominal value

Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Group derecogrises financial labilities when, and only wher, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire

Equity instruments
Equity instruments 1ssued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs

Impaiment of financial assets

Firancial assets are assessed for indicators of imparment at each balance sheet date Financial assets are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the irmial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future gash flows of the nvestment have beer impacted

Objective evidence of impairment could include
m signficant financal difficulty of the customer or courterparty, or
& default or delinquency In paymenris

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade recervables, assets that are assessed not to be imparred individually are subsequently
assessed for impairment on a collective basis Objective evidence of iImpairment for & portfolio of recevables could nciude the Group's past
expererce of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfoilo past the average credit period. as well as
observable changes in national or local economic corditions that correlate with default on recevables

The carrying amourt of the firancial asset 1s reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exceptior of trade
recelvables, whers the carrying amount 1s reduced through the use of an allowance account When a trade recewable 1s considered
uncollectable, 1t 1s written off against the allowance account Subsequent recovenes of amounts previously written off are credited against
the allowance account Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss
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Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses dervative firancial irstruments, in particular irterest rate swaps, foreign currency swaps and forward exchange contracts,
to manage the financial nisks arising from the business activities and the financing of those activities The Group does not use denvative
finarcial instrumenrts for speculative purposes

The use of finarcial denvatives 1s governed by the Group's policies approved by the Board of Directors, which provide written principles on
the use of financial dervatives

Dervative firancial instruments are recognised as assets and habilities measured at therr fair value on the balance sheet date Changes

in the fair value of ary dervative instruments that do not fulfil the cntena for hedge accounting contained ir IAS 32 Finarcial Instruments
Recognition and Measurerent are recognised immediately Ir the income statement A denwvative 1s presented as a nor-currert assat or a
non-current lability f the remairing matunity of the instrument 1s more than 12 morths and 1t1s rot expected to be realised or settled within
12 morths

Hedge accounting
Tre Group uses foreigr currency debt and cross currency swaps to Fedge its exposure to changes in the underlying net assets of overseas

operations arising from foreigr exchange rate movemerts

The Group maintains documentation of the relationship between the hedged item and the hedging nstrument at the inception of a hedging
transaction together with the risk management objective and the strategy urderlying the designated hedge The Group also documents its
assessment, both at the inception of the hedging relatienship and subsequently on ar ongeing basis, of the effectiveress of the hedge in
offsetirg movements in the far values or cash flows of the hedged tems

When hedge accourting is used, the relevart hedging relationships are classified as fair value hedges, cash flow hedges or ret investment
hedges

Note 18 sets out the detaids of the fair values of the dervative instrurments used for hedging purposes

Fair value hedge

Charges In the farr value of dervatives that are designated ard gualify as fair value hedges are recorded i the income statement, together
witk any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged nsk The change in the far value of the
hedging irstrumenrt ard the change ir the Fedged item attnbutable to the hedged risk are recognised in the hine of the Income statement
relating to the hedged item

Cash flow hedge

Cash flow hedging matches the cask flows of hedged items agairst the carresponding cash flow of the dervetive The effective part of any
gair or 10ss on the denvative 1s recogrised directly ir other comprehensive income ard the hedged 1tem 1s accounted for ir accordance
with the policy for that firarcial irstrurmert Any ineffective part of any gan or loss 1s recogrised immediately in the income staterment

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or 1s sold, terminated, or exercised. or ro longer qualifies for hedge
accounting At that tme, any cumulative gain or loss or the hedging instrument recognised In equity 1s retained in eguity until the forecast
trarsaction occurs |f a hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain of loss recoegnised in equity 1s transferred
to ret profit or loss for the period

Net investment hedge

Hedges of net nvestments in foreign operatiors are accourted for similarly to cash flow hedges To the extent the hedge is effective,
changes In the fair value of the hedging nstrument ansing from the hedged risk are recogmised in the consolidated statement ol
comprehensive income and accumulated in the hedging and transiation reserve The gain or loss relating to ary ineffective portior 1s
recogrised immediately in the income statement and s included 1n other cperating experses
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Gains and losses accumulated in equity are included in the income statement in the evert that the foreign operatior 15 disposed of

Provisions
Provisions are recogrised when the Group has a present cbligatior {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, when 1t1s probable
that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and when a reliable estimate car be mads of the amount of the obligation

The amount recogrised as a provisior is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present cbiigation at the balance
sreet date, taking into account the nsks ard uncertainties surrounding the obhgation Where a provisior 1s measured using the cash flows
astimated to settle the present obhigation ard the effect of the adjustment 1s matenal in relation to the financial statements 1ts carrying
amourt s the present value of those cash flows

Share-based payments
The Group has applied the requiremerts of IFRS 2 Share-based Payments

Trhe Group issues equity-settled share-based paymerts to certair employees Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at far
value at the date of grant The fair value deterrured at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expersed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimate of the rumber of equity instruments expected
to vest as a result of the effect of ron-market based vesting conditions The impact of the revisior of the onginal estimates, If any, 1s
recogmsed In profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimates with a corresponding adjustment to the equity-

settled employee berefits reserve



Group accounting policies continued

Year ended 31 December 2017

General information
Bodycote plcis a compary incorporated in the United Kirgdom under the Companies Act The address of the registered office 1s given

on page 37
The nature of the Group’s operations and 1ts principal activities are included within the Group's Strategic report

Informaticn on the Group's objectives, policies and processes are ircluded within the Group's Strategic report

items included in the financial statements of each ertity In the Group are measured using the currency of the pnimary economic
enviroriment in which the ertity operates The consolidated financial statements are presented in pounds steriing, which 1s the functionat
and presentation currency of the Parent Foreign operations are included in accordance with the policies set out in the Foreigr Currencies

accounting policy on page 91

Adoption of new and revised standards

In the current year, the following new and revised standards and interpretations have been adopted

a Amendments to IAS 12 Recogrition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The above interpretations and revised standards have not had any material impact on the amounts reported n these fimrancial statements or
the cisclosures required

At the date of authonsatior of these linancial statements, tre following standards ard interpretations which have not been appled in these
financial statements were in issue but not yet effective {and in some cases had not yet beer endorsed by the EU)

m IFRS 9 Firancial instruments

m [FRS 15 Reverue from contracts with customers

m Clartications to IFRS 15 Clanfications to IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

w IFRS 16 Leases

m Amendmerts to IFRS 2 Classification and measuremert of share-based payment transactions
s IFRIC 22 Foreign currency transactions and advarce consideration

The directors do not expect that the adoption of the standards histed above will have a maténal impact on the firancial statements of the
Group in future periods, except in the case of IFRS 16, as descrbed below

m IFRS 9 s effective for annual periods beginning 1 January 2018 ard will replace IAS 39 Firancial Irstruments This standard covers
the classification, measurement, imparrment ard de-recogrition of financial assets and financial labiities together with a new hedge
accourting model The Group does not expect the trarsition to this standard to have a matenal impact or the financial statements

m IFRS 1515 effective for annual penods beginning 1 Jaruary 2018 and wiil replace 1AS 11 Construction Cortracts ard I1AS 18 Reverue This
standard reguires the separation of performance obligations within contracts wiath custorers and the contractual val.e to be allocated to
each of the performance obligations Revenue 1s then recognised as each performance obhgatior 1s satisfied Retrospectve application
ir the comparative year ending 31 December 2017 15 optional, however the Group does not expect to undertake this option An irihial
assessment has been performed and 1t 1s not anticipated that transition to IFRS 15 will have a material impact on the Group

m |FRS 16 1s effective for annual penods beginmirg 1 January 2013, subject to EU endorsement, and wilt replace 1AS 17 Leases This
standard requires lessees to recogmse assets and habities for all leases, uniess the lease term s 12 morths or less, or the underlying
asset is low value As at 31 December 2017 the Group holds a sigmificant number of operating ieases which currently, under IAS 17 are
expensed on a straight ine basis over the lease term Depending on the choice of methodalogy permitted under IFRS 16, the Group may
pe obhged to reflect the impact of IFRS 16 in the comparative figures for 2018 in 1ts accounts for the year ending 31 December 2019 The
group will conclude on its choice of methodology dunng the current year Aninitial assessment has been performed and 1t 1s anticipated
that transition to IFRS 16 will have a matenal impact on the valLe of lease assets and liablities recogrised in the consolidated balance
sheet The Group will continue to monitor the impact untif the transition date, providirg further quantitative and qualitative measures as
progress iz made on mplernematon planming

Beyord the irformation above, 1t 1s not practicable to provide a reasonable finarcial estimate of the effect of these standards until a detailled
review has been completed




Notes to the consolidated financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2017

1. Alternative performance measures (APMs)
Bodycote uses various APMs, in addition to those reported under IFRS, as managemert believe these measures enable users of
the financial statements to assess the underiying trading performarce of the business The APMs used include headling operating
profit, headline profit before taxation, EBITDA, headiine EBITDA, headline earrings per share (EFS), headline operating cash flow,
free cash flow, net cash and return on capital employed (ROCE) These measures reflect the underlying performance of the business
as they exclude the impact of amortisation of acquired intangible assets and exceptional tems The Group also uses revenue growth
percentages adjusted for the impact of foreign exchange movements, where appropriate, also to better represent the underlying
perfarmance of the business The measures descrnibed above are also used in the targeting process for executive and maragement
annual borLses (headlire operating profit, operating cash-flow) ard share schemes {headline operating profit, Feadline operating cash
flow, ROCE, headline EPS)

The constant exchange rate comparison uses the current year reported segmertal information, stated in the relevant functional
currency, ard translates the results irto its presentational currency using the prior year's monthly exchange rates

APMs are defined and reconciled to the IFRS statutory measure as follows

Headline operating profit

2017 2016
£m fm
Statutory operatirg profit 19.4 94 5
Add back
Amortsation of acquired intangibles 4.5 45
Acguisition costs - 08
Headline operating profit 123.9 996
Headline profit before taxation
2017 2016
£fm fm
Profit before taxation 170 919
Add back
Armartisation of acquired intangibles 45 45
Acquisition costs - 06
Headline profit before taxation 1215 970
EBITDA and Headline EBITDA {Eamings Before Interest, Taxation, Depreciation, and Amortisation) -
2017 206 £
£m £m £
]
Operating profit 119.4 94 5 ‘E
Depreciation and amortisation 64.3 59 7 s
Impairment of fixed assets 0.4 51 E
Profit on disposal of property. plant and equipment (0.7} {4 5) [
Profit or disposal of businesses - on
Share-based paymerts 7.8 G5
EBITDA 191.2 155 2
Add back exceptional items
Acquisition costs - 08
Headline EBITDA 191.2 155 8

Headline eamings per share
A detailed reconciliation 1s provided i~ note 10



Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2017

1. Altemnative performance measures (APMs) continued
Headline operating cash flow

207 2018
£m £m
Cash generated by operations 182.8 146 3
Less
Net caprtal experditure (74.8) 163 1)
Add
Restructurirg cash flows 3.7 78
Acauistion expenses - 06
Headline operating cash flow m.7 914
Free cash flow
2017 2016
£m £m
Cash gererated by operations 182.8 146 3
Less
Net capital experditure (74.8) B3 1)
Financing costs (2.1} 2%
Taxation (22.9) 120 4)
Free cash flow 83.0 605
MNet cash
2017 e
£m £m
Cash and bank balances 41.0 120
Bark overdrafts (ircluded ir borrowings) {1.4) 58
Loans - (5 0}
Finance leases - {01
Net cash 39.6 11
Retutn on capital employed
2017 2016
£m £m
Headline operating profit 123.9 296
Average capital employed’ 642.5 582 3
Return on capital employed 19.3% 171%

' Average capital employed 1s calculated as average of opening (E6272m) and closing (E6578m} capital employed

Revenue and headline operating profit at constant exchange rates
Reconciled to reverue and headline operating profit in the table below

Year to 31 December 2017

Costs and
ADE AGl eliminations Consolidated
£m £m £m £fm
Revenue 2731 4171 - 690.2
Constant exchange rates adjustrment {10.5) {21.6} - (32.1)
Revenue at constant exchange rates 262.6 395.5 - 658.1
Headline operating profit 64.2 74.2 {14.5) 1239
Constant exchange rates adjustment (2.4) (4.0) 0.1 (6.3)
Headline operating profit at corstant exchange rates 61.8 70.2 {14.4) 117.6
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Business and geographical segments
Tre Group has 187 locations across the world serving a range of mar<et sectors with various thermal processirg services The range
and type of services offered 1s common to all market sectors

In accordarice wath IFRS 8 Operating Segments, the segmenrtation of Group activity reflects the way the Group 15 managed by the
chief operating decision maker, being the Group Chief Executive, who on @ monthly basis reviews the operating performarce of six
operating segments, spht betweenr the Aerospace, Defence & Energy (ADE) and Automotive & General Industnal {AGI) busingss areas,
as follows

m ADE -\Western Europe,

m ADE - North Amenca,

® ADE - Emerging markets,

m AGlI -Western Europe,

m AGI— North Amernca, ard

m AGl - Emerging markets

The split of cperating segments by geography reflects the dvsional reporting structure of the Group

In accordance with the aggregation criteria of IFRS 8, the operating segmerts are aggregated into the Group's two key business areas,
ADE and AGI, the spht being driven by customer behaviour and requirements Customers in the ADE segment tend to operate and
purchase more globally ard have long supply chains, while customers ir the AGl segment tend to purchase maore locally and have
shorter supply chamns

Bodycote plants do not exclusively supply services to customers of a given market sector Allocations of plants between ADE and AGI
15 therefore derived by reference to the preponderance of markets served

Central
costs and

Group ADE AGl eliminations Consolidated

207 2017 2017 2017

£m fm £m £m

Revenue
Total revenue 273.1 4171 - 690.2
Result
Headhine operating profit pricr to skare-based payments and
unallocated central costs 65.6 773 - 142.9
Share-based payments {including social charges) {1.4) (3.1} (4.6) {9.1} -
Unallocated central costs - - (9.9} (9.9} §
Headline operating profit/lloss) 64.2 74.2 (14.5) 123.9
Amortisation of acquired intangible fixed assets {1.5) {3.0] - {4.5} E
Operating profit/iloss) prior to exceptional items 62.7 712 [14.5) 119.4 §
Segment resuit 62.7 71.2 {14.5) 119.4 é
Investment revenue 0.1
Finance costs {2.5)
Profit before taxation 170
Taxation (19.7}
Profit for the year 973

Intersegrent sales are not matenal in either year

The Group does not rely on any individual major customers



Notes to the consolidated financial statements contnued
Year ended 31 December 2017

2. Business and geographical segments continued

Westem North Emerging Total
Agrospace, Defence & Energy Europe America markets ADE
2017 2017 2017 2017
£m £m £m £m
Revenue
Total revenue 126.0 145.7 14 273.1
Resuit
Headline operating profil prior to share-based payments 307 34.7 0.2 65.6
Share-based payments (roluding sooial charges) {0.5) {0.9) - {1.48)
Headhne operatirg profit 302 338 0.2 64.2
Amortisation of acquired intargible fixed assets (0.3) (1.2) ~ {1.5)
QOperating profit prior to exceptional items 29.9 326 0.2 62.7
Segment result 29.9 32.6 0.2 627
Westem North Emerging Total
Automotive & General Industrial Europe America markets AGI
2017 2017 2017 2017
£fm £m £m fm
Revenue
Total revenue 258.9 105.5 52.7 4171
Resuhlt
Headline operating prohit prior to share-pased payments 51.2 1.6 145 773
Share-based payments (including social charges) {2.4) (0.4) {0.3) (3.1}
Headlire operating profit 48.8 1.2 14.2 74.2
Amortisation of acquired intangible fixed assets (0.4) [2.6) - (3.0}
Operating profit prior to exceptional items 48.4 8.6 14.2 71.2
Segment resuit 48.4 8.6 14.2 71.2
Central
costs and
Group ADE AGI  elirmirations  Consolidated
2016 2018 206 2016
£m £m £m £m
Revenue
Total revenue 250 9 349 7 - 8006
Result
Headling cperating profit pricr to share-based payrments and
unallocated central costs 56 3 579 - 114 2
Share-based payments inciuding socal charges) on 08 @8 07
Unallocated central costs - - (13 9) (13 9}
Headline operating profityiloss) 55 6 585 (14 5) 896
Amortisation of acaurred intangible fixed assets 15} 30 - 4 5)
Operating prefit/loss) prior to exceptional items 541 555 (14 5) 951
Acquisition costs - ({0 6) - {0 8)
Segment result 541 549 114 B} 345
Finance costs {26
Profit before taxation 919
Taxation {24 9)
Profit for the year 670
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Business and geographical segments continued

Western North Emerging Total
Aerospace, Defence & Energy Europe America rarkets ADE
2016 2086 2016 2016
£m fm fm £m
Revenue
Total revenue 1151 134 7 11 25089
Result
Headhne operating profit prior to share-based payments 240 327 104) 56 3
Share-pased payments (including social charges) 0 2) {0 o) - 07
Headlire operating profit/iloss) 238 322 {04) 55 &
Amortisation of acguired intangible fixed assets 0 3} (12) - {15}
Qperating profit prior to excepticral items 235 310 04) 541
Segmenrt result 235 310 (0 4) 541
Western North Ermerging Total
Automotive & General Industrial Europe America marxets AGI
2016 2016 2016 2016
£m fm fm £fm
Revenue
Total revenue 2149 94 3 405 349 7
Result
Headline operating prefit prior to share-based payments 368 107 104 579
Stare-based payments (ircluding social charges) 04 01 01 06
Headline operating profit 372 108 105 585
Amortisatior of acguired intangible fixed asseis {0 4) (2 6) - (30
Operating profit prior 10 exceptional items 368 82 105 55 5
Acquisition costs 10 4) 10°2) - {0 B)
Segment result 36 4 80 105 549
Other information Central
costs and
Group ADE AGI eliminations Consolidated
2017 2m7 2017 2017
£m £m £m £m
Gross capital additions 33.6 39.7 5.2 785
Depreciation and arnortisation 235 39.3 1.5 64.3
Balance sheet
Assets
Segment assets 352.6 530.2 76.9 8959.7
Liabihties
Segment labilities {60.2) {133 2) {68.8) {262.2)
292.4 3970 81 6975
Allocation of head office net liabilities 3.4 4.7 8.1} -
Adjusted segment net assets 295.8 401.7 - 6975




Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2017

2. Business and geographical segments continued

Westem North Emerging Total
Aerospace, Defence & Energy Europe America markets ADE
2017 2017 2017 2017
£m £m £m £m
Gross capital additiors 234 9.3 0.9 336
Depreciation ard amortisation 10.0 13.4 [} 235
Balance sheet
Agsets
Segment assets 168.0 173.9 4.7 352.6
Liablities
Segment hablimes {30.8) (28.4) (1.0) {60.2)
Segment net assetls 1372 1515 3.7 292.4
Westermn North Emerging Total
Aytomotive & General Industrial Europe America markets AGI
2017 207 2017 2017
£m £m £m £m
Gross capital addimons 20.1 12.6 7.0 39.7
Deprecianon and amortisation 23.6 10.5 52 393
Balance sheet
Assets
Segment assets 292.3 153.2 84.7 8302
Liabihites
Segment habilities [96.7) {20.6) (15.9) {133.2)
Segment nel assets 195.6 132.6 68.8 397.0
Certral
costs and
Group ADE AGI eliminations  Consclidated
2018 2018 2016 2016
£m £m fm £m
Gross caprtal addinons 258 390 59 707
Deprecation and amortisation 222 365 10 59 7
Balance sheet
Assets
Segment assets 3431 514 8 665 924 4
Liabilies
Segment liabihties 1678) {122 4) 105 9) (296 1}
2753 3924 (39 4) 6283
Allocation of head office net liabilities {16 2) (23 2} 394 -
Adjusted segment net assets 2531 368 2 — 628 3
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Business and geographical segments continued

VWesterr MNorth Emerging Total
Aerospace, Defence & Energy Europe America markets ADE
2016 2016 26 2018
£m m £m fm
Gross capital additions 105 130 23 258
Depreciation and amortisation 93 127 02 222
Balance sheet
Agzsets
Segment assets 1427 196 8 35 3431
Liabiities
Segrnent hatnhties (29 7) (36 3} 118} 1678)
Segment ret assets 130 160 6 17 2753
Western North Emerging Total
Automotive & General Industnial Europe Arenca markets ADE
2016 2016 2016 20186
£rm frm £m £m
Gross capital additions 202 106 82 380
Depreciation and amortsatior 217 105 43 365
Balance sheet
Assets
Segment assets 2798 163 3 717 514 8
Liabilities
Segmert labilities (918) 210} (9 6) (122 4)
Segment net assets 188 0 1423 621 392 4

Geographical information
The Group’s reverue from external customers ard irformation about 1ts segment assets (non-current assets excluding financial
instrumerts, deferred tax assets and other financial assets) by country are detalled below

Revenue from

extemnal customers Non-current assets

207 2016 2017 2016

£fm fm £m £m
i
USA 236.8 Z1%0 272.1 298 9 §
Frarce 11.9 976 78.1 738 g
Germany 91.4 699 86.5 854 E
UK 519 485 91.0 76 4 E
Sweden 38.9 361 36.8 375 E
Netherlands 29.4 253 227 226 [+

Others 129.9 104 2 134.3 1211

690.2 6C0 6 7215 7157




Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2017

3. Operating profit

2017 2016
£m £m
Revenue 690.2 60086
Cost of sales [429.9} (378 4)
Gross profit 260.3 2222
Other operatirg ncome 4.5 44
Distributior costs (21.3) {20 9)
Admimnistration expenses (118.6) 101 7)
Other operating experses {1.0) (4 4}
Headline operating profrt 1239 988
Amortisation of acquired intangible lixed assets (4.5} 4 5)
Operating profit prior to exceptienal items 184 981
Exceptional items - (0 6)
Operating profit 119.4 94 5
Exceptional items comprise
2017 2016
£m £m
Acquisition costs - 06
- 08
Profit for the year has been arrived at after chargmg/{crediting)
207 2%
£m £m
MNet foreign exchange Igains)/losses - {05)
Inventory expensed 53.0 482
Depreciation of property, plant and egquipment 58.1 541
Amortisatior of intangible fixed assets 6.2 56
Gain on disposal of property, plant and eguipment (0.7} {4 5}
Staff costs (sea note 4) 283.8 2395
Acqusition costs - 06
Impairment loss on trade recervables 0.8 12
Impairment of fixed assets — recognised in operating profit 0.4 51
The analysis of auditor's remuneration on a worldwide basis 1s as follows
2017 2016
£fm fm
Fees payable 10 the Companvy’s auditer for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts 0.1 01
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its associates for other services
The audht of the Company’s subsidaries 0.7 07
Total sudht fees 0.8 08
Audit related assurance services* 0.1 01
Total non-audit fees 0.1 01
0.9 09

In addition to the amounis shown above, the auditor received fees of £2000 (2016 £6.800) for the audrit of the Group's pension
schemes

Fees pad to Delottte LLP and its associates for non-audit services to the Company are rot required to be disciosed

A description of the work of the Audit Committee 1s set outin the Audit Commuttee report and includes ar explanatior of how auditor
oblectivity and independence 1s safequarded when non-audit services are provided by the auditor

* This ncludes £0 1m {2016 £0 1m) for the review of the half year report

L
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Staff costs
The average monthly number of employees including executive directors) was

2017 2018
Number Number

ADE
VWestern Europe 892 902
MNorth America 827 812
Emergirg marksts 16 18

AGI
Western Europe 1,945 1.825
North Amernca 962 923
Emerging markets 688 616
Shared services 235 242
Head office 29 29
5,594 5,367
2017 2016
£m £m

Treir aggregate remureration compnsed

Wages and salaries 2425 2034
Soclal security costs 331 296
Other persion costs 8.2 65
283.8 2395

Included 1r wages and salares are share-based paymerts resulting in a charge of £78m {2016 £0 5m;

included In other pensiar costs are £6 7m relating 1o dehined contribution schemes (2016 £6 2m} and £15m relating to defined benefit
schames (2016 £0 3m)

Disclosure of indivedual directors’ remuneration, share interests, share eptions, long term incertive schemes, pension contnbutions
and pension entitlements required by the Comparies Act 2006 and those specfied for audit by the Listirg Rules of the Finarcial
Conduct Authority are shown in the tables in the Board report on remuneration on pages 54 to 75 and form part of these financial
statements

Exceptional items

2017 2016 'E
£fm fm g
ACQUISIIION costs - 06 i
»
"n
- 06 =
2
Acguisition costs of £ril (2018 £0 6m} were expensed in the year s
&
Investment revenue
2017 2016
£m £m
Other interest receivable 0.1 -
Total interest ard investrent revenue 0.1 -
All irvestmert revenue relates to bank balarces and other receivables
Finance costs
2017 2016
£fm frr
Interest on bark overdrafts and loars* 0.1 Q2
Total irterest expense 0.1 02
Net interest on the defined benelil pension labihity 0.4 03
Other finarce charges® 2.0 21
Total firarce costs 25 26

* Amounts ans ng on financial lapot ¢s measured at amortised cost



Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2017

8. Taxation

2017 2018

£m £m

Current taxation - charge for the vear 281 249
Current taxation — adjustments in respect of previous years (6.3) 22
Deferred iax {see rote 19} (2.1} 22}
19.7 243

The Group has chosen to use & weighted average country tax rate rather thar the UK tax rate for the reconciiation of the charge

for the year to the profi before taxation per the consclidated ircome statement The Group operates n several wrisdictions, many

of which have a tax rate in excess of the UK tax rate As such, 3 weighted average country tax rate 1s believed to provide the most
meaningful infermation to the users of the financial statements The appropriate tax rate for this comparison 1s 30 09% (2018 32 36%)

As part of the calculation of the tax charge, the Group recognises a number of tax nsk provisions ir respect of ongoirg tax inquires
and 1in recogrition of the mulunational tax environmert that Bodycote operates in where the rature of the tax positions that are taken
1s often complex and subject tc change

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation per the corsolidated incorne statement as follows

2017 2016
£m £m
Profit before taxation 112.0 9192
Tax at the weighted average country tax rate of 30 09% (2016 32 36%) 35.2 297
Tax effect of expenses not deductible in determinirg taxable profit! 0.4 (0 4}
Impact of recognition or derecognition of deferred tax balances {1.4} 21
Effect of lorg-term capital financing? 0.7 {10}
Tax effect of other adjustments ir respect of previous years
Current tax? (7.0} 22
Deferred tax® 4.3 {06}
Effect of fmanoing acivities between junsdicions? (9.2) {72y
Impact of trade and mimimum corporate taxes 13 1
Impact of US Tax Cuts and Jobs Act treated as an exceptional item? {6.4) -
Effect of changes in statutory tax rates or deferred tax assets and habiities (0.1) {12}
Other tax nsk provision movements 1.9 02
Tax expense for the year 19.7 249

Tax on items taken directly to equity s a credit of £0 5m (2016 £10m)

' Those costs n vanous ternitonies not deductible in calculating taxable profits

2The Group 15 axternally financed by a mix of cash flows from aperations, short-tarm borrowings, long-term loans and finance leases Intermnally, operating
supsidiaries are predominantly ‘nanced via intercompany loans The charge includes prov s.ons pased on management's estimation of tax nsk

22017 prior year adjustrments in current and deferred tax relate to changes in assumptions and cutcomes in relation 1o overseas sax credits and other
clawms, whilst the 2016 ad;ustments mainy relate to changes in overseas pensicns assumrptions

* Net exceptional impact of the passing of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act in the US n Decemper 2017 made up o (i} £6 8m one-off tax gan resulting from a
revaiuation of the Group's US deferred tax liabiliies, and (n} £0 4m tax charge on aceumulated overseas profis of US enttes
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10.

Dividends

2017 2016
£m £m

Amounts recogrisad as distributions to equity holders in the year
Final dwidend for the year ended 31 December 2016 of 10 8p (2015 10 3p} per share 205 196
Special dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 of Ni (2015 10 Op) per share - 190
Interim dividerd for the year erded 31 December 2017 of 5 3p {2016 5 Op) per share 10.1 95
30.6 481
Proposed final dvidend for the year erded 31 December 2017 of 12 1p (2016 10 8p) per share 230 205
Proposed special dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017 of 25 Op {2016 O Op) per share 479 -

The proposed final dvidend and special dwvidend are subject to approval by shareholders at the Arnual General Meeting and have not

been included as habilties in these financial statements

The dividend s warved or shares held by the Bodycote interrational Employee Benefit Trust

Earnings per share
The calculatior of the basic ard diluted earmings per share s based on the followirg data

2017 2016
£m £m
Eamings
Earrirgs for the purpose of basic earmings per share being ret profit attnbutable to equity holders of
the parenrt 971 670
Number Number
Number of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic earrirgs per share 190,250,855 190,166,794
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
Share optiors - -
Weighted average number of ordirary shares for the purpose of diluted earnings per share 190,250,855 190,166,794
Pence Pence
Eamings per share:
Basic 51.0 352
Diluted 51.0 352
£m £m
Headline eamings
Net profit attributable to equity holders of the parent 97.1 670
Add back
Arnortisation of acquired intangible fixed assets {net of tax) 2.9 28
Acquisition costs {ret of tax) - 05
Less
Impact of US Tax Cuts and Jobs Act treated as an exceptioral item (6.4) -
Headline eamings 93.6 703
Pence Perce
Headline eamings per share:
Basic 49.2 370
Diluted 49.2 370




Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2017

11. Goodwiill
2017 2016
£m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2225 20086
Exchange differences {4.1) 118
Recognised on acquisition of bLsinesses 04 104
At 31 December 218.8 2225
Accumulated impairment
At 1 Jaruary 61.6 60g
Exchange differences (0.4) 10
At 31 December 61.2 616
Carrying amount 157.6 160 9

Duning the year @ £0 4m hindsight adjustment was made to a 2016 acguisition

Goodwill acquired in a busimess combinator 1s allocated, at acquesition, 1o the business umts that are expected to berefit from that
business combiration After recogrition of impairmenrt losses, the carrying amount of goodwill has been allozated to the Group's cash
gererating units, which are summansed in the followirg operating segments

2017 2016
£m £m
ADE
Western Eurcpe 270 268
North America 475 49
AGI
Western Europe 241 231
North Amernica 52.5 559
Emerging markets 6.5 61
1576 160 9

The Group tests goodwill at least annually for impairment, or more frequently If there are inrdications that goodwill might be imparred

The recoverable amounts of the cash generating urits are determined from value ir use calculations The ey assumptions for those
calculations are the discount rates and growth rates in respect of future cash flows Management estimates discount rates using
pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of morey and the risks specific to the cash generating units
This rate 15 sk adjusted, for specific countries, where the Group percerves a ns< premium 1s apprognate The rates used to discount
the forecast cash flows for cash generating units are between 117% (2016 13 4%) and 12 7% (2016 14 4%) The recoverable amount
1s the sum of the discounted cash flows as forecast for the coming five years, together with a further estimate of cash flows in
perpetuity

The forecast sales in the initial 5 years reflect management's expectation of how sales will develop at this point in the economic
cycle This is based on the approved 2018 budget and a growth rate of up to 3% vear on year The expected profit margin reflects
management's experience of each cash generating unit's profitability at the forecast level of sales As outhned in the Business
review, these forecasts take mto account the current and expected economic environment both in respect of geography and market
sectors Annual growth in cash flows after five years are in the range 2 4% to 5 4% depending on the geographical region of the cash
generating unit and are based on historical weighted average growth in GDP in the respective geographies

=
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1.

12.

Goodwill {continued)

If the goodwiil allocated to a cash generatirg unit represents more than 15% of the Group's tetal goodwill carrying value, the cash
generaling unit 1s corsiderad to be individuaily significant The Group considers the North Amenica ADE Heat Treatment and Naorth
Amernca AG| Heat Treatment cash generating units to be significant cash gererating units The lang term growth rates apphed to cash
flows after five years and the rates used to discount the forecast cash flows for these significant cash generating umits are showr
below

Goodwill
carrying Long term Discount
value growth rate rate
Cash gereratirg unit £m Y% %
North America ADE Heat Treatment 475 2.9 1.7
North America AGl Heat Treatment 52.5 2.9 1.7

The Group has corducted sensitivity analysis on the ey assumptiors apphed to the value in use calculations for each cash gereratirg
unit The separate sensitivity scenanos anglysed irclude reduction ir the forecast sales of 20% to 50% i the first year of the forecast
and reduction cf the long-term revenue growth assumptions of 50% to 100% from year five of the cash flows

The Dhrectors do not consider that there are any reasonable possible sensitivities for the business that could anse ir the next 12
months that could result in a matenial impairment charge beirg recogrised

Tre Board has concluded that ro impairment charge 1s required it 2017

Other intangible assets

Non-
compete Customer
Software agreements relationships Total
fm £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 Jaruary 2016 288 25 350 66 7
Exchange differences 14 - 68 82
Addmions 60 - - 60
Acguired on acquisitior of businesses - 02 73 )
Disposals (11} - - {11
At 1 Jannary 2017 35.1 31 491 873
Exchange differerces {0.1) - (3.4) (3.5)
Additiors 5.2 - - 5.2
Disposals {0.3) - - {0.3)
At 31 December 2017 39.9 31 45.7 88.7
Amortisation
At 1 January 2018 133 23 159 315
Exchange differences 12 - 35 a7
Charge for the year 11 07 38 56
Imparment loss 01 - - a1
Disposals {0 4) - - © 4)
At 1 January 2017 15.3 3.0 23.2 415
Exchange differences 0.1) - [2.0) {2.1)
Charge for Lhe yvear 1.7 0.1 44 6.2
Disposals {0.3) - - (0.3)
At 31 December 2017 16.6 3.1 25.6 45.3
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2017 233 - 20.1 434

At 31 December 2016 198 01 259 458




Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2017

13. Property, plant and equipment
Land and buildings

Long Short Plant and Fixtures Agsets under
Freehold leasehold leasehold machinery and fittings construction Total
£m £€m £m £m £m £m £m

Cost or valuation
At 1 Jaruary 2016 2139 95 89 7528 251 518 1,0618
Additions 18 07 01 173 08 440 g4 7
Acquisition of businesses 51 - - 14 02 - 167
Exchange differences 327 05 14 1087 38 78 154 9
Transfer 1o assets held for sale [AD - - - - -~ 1
Recategonsation 50 04 10 276 08 (34 8) -
Drsposals 17 - Q 8} (13 9) 11 on {176}
Disposal of businesses 12 9§ - - 12 6) - - 55
At 1 January 2017 252.8 1.1 10.6 901.3 29.6 68.5 1.273.9
Additions 0.6 1.7 0.2 10.8 0.4 59.6 73.3
Acquisition of businesses - - - 8.7 - - 87
Exchange differences (0.8) 0.1 (0.4) (11.7} 0.2 {0.6) {13.2)
Farr value adjustment - - - {0.6) - - (0.8)
Transfer to assets heid for sate {1.4) - - - - - {1.4)
Recategonsation 6.1 (1.1) 3.1 51.7 1.1 (60.9) -
Disposals {3.9) - - {31.2) (1.5) {0.1) (36.7)
At 31 December 2017 253.4 11.8 13.5 929.0 29.8 66.5 1,304.0
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
AL January 2016 92 0 a7 81 508 5 19¢ - 632 2
Charge for the year 57 05 06 44 6 17 - 541
Impairment losses incurred - - 02 a7 01 - 50
Exchange differerces 147 Q1 09 746 30 - 933
Transfer to assets held for sale 10 7} - - - - - {Q 7}
Eliminated on disposals (10} {0 4) 107} {12 0} (11} - (15 2)
Elrminated on disposal of businesses {0 8) - - 2 9 - - (3 8}
At 1 January 2017 110.8 49 71 6185 236 - 764.9
Charge for the year 6.5 1.0 0.7 48.4 1.5 - 58.1
Impairment losses incurred - - - 0.4 - - 0.4
Exchange differences 04 - {0.1) {5.5) 0.1 - (5.1}
Transfer to assets heid for sale {0.6) - - - - ~ {0.6)
Recategonsahon 11 {0.9) - {0.2) - - -
Elrminated on disposals {3.2) - - {29.5) {1.5) - (34.2)
At 31 December 2017 115.0 5.0 17 632.1 23.7 - 783.5
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2017 138.4 6.8 5.8 296.9 6.1 66.5 5205
Al 31 December 2016 142 62 35 282 8 60 6585 509 0

During the year a £0 6m fair value adjustment was made to the value of acquired plant and machinery from 2016

At 31 December 2017 the Group had entered into contractual commitments for the acquisiior of property, plant and equiprent
amounting to £2 &m (2016 £17m)

in addition 1o the above, property, plant and egquipment amounting 1o £2 1m {2016 £18m) has beer classtiied as held for sale and s
disclosed within current assets

u
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13. Property, plant and equipment continued
The Group restructured vanous operations during the year and identfied £0 4m (2016 £5 O0m) of asset imparments Asset impairmerts

broken down by business segment are as follows

2Mm7 206
£m £rm
ADE
Westerr Europe 0.2 -
North America - 05
Emerging markets - 0?2
AGI
Western Europe 0.2 03
Morth America - 38
Emerging markets - 02
0.4 50

1115 the directors’ view that there are no matenal dfferences between the value of the land owned and therr carrying value in the
balarce sheet

14. Inventories

2017 2016
£m £m
Raw materials 13.2 124
Work-in-progress 2.9 39
Firished goeds and goods for resale 0.3 03
16.4 16 6
15. Other financial assets
Trade and other receivables
2017 2016
£m fm
Amounts falling due within one year:
Amcunts receivable for the supply of services 1M4.2 106 4
Other debtors ard prepayments*® 26.2 199
140.4 126 3
Amounts falling due after more than one year:
Other debtors and prepaymenrts* 1.0 04

* Other financia- assets include prepayments of £9 4m (2016 £8 0, which are not mcluded as financial assets under IFRS 7

Tre average credit period given to custormers for the supply of services as at 31 December 2017 15 63 days (2016 63 days} An
allowance has been made for estimated rrecoverable amounts from the supply of services of £5 5m {2016 £72m} This allowance has
been determined by refererce to past default expernence

The directors corsider that the carrying amount of trade and other recervables approximates therr fair value



Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2017

15. Other financial assets continued
Credit risk
The Group's principal financial assets are bark balances, cash and trade and other recenvables

The Group's credit nsk s pnmanly attributable to 11s trade receivables The amounts preserted in the balance sheet are net of
allowances for doubtful recevables An allowance for iImparment 1s made where there s or identfied 10ss event which, based or
previous experierce, is evidence of a reduction in the recoverability of cash flows

The credit nsk on hiquid furds and dervative financat instrumenrts 1s imited because the counterparues are banks with high credit-
ratings assigned by International credit-rating agencies

The Group has ne significart concentration of credit nisk, with exposure spread over a large number of counterparties and customers
Further disclosure of the Group’s financial instrumenrt nsk managemert activities 1s set out In note 18

Included in the Group's trade recelvable balance are debtors with a carrying amount of £28 2m (2016 £219m) which are past due at
the reporting date for which the Group has not provided as there has not been a significant change ir credit quaity and the amounts
are suli considered recoverable The Group does not hold any coliatera) over these balances

The average credit terms offered to customers i1s 36 days, with a range from 14 days to 67 days

Ageing of past due but not imparired recevables

2n7 2016
£m £m
31-60 days 139 126
61-90 days 11.1 56
51-120 days 21 12
Greater than 120 days 21 25
29.2 219

Maovement in the allowance for doubtful debts
2017 2016
£m fm
Al 1 January 71 59
Impairment losses recognised 18 19
Allowance acquired with businesses - 01
Amounts wnitter off as uncellectable (2.4) 09
Impairment losses reversed (1.0 07
Exchange differences - 08
At 31 December 55 71

in determining the recoverability of a trade receivable the Group considers any change in the quality of the trade recenvable from the
date credit was initiaily granted up to the reporting date The concentration of credit nisk 1s hmited due to the customer base beirg
large and unrelated Accordingly the directors believe that there 1s no further credit provision required in excess of the allowance for
doubtful debts

Included in the alfowance for doubtful debts are indmiduaily impaired trade recenvables with a gross balance of £6 6m {2016 £10 Zm)
The impairment recogrised represents the difference between the carrying amourt of these trade recevables and the present value of
the expeciad proceads The Group does not hold ary coilateral over these balances

Ageing of impaired trade recevables

2017 2016

£m £m

Less than 3 months 15 16
3-12 months 3.7 29
Over 12 months 14 57
6.6 102
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15. Other financial assets continued
Cash and bank balances
Cash ard bank balances comprise cash held by the Group ard short-term bank deposits with an orginal matunty of three morths
or less The carrying amount of these assets approximates to therr fair value A breakdown of significart cash ard bar«< balances by
currency 1s as follows

2017 2016

Em £m

Sterlirg 245 33

Euro 6.0 22

Us Dollar 5.8 37

Swedish Krona 15 1C

Other 32 18

Total cashk and bark balances 41.0 120

16. Assets held for sale

Assets beld for sale comprise the followirg

2017 2016

£m fm

Property, plant and equipmert 21 18

Assets held for sale corsist exclusively of land ard buildings currertly not in use by the Group It 1s expected that the disposal of these
assets will be completed durning 2018 The assets held for sale are aralysed betweer operating segmerts as follows

2017 2016
£m £m
ADE
North America 0.8 13
AGI
Westerr Europe 0.4 05
Nerth America 0.9 -
21 18
17. Borrowings
2017 2016
£m £m 2
3
Borrowirgs at amortised cost E
Bank overdrafts 1.4 58 ,E
Loans - 50 IC]
14 108 E
=4
The borrowings are repayable as follows i
On demand or within ore year 14 58
in the third to fifth vears - 50
1.4 08
Less Amolnt due for settlement within 12 months ishown under current liabilities) (1.4) (B8}
Amount due for settlement after 12 montks - 50




Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
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17. Borrowings continued
Analysis of berrowings by currency

Other
Steding Euro US Dollar currencies Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2017
Bank Overdrafts - 0.6 0.6 0.2 14
— 0.6 0.6 0.2 14
At 31 December 2016
Bank overdrafts - 34 10 14 58
Loans 50 - - - 50
50 34 10 14 108
The weighted average interest rates paid were as follows
2017 2016
% %
Bank overdrafts and loans 1.9 17
The dirsctors eshmate the fair value of the Group's borrowings as follows
27 2016
£fm jilgg]
Bank overdrafis 1.4 58
Loans - 50

The aother principal features of the Group’s borrowings are as follows
{n Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand Mo overdrafts are secured

) At 31 December 2077 the Group's principal borrowing facihity had drawings of £nil {2016 £5 Om) under a Revolharg Credit Facility
of £230m This ursecured facility commenced on 3 Apnl 2017 and matures on 3 Aprf 2022 The mult-currercy drawings under this
facility carry an interest rate of between 0 90% and 175% above LIBOR {the applicable margin at 31 December 2017 was 0 90%)

At 31 December 2017 the Group had available £230 0m (2016 £225 0m) of undrawn commutted borrowing facilities
All borrowings are classified as financial habilities measured at amortised cost

18. Derivative financial instruments
Currency derivatives that are designated and effective as hedging instruments carried at fair value

Notional Fair Notional Fair
amount value amount value
2017 2017 2018 2018
Asset £m £m £m £m
Current
Forward foreign exchange contracts 3.0 - 44 01
Total
Forward foreign exchange contracts 3.0 — 44 01

The Group utiises currency denvatives to hedge maternal future transactions and cash flows The Group uses foreign currency forward
conrtracts in the management of its exchange rate exposures The contracts are pnmarnly denorminated in the currencies of the Group's
principal markets The unrecogrused gains and losses were nat significant in erther 2017 or 2016

In accordance with IFRS 7 Financral instrument Disclosures, the Group’s financial instruments are considered to be classified as
level 2 instruments Fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other thar guoted prices mnciuded within leval 1 that are
observable for the asset or liabilities, either directly (i e as prices) or indirectly (i ¢ derived from prices)

u
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18. Derivative financial instruments continued
Fair value 1s determired using quoted forward exchange rates and yeld curves derved from quoted interest rates matching matunties
of the contracts

The Group's interest rate ns<is primanly n relation to s fixed rate borrowings {fair value risk} and floatirg rate borrowings (cash flow
ns<} From time to time the Group will use interest rate denvative contracts to manage 1ts exposure 1o irterest rate movements within
Group peiicy However, at the balarce sheet date. the Group had no interest rate dervative contracts

us Swedish Other Total

Sterling Euro Dollar Krona currencies fair value

2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017

Asset/{hability} £m £m £m £m £m £fm
Forward foreign exchange contracts {1.2) 2.0 05 0.2 (1.5) -
On demand or within one year {1.2) 2.0 05 0.2 {1.5) -
Us Swedish Other Total

Sterling Euro Dollar Krora currencies fair value

2016 2016 2016 2016 2018 2018

Asset/{lability) £m £m £m £fm £m £rm
Forward foreign exchange contracts (12) {0 1) 08 20 {14) 01
Or demard or within one year {12) on 0g 20 {14 01

Financial risk management

The Group's treasury functior prowides a centralised service to the Group for furding, foreign exchange, interest rate maragement and
counterparty risk Treasury activities Pave the obiective of minimising risk and treasury operations are corducted within a framework of
policies and guidelines reviewed and authonsed by the Board

The Group uses a rumber of derivative instrumerts that are transacted, for sk managemenrt purposes only, by specialist treasury
persornel The use of financial Instruments, including derivatives, 1s permitted when approved by the Board, where the effect is to
rminimise ris< for the Group Speculative trading of dervatives or other firanaial instruments 1s rot permitted There has been no
sigrificant change dunng the financial year or since the end of the year, to the types or scope of firancial nsks faced by the Group
Liguidity risk

Liquichty nsk s defined as the nsk that the Group might not be able to settle or meet its ehligations on time or at a reasonable price
Liguidity nsk arses as a result of mismatches betweenr cash inflows and outflows from the busiress This nsk 1s monitored on a
centralised basis lbruugh reguiar cash flow forecasting, a three-year rolling strateqic plar, ar annual budget agreed by the Board each
December and a quarterly re-forecast undertaken during the firancial year To mitigate the nsk, the resutting forecast net debt/cash
15 measured aganst the hquidity headroom policy which, at the currert net debt/cash levels, requires committed facilities {plus term
loars in excess of one year) to exceed net debt by 50% (mimmum facilities of £75mj)

As at 31 December 2017 the Group had a revolving credit committed borrowing facility of £230 Om (2016 £230 Om) which, together
with ret cash of £39 6m 12016 £11m). resulted v available funds of £269 8m (2016 £2311m} The Group aiso uses uncommitted
short-term bank facihities to manage short-term hgquidity but these faciities are excluded from the Iiguidity headroom policy The Group
marages longerterm higuidity through its committed bank facilities and will, if appropriate, raise furds on capital markets

As at 31 December 2017 the Group's principal committed bark faciity of £230 O0m had a matunty date of 3 Apnil 2022 (4 3 years to
matunty} and had drawirgs of £rit (2016 £5 0m)
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Cash managerment pooling, netting and concentratior technigues are used to mimimise borrowings As at 31 December 2017 the
Group had gross cask of £410m {2016 £12 Om)
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18. Derivative financial instruments continued

Interest rate risk

Interest rate nsk anses on borrowings and cash balances (and denvative Laoihues and assatst which are at flaating interest rates
Changes ir interest rates could Fave the effect of either increasing or decreasing tre Group's net profit Under the Group's interest
rate management palicy, the interest rates on each of the Groun's major currensy moreiary assets and liabdities are managed ©©
actueve the desired mix of fixed ard vanable rates for each major net currercy exposure The major interest rate risk s to UK rates but
exXpOSUres also exist (o rates ir the USA, Europe and Sweden Measurement of this interest rate nisk ard its potential volatity to the
Group's reported financial performance 1s undertaken on a monthly basis and the Board uses this informatior to detarrmine, from time
1o 1irne, an appropnate mix of fixed and floaling rates

Ag at 31 December 2017 0% of gross debt and 0% of gross cash were at fixed rates (2016 0% of gross debt, 0% of gross cash)

Currency risk
Bodycote has operations in 23 countries and 1s therefore exposed to foraign exchange translation nsk when the profits and net assets

of these ertives are consolidated into the Group accounts

92% of the Group's sales are in currencies other than stering (EUR 40%, USD 34% and SEK 6%) Cumulatively over the year, sterling
rates moved such that the sales for the year were £32 1m Figher than if sales had been trarsiated at the rates prevaiirg in 2016

tis Group policy not to hedge exposure for the translation of reperted profits

The Group's balance sheet trarslatior policy ts not te actively hedge currency net assets However, where appropnate, the Group
will still match centrally held currency borrowings to the net assets The Group principally borrows in sterling but alse maintains debt
in US Dollar, Euro ard Swedish Krona, consistent with the [ocation of the Group’s assets The Geoup recognises foreign exchange
movements in equity for the translation of net investmert hedgirg instruments and balances

Transaction foreign exchange exposures anse when entities within the Group enter into contracts to pay of recewve funds In a currency
different from the functional currency of the entity concerned It has beer Group policy to hedge exposure to ¢ash transactions

n foreign currencies when a commitmert anses, usually through the use of foreign excharge forward contracts Even though
approximately 92% of the Group's sales are gererated outside the UK, the nature of the business 1s such that cross border saies ard
purchases are imited and immateral for the Group

Market risk sensitivity analysis

To represent mManagement’s best estimate of a reasonable range of potential outcomes, the Group has measured the estimated charge
to the Income statement and equity of erther am instantaneous increase or decrease of 1% (100 basis points) in market interest ratas
or a 10% strengthening or weakening m sterling against all other currencies from the apphcable rates as at 37 December 2017 for all
financial instruments with all other vanables remaining constant This analysis 18 for illustrative purposes only The sensitivity analysis
excludes the impact of market rsks on et post employment benefit abhgations

Interest rate sensitivity
Tha interest rate sensitraty analysis 1s based on the following assumptions

® changes in market interest rates affect the nterest ircome or expense of vanable interest financial instrumerts,

& changes m rmarket interest rates only affect the income statemenrt in relation 1o hnancial instruments with fixed interest if these are
recognised at therr far value, and

® changes in market interest rates affect the fair value of dervative financial instruments designated as hedging mnstruments

Under these assumphions, a one percertage poirt fall of nse in market imerest rates for all currencies m which the Group has vanable
net cash or net borrowings at 31 December 2017 would reduce or increase profit before tax by approximately £0 4m {2016 £0 1m
decrease) There s no significant impact on equity In the current or previous year

Currency sensitivity

Taking the 2017 sales by currercy, a 10% weakening/strengthening ir the 2017 cumulative average rates for ali currencres versus |
sterhing would have given nse to a +£70 9m/-£E82 7m movement in sales respecuvely The impact or headline operatng profit s

affected by the mix of losses and profits in the various currencies  However, taking the 2017 operating profit mix, a 10% weakenirg/

strengitemng in 2017 curnulalive average tates for all currenoies would have grven nse 1o a +£14 0my-£11 2m movement in headhine

operating profit

Counterparty risk
Counterparty nsk encompasses settlement neg on derwvative finarcial instrumenis and money rmasket contracts and cradit nisk on cash,

time depaosits and money market funds The Group monitors its credit exposure (o Its counterparties via therr credit ratings {where
apphcable) and through its pohcy, thersby imitng 1ts exposure 16 ary one party 1o ensure there 1s no sigrificant concentration of credn
sk Group policy 15 to enter nto such transactions only with courterparties with a long-term credrt rating of A-/A3 or better However,
acguired businesses cccasionally tave dealings with banks with lower credit ratings Business with such barks 1s moved as soon as

practicable
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19. Deferred tax
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and (assets) recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the current
ard prnior reporting penods

Accelerated Retirement
tax Tax benefit
depreciation losses  obligations Other Total
fm £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2016 493 31 53 (10 2) 307
(Crediti/charge to income 11 - 12 33} {10)
Credit to equity - - 4 - (14
Acquisition of businesses 17 - - 11 78
Trarsfers 10 5} 11} G3 03 -
Exchange differerces 88 a1 07} 20 60
Effect of change in tax rate
Ircome statement (16} 01 02 01 (12)
Equity — - o4 - a4
At 1 January 2017 58.8 (3.2} (5.3 {14.0) 36.3
Charge/icredit} to income 1.6 1.3 {0.1) 2.0 4.8
Credit to equity - - 1.1 (0.5} 0.6
Acguisition of businesses (0.4) - - {0.3) (0.7}
Transfers {0.2) - 0.1 01 -
Exctange differences {1.8) - {0.2) 0.7 {1.3)
Effect of change Ir tax rate
Income statement’ {11.2) (0.1} - 4.4 {6.9)
Equity - - {0.1) - {0.1)
At 31 December 2017 46.8 {2.0) (4.5 {7.6) 327

'Ivet impact of

(1} £6 Brr net one-off tax gan resulting from a revaluat on of the Group's US deferred tax | abrives This s in relation to the passing of the Tax Cuts and
Jobs Act in the US in Decermber 2017 that reduced the US Federal corporate ncome Tax rate

1l £0 1m on reiation to other tax rate change impacts

The following 1s the aralysis of the defarred tax balances for financial reporting purposes

2017 2016

£fm £m

Deferred tax habilities 57.2 68 8
Deferred tax assets (24.5) (32 5)
32.7 363

Other deferred tax assets relate to provisiors recognised i the financial statements that are not yet deductible for tax purpeses, in
particular in relatior to restructuring charges, share-based paymerts and iocal profit differerces that are expected tc reverse over time
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At the balance sheet date, the Group has urused tax losses of £35 6m (2016 £46 3m} avallable for offset against future profits A
deferred tax asset has been recognised i respect of £73m (2016 £14 0m) of such losses, based on management forecasts of future
taxable profits against which the assets car be recovered in the relevant junsdictions No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining £28 3m (2016 £32 3m} of such losses where there remairs urcertairty over the timing of utilisatior relating
to future profitability The majonity of losses may be carned forward irdefinitely

A deferred tax lability of £0 5m (2016 £nil) relating to the temporary differences on unremitted earrirgs of overseas subsidiaries has
been recogrised as the Group believes 1t is probable that these temporary differerces will reverse in the foreseeable future Temporary
differerces arsingir connection with interests in associates and joint vertures are msignificant



Notes to the consolidated financial statements contnued
Year ended 31 December 2017

20. Other financial liabilities
Trade and other payables

2017 2018
£m £m
Amounts falling due within ane year:

Trade creditors 38.2 377
Other taxes and sociai security * 23.5 168
Cther credrtors 14.6 230
Accruals ard deferred income 62.1 56 0
138.4 1335

Amounts falling due aftet movre than ane year:
Qther creditors 3.4 44

* Other hnancial hapilries include other taxes and social secur.ty, wh ¢h are not .ncluded as “nancial habilties in IFRS 7

Trade creditors and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongomng costs The average credit
penod taxen for trade purchases as at 31 December 2017 15 40 days (2016 40 days)

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to therr fair value

The followtng table details the Group's remaining contractual matunty for its financial Llabdities The table has been drawr up basad
on the undiscounted cash flows of finangial iabiities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay The table
includes both interest and principal cask flows

Less than
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5+ years Total
2017 2nm7 2m7 zn7 2017
£m £fm £fm £m £m
Mon-interest beanng’ 1471 38 33 5.0 159.2
Finarce lease hability - - - - -
Bank loans and overdrafts 1.4 - - - 1.4
Derwative financial instruments 3.0 - - - 3.0
151.5 38 3.3 5.0 163.6

Less than
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5+ years Total
208 2016 2018 2016 2016
£m £m £m £m £m
Non-interest beanng’ 1452 47 38 47 158 4
Finance lease hatility g1 - - - 01
Bank loans and overdrafts 58 - 50 - 108
Dervative financial instrurments 43 - - - 43
155 4 47 88 47 1736

" Non-interest pearng financial liatiimes nciude other taxes and sociai securty, which are not included as frnancral habil.ties in IFARS 7 These are pavable in
1ess than one year

Of the £14m (2016 £10 8m) bank loans ard overdrafts outflows disclosed above, £nil {2016 £5 Om) of bank loans are drawn under the
commuitted facility maturning on 3 Apnil 2022 The overdrafts are or demand and some are part of pooling arrangemenrts, which include
offsetting cash balances Of the £3 Om 2016 £4 3m) denvative Hirancia) mstruments outflows disclosed above, £3 Orn {(2016° £4 4m)
are matched by denvative cash inflows, therefore the net impact on the balance sheet 1s £r1l (2016 £0 1m)

n
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21. Provisions

22.

Restructuring

Restructuring environmental Environmental Total

£m £m £m £m

At 1 Jaruary 2017 6.7 6.6 72 205
Increase 1IN provision 0.2 - 25 2.7
Release of provision (0.5) - - {0.5)
Utilisation of provision (2.3) (1.4) (0.6) {4.3)
Exchange differerce {013 {0.3) {0.6) {1.0)
At 31 December 2017 4.0 4.9 8.5 174
included in current habilities 87
Included i non-currert habilities 8.7

17.4

The restructurirg provisior materially relates to the costs associated with the closure of a number of Heat Treatment sites annourced
in 2015 ard the restructuring of the Canadiar operatiors announced in 2016

The Group provides for the costs of environmental remediation that Fave beer idertified, either as part of acquisition due dihgence,

or Ir other crcumstances where remediation by the Group 1s required This provision 1s reviewed annually and s separated into
restructuring ervironmental and environmertal to identity separately ervironmental provisions relatirg to the restructuring programme
from those ansirg in the ordinary course of business

The majonty of cash outflows in respect of these labilities are expected to occur within five years

Whilst the Group's use of chlonrated solvents and other hazardous chemicals cortirues to reduce, the Group remains exposed to
cortingent liabilities ir respect of envirenmental remeadiation habilities In particular, the Group could be subjected to reguiatory or

legislative requiremenrts to remediate sites in the future However, it 1s not possible at this time to deterrmine whether and to what
extent any habilities exist, other thar for those recognised above Therefore no provisior s recegnised ir relation to these items

Share capital
2017 2016
£m £m

Issued and fully paid:
191,456,172 (2016 191,456,172) ordirary shares of 17 3/11p each 331 331




Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

Year ended 31 December 2017

23. Acquisition of businesses
Or 20 December 2017 Bodycote acquired the thermat processing assets tncluding hot 1sostatic pressing vessels and vacuum
furraces) in Blaenavon, South Wales from Doncasters Group Limited for £8 7m As part of the acguisttior, Bodycote entered inlo a
long term agreerment to provide Dencasters Group with their HIP and Heat Treatment requiremenis i the United Kingdom and the
associated employees involved with the thermal processing assets have transferred 1o Bodycote Therefore, the transactuion was
treated as a business combingtion ard witt the consideration being assigned to the fair value of the thermal processing assets Thisis
the only transaction during 2017

In the prior year acquisitions were made 1o strengthen the Group's network and to enhance the process offenrg in Carada, USA and
Cermany

The transactions have beer accounted for by the purchase method of accourting and are summansed beiow

2017
£m

Fair value of net assets acquired:
Property. plant and eguipment 8.7
Total consideration 8.7
Satished by
Cash consideration 8.7
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
Cash consideration 87

Prior year acquisitions had £6 5m of accrued consideration of which £5 6m has been paid in the current year The remaining 1s expected
to be paid ir the next 12 months Dunng the year an adjustment was made to acquisitions completed ir 2016 The adjustments are
putlined in the table below

2017
£m

Fair value adjustment

Property, plant and equipment {0.8)
Trade and other recanables a4
Trade ard other pavables {0.1)
Deferred tax lrabilities 0.7
Goodwill {0.4)

Acquisition-related costs {reported in exceptional items in note 5) amounted to £l {2016 £0 6m)

The acquired businesses contributed £nil revenue and £ril operating profit for the period between the dates of acquisitior and the
baiance sheet date due to the fact the acquisition was so close to year end

If the acquisitions had been completed on the first day of the financial year, Group revenue would have been £633 5m and Group
headline operating profit attributable 10 equity holders of the parent, stated pnor to Group maragemert charges, wolld have been
£124 Om
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24. Notes to the cash flow statement

25.

2017 2086
£m m
Profit for the year 973 670
Adjustments for
Investmenrt revenue (0.1) -
Finance costs 25 26
Taxation 197 249
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 58.1 541
Amortisatior of iIntangible assets 5.2 56
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment {0.7) 14 5l
Share-based payments 78 05
Impairment of fixed assets 0.4 51
Profit or disposal of businesses - [}
EBITDA* 191.2 155 2
Decrease in inventories 05 55
Increase In receivables {17.0) 41
tncreasefidecrease) in payables 10.2 6 7)
Decrease Ir provisions {2.1) (3 6}
Cashk generated by operations 182.8 146 3
Income taxes paid (22.9) {20 4)
Net cash from operating activities 159.9 1259

* Earrings before imterest, tax, deprecation, amortisation, imparment of fixed assets and other assets, prof t or 'oss on disposal of property, plant and

ecuipment, profit on sale of businesses ana share-based oayments

207 2016
£m £m
Cash ard cash eguivalents comprise
Cash and bark balances 410 120
Bank overdrafts (ircluded in borrowings) [1.4) (5 8)
39.6 62
Operating lease arrangements - the Group as lessee
2017 2016
£m £m
Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised as an expense 18.4 173
At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding commitments for future rminimum lease payments under non-cancellabie
operating leases, which fall due as follows
2017 206
£m £m
Within ore year 13.7 141
Ir the second to fifth years inclusive 29.0 287
after five years 18.9 224
61.6 65 2

Operating lease payrments represent rentals payable by the Group for certair of its land ard buildings, fixtures and fittings ard motor

vebricles



Notes to the consolidated financial statements contirnued
Year ended 31 December 2017

26. Share-based payments
Bodycote Incentive Plan {BIP)
The Company operates the BIP under which Exgcutive Directors and senior executives received a conditional award of Bodycote
shares up to a maximum of 175% of base salary Vesting of awards are based Lpon two parformance measures, over a three year
penod

Fifty per cent of the award 1s subtect to a return on capital employved (ROCE) perdformance condition and 50% of the award 18 subject to
an earnings per share {EPS) perforrmance condition

In the event that threshaold performance for both EPS and ROCE 1s not achieved rore of the conditional awards will vest

The rurmber of outstanding share awards is as follows

BIP BIP
2017 2016

ALA January 2,060,570  2.0039% '
Granted durning the year 759,058 896,894
Exercised dunng the vear (90,533) 745,089
Expired during the year (522,808) 195,231}
At 31 December 2,206,287 2,080,570
Average Tair value of share awards granted dunng the year at date of grant {pence) 7572.6 543 3
Fair value of awards granted during the year (f) 5,750,623 4,873,094

Exercise Price = £nil

The inputs to the Biack-Scholes simufation model, used to determine the charge to the iIncome statement for BIR are as follows

2017 2018
Weighted average share price pence 7576 5433
Weighted average exercise price pence nil ni !
Expected life vears 3.0 30
Expected dvidend yields % 1.9 19

The Group recognised a 1otal charge 1o the income steternert of £78m (2016 £0 5m) related to equity-setiled share-hased payment
transactions

The Group previously operated a Co-investment plar {(CIP) which closed in 2018 This closed for share awards in 2018 and currently
29,858 shares are cutstandirg

27 Related party transactions
Transactions between the Company and its subsidianes, which are related parties, have beer eliminated or conschidation and are not
disclosed in this note ‘

The remuneration of the Board of Directors, who are considered xey management personnel of the Group, was as follows

2017 2018

£m £m

Short-termn empioyee berefits 3.2 18
Share-based payments 0.6 01
3.8 19

Further information about the remuneration of the mndividual directors 1s provided i the Board Report on Remuneratian on pages
54 to 75

Bodycote pic . [T . - - _



28. Retirement benefit schemes
Defined contribution schemes
The Group operates defined contribution retirement berelt schemes for employess ir the United Kingdem, France, Belgium, Carada
and the United States of Amenca The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group i funds urder the cortrol
of trustees Where theare are employees who leave the schemes prior to vesting fully 1n the contrnibutiors, the cortnbutions payable by
the Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions

The Group’s emplovees ir Denmark, Finland, Sweden. ltaly and the Netrerlands are members of state-managed retirement berefit
schemes operated by the governments of each country The relevant subsidianes are required to contribute a specified percentage of
payroll costs to the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits The only obhgatior of the Group with respect to these retiremert
benefit schemes 1s to make the specified contributions

The total cost charged to income of £6 7m (2016 £6 2m) represents contributions payable to these schemes by the Group at rates
specified In the rules of the plans As at 31 December 2017 contributions of £0 2m {2016 £0 2m) due in respect of the current
reporting penod had not been paid over to the schemes

Defined benefit schemes

The Group operated a number of pension schemes and provided leavirg service benefits to certain employees dunng the year The
dehined benefit obhgation less farr value of assets at the end of the year ard total experse recognised in the income statement are
surmmarised below as follows

2017 2016
£m £m
UK Scheme (2.4) 36
Non-UK Schemes 176 179
15.2 215

Total expense recognised in income statement
2017 2016
£m fm
LUK Scheme 11 08
Non-UK Schemes 0.4 01
1.5 09

UK Scheme

The Group sponsors the Bodycote UK Persion Scheme (‘the Scheme’) which s a funded defined bensfit arrargement for certain UK
employees, and pays out pensions at retirement based on service, final pensicrable pay ard price inflation The Scheme 15 funded by
the GroLp and current employee members The Scheme exposes the Company to actuanal risks such as longevity rnisk, interest rate
risk ard market (investment) rnsk

The Scherme operates under UK trust law and the trust is a separate legal entity from the Group The Scheme 1s governed by a board
of trustees, composed of two member representatives, two employer representatives and cne independent trustee The trustees
are required by law to actin the best interests of scheme members and are responsible for setting certain policies (e g investment,
funding) together with the Group

Funding of the Scheme 1s based on a separate actuanal valuatior for fundirg purposes for whick the assumptions may differ from the

assumptions above Funding requirements are formally set out ir the Statement of Funding Principles, Schedule of Contributiors and

Recovery Plan agreed between the Trustees and the Group The actuanal valuation of the Scheme as at 5 Apnt 2017 was completed by
a qualifled independent actuary and the results of this have been updated on an approximate basis to 31 December 2017
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The contributions made by the employer over the financial year Fave been £0 7m, compnsirg £0 3m in respect of berefit accrual and
£0 4rmin respect of deficit recovery and ongeing expenses

It 15 the policy of the Group to recogrise alt actuanal gairs and losses m the year 1In which they occur outside of the profit and loss
account and in Other Comprehensive Income

As the Group does rot have an Lrconditional nght to a return of ary surplus ir the Scheme under the werding of the Scheme Rules,
the additional reporting requirements of IFRIC14 apply As the Scheme s 1n surplus as at 31 December 2017 a restrictior must be
appled to the balarce sheet The surplus recognised on the balance sheel has beer restricted to £2 4m No further habikues need
to be recogrised at 31 December 2017 as the Group 1s not committed to paying any furtrer deficit reduction contnbutions urder the
currert Schedule of Contributions



Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2017

28. Retirement benefit schemes continued
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obligation

2017 2016
£m £m
Defined berefit obligation at start of year 126.6 999
Current service ¢ost 0.6 06
Interest experse 2.9 34
Contributions by plar participants 01 02
Actuanal gains arising from changes in demographic assumptions {2.4) -
Actuanal losses ansing from changes in financial assumptions 0.6 270
Experence {gains)ficsses on liabihties (5.4) 13
Benefits paid, death in service Insurance premiums and axpensas {13.1) (58)
Defined benefit obligation at end of year 109.9 1266
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the fair value of the assets
207 2016
£m £m
Fair vatue of assets at start of year 123.0 1014
Imterest income 2.8 35
Return on scheme assets exciudirg interest income 4.4 198
Scheme administration expenses {0.4) 03
Contrbutions by employer 0.7 42
Contributiors by plan participants 0.1 0z
Beretits paid, death in service insurance premiums and expenses (incl age related rebatel [13.1) {58
Fair value of assets at end of year 1175 1230
Total expense recognised in the income statement
2017 2016
£m £m
Current service cost 0.6 a8
Net interest on the defined benefit (asset) habiity 0.1 {01}
Scheme administratior expenses 0.4 03
Total expenses 1.1 08
Assets
2017 207 2016 2016
Quoted Unquoted Quoted Unguoted
£m £fm £m fm
Equities 14.4 - 185 -
Bonds 60.9 154 591 157
Cash 5.1 - 14 -
Diversified growth funds 79 - 283 -
Dhversiied credit funds 13.8 - — -
102.1 15.4 1073 157

Nore of the far valug of the assets shown above includes any of the Group's own financial Instruments or ary property occupied by, or
other assets used by, the Group

The Scheme’s present strategic target 1s to allocate 65% of the investment portfolio to ‘return seeking’ asset classas including
eqguities, diversified growth funds, absolute return bonds ard direct lending, ard 35% to ‘hatility-matching’ asset classes, namely
Liability Driven Irvestment ('LDY) The LDI portion of assets has been put in place to reduce interest rate and inflation nsk

a
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28. Retirement benefit schemes continued

Assumptions
2017 2016
% per Y% per
annum anrum
RPLinflatior 325 330
CPlinflatior 2.45 250
Salary increases 3.00 300
Rate of discount 2.25 230
Allowance for pension in payment increases of RPlor 3% pa if less 24 241
Allowarce for revaluation of deferred pensiors 245 250
Maortality — current pensIoners
2017 2018
S2PxA YoB S2PxAYoB
CMI 2013 CMi 2013
1.5% long 156% long
Actuanal tables used term trend term trend
Life expectancy for members currently aged 65 22.6 228
Maortalty — future pensiorers
2017 2016
S2PxA YoB S2PxAY0B
CMI 2013 CMI 2013
1.5% long 15% long
Actuanal tables used termm trend term trend
Life expectancy at age 65 for members currently aged 40 24.3 250
2017 2018
All members All members
commute commute
75% of 75% of
maximum MaxImum
Cash commutation permitted permitted

The weighted average duratior of the defined benefit cbligaticn as at 31 December 2017 1s approximately 19 years (31

December 216

18 years)
Present value of defined benefit obligations, fair value of assets and deficit
2017 2me
Em £m
Present value of defined benefit obhigation 108.9 126 6
Farr value of plan assets (112.5) 1123 0
Deficit/isurplusy in the Scheme (7.6) 36
Adjustment relating to asset cellings and minimum funding requirements 5.2 -
Net defined benefit {asset)fliability before deferred tax (2.4} 36
Reconciliation of asset ceiling
2017 2016
£m fm
Restriction due to asset celling at beginning of penod - 42
Interest or asset restriction - a1
Olher changes in asset restrictior 5.2 {4 3)
Restriction due Lo asset celing at erd of penod 5.2 -

Tre best estimate of contributions to be paid into the plan for the year ending 31 December 2017 1s £0 8m



Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

Year ended 31 December 2017

28. Retirement benefit schemes continued
Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

2017 2016

£m £m
Gain/{loss) on expenerce on plan habilities 5.4 (13}
Return on scheme assets excludirg nterest income 4.4 198
CHects of changes in financial assumptions underlying the present value of the labilities {0.6) {270)
Effects of changes in demographic assumptiors underlying the present value of the habilities 2.4 -
{Loss)/gain due to change In asset restnction 5.2) 43
Total gain/floss) recognised in Qther Comprehersive Income 6.4 142

Impact of changes to assumptions
2017 2018

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

£m £m £m fm

0 25% change in discount rate {4.9) 4.9 16 3) 63
Q 25% change n price inflation {ard associated assumptions) 1.8 {1.8) 29 (2 9}
1 year charge n Iife expectancy at age 65 4.4 (4.4) 45 {4 58)

Combined non-UK disclosures
The Group operates schemes in the USA and continental Europe

During the year the two schemes in the USA were merged This has been recagnised as a settlement of the assets ard habilities it the
Metallurgical scheme with an offsetting past service credit and cost in the non-Meterallurgical scheme Overall there 1s no net impact
on the total expense recogrnised in the income statement in the year due to the merger of the US schemes

In Eurgpe the Group operates defined benetit pension, post retirement and long-service arrangements for certain employees in France,
Germany. Italy, Turkey, Switzerland and Liechterstein

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obligation

2017 2018
£m £m
Defined benefit obhigation at start of year 29.0 256
Current service cost 0.7 a7
Interast expense 0.5 06
Actuarial losses ansing from charges (r financial assumptiors 0.2 15
Expernerce gains on liabiities (0,3) {0 4)
Benefits paid, death ir service irsurance prermums and expenses (2.1) (2 3)
Empicyee contributions 0.1 G
Curtailments - 02
Settlemenrts (2.7} -
Past service cost/credit) 21 08
Exchange rate (gamnl/loss 0.2) 472
Defined benefit obligation at end of year 273 290

=
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28. Retirement benefit schemes continued

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the fair value of plan assets

2017 2016
£m £m
Fair value of assets at start of year 111 104
Interest Income 0.2 0z
Return or scheme assets excluding interest ircome 0.2 03
Contributions by employer 0.2 07z
Cortributions by employees 0.1 01
Benefits paid, death ir service insurance premiums ard experses {1.4) {19}
Sefttlements {1.9) -
Past service credit 19 -
Exchange rate (loss)/gain {0.7) 18
Fair value of assets at end of year Q.7 111
Total expense recognised in the income statement
2017 2016
£m £m
Current service cost 0.7 07
Net irterest on the defined berefit hability 0.3 04
Curtalments - 02)
Settlements (0.8} -
Past service cost 0.2 08)
Total expense 0.4 01
Assets
217
Quoted Unquoted Quoted Unguoted
£m £m £m £m
Equities 38 - 19 -
Bords - - - -
Cashk and cash equivalents - 0.2 18 01
Insurance contracts - 8.7 - 72
3.8 59 38 73

Total

Nonre of the fair values of the assets shown above include any of the Group's ownr Tinancial instrumerts or any property occlpied by, or

other assets used by the Group
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2017

28. Retirerment benefit schemes continued

Assumptions for 2017

Salary Rate of Pension

increases discount Inflation increases

% per annum % per annum % par annum % per annum

USA ~ metallurgical nfa 35 n/a n/a
USA — non-metallurgical n/a 35 n/a n/a
France 25 12 15 10
Germary 25 20 nfa 18
Itaiy 25 14 15 r/a
Turkey 60 05 n/a n/a
Liechtenstemn 25 08 n/a ria
Switzertand n/a 08 n/a n/a

Puration
The weighted average duratiors of tre defined benefit obligations of the overseas schemes at 31 December 2077 range from 13 years
10 19 years The durations ranged from 10 years 16 20 years as at 31 December 2018

Present value of defined benefit obligations, fair value of assets and deficit

2017 2016

£m £rn

Present value of defined benefit obligatron 273 290
Fair vaiue of plan assets 19.7) 1 1)
Deficit in the schemes 17.6 179

As all actuanal gans and losses are recogrused, the deficit shown abova at 31 December 2017 15 that recogrused in the balance shasat

Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

2017 2018

£m £m

Gain from experience on plan liabilities 0.3 04
Return or scheme assets excluding interest iIncome 0.2 03
Effects of changes in firancial assumphions underlying the present value of the liablites {0.2) (15)
Total gain/{loss) recognised in Other Comprehensive Incorme 0.3 {0 8)

The only funded plans are those operated in USA, France, Switzerland and Liechtenstein The best estmate of contributions to be pad
into the plans for the year ending 31 December 2017 15 £0 2m

Sensitivities [changes to total defined benetit obligations)

207 2016
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
£m £m £rm £m
0 25% change in discourt rate (1.0} 1.0 {11 11
Q 25% change i~ price inflation {ard associated assumptions! 0.5 (0.5) Q5 {Q 6}




29. Contingent liabilities
The international tax environment has received increased attention and seen rapid change over recent years, both at a US and
European level, and by international bodies such as the Organisation for Econormic Cooperation and Development (OECD) Ageinst this
backdrop, Bodycote has beer moritonng developmenrts ard contirues to engage transparently with the tax authorties in the countrnies
where we operate |In October 2017 the European Commission opened a state aid investigation into the Group Financing Exernptior
in the UK cortrolled foreign company rules The Greup Financing Exemption was introduced in legislation by the British government
in 2013 In common with other UK-basaed mmterrational comparies whose arrangements are in iine with current UK CFC legislation,
Bodycote may be affected by the outcome of this investigation If the prelirinary findings of the Europear Commission's iIrvestigation
nto the UK legislation are upheld, we calculate the maximum potental hability to be appreximately £16m Based on a current
assessment, Bodycote believes that no provisior 1s required ir respect of this matter



Five year summary

2m7 2016 2015 2014 203
£m £m £m £m £m

Revenue 690.2 600 6 5672 609 1 6196
Profit:
Headline operating profit 123.9 99 6 1021 1t 1074
Arnorusaton of acguired miangible fixed assets {4.5) {4 B} a2 39 {4 %)
Operating profit prior to exceptional items 119.4 951 979 1072 1029
ACQuIsSIion ¢osts - 06l - 02 -
Reorganisation costs - - 20 0} - 08
Operating profit 119.4 94 5 779 1070 1021
Net finance costs {2.4) 12 6} 29 33 37)
Profit before taxation 117.0 919 750 1037 984
Taxation {19.7) 124 91 (18 8) (24 4) {25 3)
Profit after taxation 973 870 56 2 793 731
Non-controlling interests {0.21 - - 01 Q1
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the parent 971 870 5672 794 730
Headling earnings per share {pence) 49.2 370 395 43 8 412
Dividend per share (pence} 174 158 151 14 4 135
Special dividend per share {pence) 25.0 - 100 200 100
Assets employed
Intangible fixed assets 201.0 2087 1752 1721 1679
Tangible fixed assets 520.5 5090 429 6 434 6 444 6
Other assets and hablities (63.6) {88 5) (675) 7158) (80 1}

6579 6272 5373 5352 532 4
Financed by
Share capital 33.1 331 331 331 331
Reserves 663.9 584 8 516 1 5373 5137
Shareholders’ funds 6970 6279 549 2 570 4 546 8
Non-controling interests 05 04 a4 a5 06
Net cash {39.6) (11} 12 3) (35 7) {15 0)
Capital employed 657.9 6272 5373 535 2 532 4
Net assets per share {pence) 364.1 3280 2869 2979 2856
Return on capital employed (%):
Headlme operating profit divided by the average of opening
ard closing capital employed as adjusted for certain items
of goocdwilt wntten off 19.3 171 190 207 NER]
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Company statement of financial position
At 31 December 2017

2017 2016
Note £m £m
Fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets 2 222 187
Tangible fixed assets 3 0.2 g2
Investments 4 390.9 3809
Recelvables 5 16.3 51
Retirerent benefit assets 1 24 -
432.0 4149
Current assets
Recewvabies 5 15 56
15 56
Current liabilities
Payables 6 {13.0) (76}
Net current liabilities (11.5) (20
Total assets less current liabilities 4205 4129
Payables Amounts falling due after more than one year
Retrement benefit obligations 1 - (36
Net assets 4205 409 3
Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital 8 331 331
Share premiurm account 1771 1777
Other reserves 133.8 1250
Profit for the year 28.7 630
Retained earnings 48.0 171
Shareholders’ funds attributable to equity holders 4205 408 3

Bodycote plc reported a profit for the finarcial year ended 31 December 2017 of £28 7m (2016 £63 Om)

The financial statements of Bodycote ple, registered number 519057 were approved by the Board of Directors and authonsed for issue on
6 March 2018

They were sigred on its behalf by

$.C. Harmis D.Yates
Director Director
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Company statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Called-up Share
share premium Other Profit and
capital account reserves loss account Total
£m £m fm £m £m
1 January 2016 331 1771 124 2 622 3966
Profit for the year ~ - - 630 630
Actuanal toss on defired berefit pension schemes
ret of deferred tax - - - {36) (3 6}
Total comprehensive income for the yvear - - - 594 594
Diwderds pad - - - 48 1) 48 1}
Share-based paymeris - - a5 - 0b
Settlement of share options - - 03 08 05
31 December 2016 331 1771 1250 741 409 3
Profit for the year - - - 287 287
Actuarial gain on delined benefit pensior schemes
net of deferred tax - - - 54 54
Total comprerensive incorme ior the year - - - 341 341
Dividends paid - - - 130 6) (30 8)
Share-based payments - - 78 - 78
Settlement of share options - - 08 [(¢RE)] 1)
31 December 2017 33.1 177.1 133.6 76.7 420.5

Details of dividends paid are set out in note © 10 the consobdated financial statements
Detalls of share-based payment transactions are set out in note 26 of the gorsolidated financial statements

The other reserves are slated after deducting £8 Om (2016 £9 Zm) refating to shares held in the Bodycote International Employee Benefit
Trust The Bodycote interrational Employee Benehit Trust neids Bodycoote pic shares ard saushes awards made under vanious employee
incentive schemes when issuance of new shares ts rot appropriate

At 31 December 2017 1,171,190 (2016 1,289,378) ¢rdirary shares of 17 3/11p each were held by the Bodycote International Employee
Benefit Trust and, following recommendations by the employer, are provisionally allocated to satisfy awards under employes incentive
schemes The trust waives paymenrt of dividend The market value of these shares was £10¢ 7m {2016 £8 3m)

Inciuded n other reserves is the capital redemption reserve of £129 8m (2016 £128 8m)

u
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Company accounting policies

Accounting convention

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework (FRS
101) and in accordance with apphcable accounting standards The financial staterments have been prepared under the histerical cost
conventior and 1 accordance with applicable law The principal accounting policies are summansed below They have all been applied
consistently throughout the year and the preceding year ir dealing with items that are considered matenial in relation to the Company’s
financsal statements In accordarce with Section 408 of the Comparies Act 2008, a separate profit and loss account dealing with the
results of the Cornpany has not been presented

As permitted by FRS 101, the Company has taken advartage of the disclosure exemptions available under that standard In relation to
share-based payments, firancial instrumenrts, capital management, presentation of a cash flow statement, presertation of comparative
information in respect of certair assets, standards not vet effective, impairment of assets, business combinations, discontinued operations
ard related party transactions

VWhere reguired, equivalent disclosures are given in the consohdated finarcial statements

Going concern

Tre diractors have at the time of approving the financial statements a reasorable expectatior that the Company has adequate resources to
cortinue in operatioral existence tfor the foreseeable future Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accourting in prepanng
the tinancial staterments Further detall 1s contained in the Chief Finarcial Officer's Report on page 24

Investments
Irvestments are held at cost less pravision for impairment, if any

Foreign currencies

Transactiors in currercies ather than pounds sterhng are recorded at the rates of exchange prevalling on the dates of the transactiors At
each balance sheet date, monetary assets ard habiities that are denominated in foreigr currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the balance sheet date Nor-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost ir a foreign currency are not retranslated
Gains and losses ansing on retranslation are included ir net profit or loss for the penod

Pension costs

The Company participates in a final salary defined benefit pension scheme ir the United Kingdom which 1s funded by the payment of
contributions 10 & separately adrministered trust fund This is 2 defined benefit plan which shares the nsks between entities under commaon
cortrol For further details, see note 11

There 1s no centractual arrargement or policy for charging the ret benefit cost between the entities who participate ir this scheme The
Compary 1s considered to be the entity that is legally the sponsoring employer of this scheme As such, the Compary recognises the net
defined benefit cost and the retirement berefit cbhigalion as par the requiremerts of 1AS 19 Employee Benefits, as descrnbed ir further
detail ir the accounting policies of the consolidated financial statements on page 92

For defined contribution schemes, the amount charged to the profit and loss accourt in respect of pension costs 1s the contnbutiors
payable in the year

Leases

Assets held under firance leases and other similar contracts, which confer nghts and obligations similar to those attacked to owned assets,
are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and theirr useful lives The capital elements
of future lease obligations are recorded as liabiliies, while the irterest elements are charged to the profit and loss account over the penod
of the lease to produce a constant rate of charge on the balance of capital repayments outstarding Hire purchase trarsactions are dealt
with similarly, except that assets are depreciated over their useful kves
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Rental costs under operating leases are charged to the profit ard loss accourt on a straight-line basis over the penod of the lease

The Company as lessor

Amourts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as recevables at the amount of the Company's ret investment - the leases
Finance lease income 15 allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant penodic rate of return on the Company's net investment
outstanding in respect of the ieases



Company accounting policies continued

Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost net of depreciation and any provision for impairment Depreciation 1s provided on a straight-lire
basis, to reduce the carrying vaiue 10 the estimated residual value at the point of sale, at the following annual rates

Fixtures and fittings 10% to 20%

Intangible fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets are stated at cost net of amortisation and any prowision for impatrmant Amortisation 1s providad on a straght-ine

basis over their estimated useful hves, at the following annual rates

Software 10% to 383%

Taxation
Current UK corporation tax and forengn 1ax s provided at amounis expecied 10 be paid {or recovered) usimg the tax rates and laws thal have

been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax s recognised ir respect of all birung differerces that have orginated but not reversed at the balance sheet date where
transactions of events that result ir ar obligation to pay more tax in the future or a nght to pay less tax in the future have occurred at the
balance sheet date Timing differerces are differences between the Company’s taxatle profits and its results as stated in the financial
statements that arise from the irclusior of gains and 1osses N tax assessments it pernods different from those in which they are
recognised in the financial statements

A net deferred tax asset 1s regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only when, on the basis of all avallable ewiderce, it car

be regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable prohits from which e fulure reversai of the urderlying uming
differences can be deducted

Deaferred tax 1s measured at the average tax rates that are expected to apply 1n the penods in which the tiring differences are expected to
reverse based on tax rates and laws lhat rave been enacled or substantvely enacled by the palance sheel date

Related party transactions
The Company has taken advantage of the exemption contained in FRS 8 Related Party Transactions rot to disclose transactions or balances

with wholly-owned entities of the Group

Share-based payments
The Company has applied the requirements of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment

The Company 1ssues equity-settled share-tased payments to certan employees Equity-settled share-based payments aré measured at
fair value at the date of grant The fair value determined at the grant date of the eqguty-settied share-based payrents 1s expensed on

a straight-ine basis over the vesting penod At each balance sheet date, the Company revises its estimate of the rurnber of equity
instruments expected to vest as a result of the effect of non-market based vesting conditions The impact of the revision of the onginal
estimates. If any, 1s recogrised mn protit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimates with a correspondirg
adiustment to the equity-settled employee benefits reserve

Critical judgements in applying the Company’s accounting policies and key sources of estimation

uncertainty
in the course of prepanng the Company's financral statements, no judgement or key scurce of estimation urcertainty have been identified
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Notes to the company financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2017

1. Profit for the year
Bodycote ple reported a profit for the financiai year ended 31 Decermber 2017 of £28 7m {2016 £63 Omy

The auditor's remuneration for audit and other services 1s disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial statemerts

Disclosure of indmvidual directors’ remuneratior, share interests, share options, long-term incertive schemes, pension cortnibutions
and pension entitlernents required by the Companies Act 2006 and those specified for audit by the Listing Rules of the Financial
Conduct Authorily are shown ir the tables in the Board Report on remaneration on pages 54 t¢ 75 and form part of these financial
statements

2. Intangible fixed assets

Software
£m
Cost
At 1 January 2017 250
Additions 48
At 31 December 2017 29.8
Amortisation
At 1 January 2017 63
Charge for the year 13
At 31 December 2017 76
Net book value
At 31 December 2017 222
At 31 December 2016 187
3. Tangible fixed assets
Fixtures
and fittings
£m
Cost
At 1 Jarvary 2017 08
Additions 01
At 1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 0.9
Depreciation -
At 1 January 2017 06 "E'
Crarge for the year 01
]
At 31 December 2017 0.7 £
Net book value §
At 31 December 2017 0.2 s
|’
At 31 December 20186 02




Notes to the company financial statements continued

Year ended 31 December 2017

4. Investments

Shares
£m

Cost
At 1 January 2017 3975
At 31 December 2017 3975
Provision for impairment
AL T January 2017 66
At 31 December 2017 5.6
Net book value
At 31 December 2017 390.9
At 31 December 2016 3909

The foilowing subsidianes have taken advantage of an exemption from audit under section 4794 of the Companies Act 2006 As
the ultimate parert. Bodycote ple has provided a statutory guarantee for any cutstanding fiabihties of this business All subsidiary
undertakings have been included in the consclidation

Bodycote Heat Treatments Lirnited
Bodycote Surface Techrology Limited
Bodyeote HIP Limited

Bodycote America Firance Limited
Bodycote America Treasury Limited
Bodycote Finance Limited

Bodycote Finance UK Limited
Bodycote International Limited
Bodycote Investments Limited
Bodycote Nominees No 1 Limited
Bodycote Pension Trustees Limited
Bodycote HIP Germany Limited
Bodycote Treasury Services Limited
Bodycote Thermai Processing Mexico Limited

5. Receivables

2017 2018
Em Em

Amounts falling due within one year:
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 0.7 04
Corporation tax recoverable - a1
Other receivables and prepayments 0.8 51
1.5 56

Amounts falling due after more than one vear:
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakirgs 15.8 42
Deferred taxation (note 7) 0.5 a9
16.3 51
178 107
6. Payables

2017 2016
£m fm

Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade payables 0.8 Q2
Armounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 0.5 08
Other taxes and social secunity 1.8 o]
Other payables 4.8 20
Accruals and deferred incoms 5.1 47
13.0 76

a2
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7. Deferred tax assets
The following are the major deferred tax assets
reportirg penod

recognised by the Company and movements thereor durning the current ard prior

Retirement
benefit Other timing

obligations differences Total
£m £m Em
At 1 January 2016 a5 03 08
Credil to profit or loss 08 - 06
Credit to other comprehersive ircome a7 - 07
At 1 January 2017 835} 03 09
Charge to profit or loss 01 01 02
Credit to other comprehersive iIrcome {11} - 11
At 31 December 2017 (0.4) 0.4 0.0

Deferred tax assets ard habiites are offset where the Company has a legally enforceable nght to do so The following 1s the analysis of

the deferred tax balances iafter offset) for financial reportirg purposes

2017 2016
£m £m
Deferred tax assets 0.9 09
8. Called-up share capital
Share capital:
Ordinary shares (allotted, called-up and fully paid)
Number of
shares £m
At 1 January 2017 191,456,172 331
At 31 December 2017 191,456,172 33.1

Details of share options in issue on the Company's share capital and share-based payments are set out In note 26 to the consolidated

finarcial statements

9. Contingent liabilities

The Company has guaranteed bank overdrafts, loans and letters of credit of certain subsidiary undertakirgs amourting to £8 9m

{2016 £171m)

10. Operating lease arrangements — the Company as lessee

2017 2016
£m fm
Minimum lease payments under operatirg leases recognised as an expense 0.3 03

At the balance sheet date, the Companry had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under nor-cancellable

operating leases, which fall due as follows

2017 2086

£m £m

Whithir one year 0.2 04
In the second to fifth years inclusive 0.1 03
0.3 07

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Company for its land ard butldings ard motor vehicles
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Notes to the company financial statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2017

11. Pension commitments
The Company participates in a final salary defined benefit screme, the detarls of whch are disclosed in note 28 1o the consohdated
financial statemeris This 1s a defined bereht plar which shares the nsks between entiues under common control There Is no
contractual agreement or policy for charging tre net benefit cost between entities who participate in this scheme The Compary 1s
considered to be the entity that 1s legally the sponsonng employer of this scheme The net defired benefit cost and the returement
berefit obiigation are recognised as per he requirements of |AS 19 (revised) Employee Benefits Fuh disclosures concerming the
scheme as required by IAS 19 (revised) are set out in note 28 to the consohdated financial statemerts

The contributions made by the Company over the financial year to the defired contributior schems amounted to £0 3m {2016° £6 3m)
As at 21 December 2017 contnbutions of £nil (2016 £0 1m) due in respect of the current reporting penod had not bean pad over to

the scheme
12. Related party transactions

During tre current and prior year, tre Company Mas rnot entered inte any trarsactions with related parties who are not wholly-owned
members of the Group

]
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Subsidiary undertakings

Incorporated in the UK

Springwood Court, Springwood Close, Tytherington Business Park, Macclesfield SK10 2XF
Bodycote America Finance Limited®

Bodycote America Treasury Limited®

Bodycote Developments Limited? ¢

Bodycele Finance Limited®

Bodycote Finance UK Limited®

Bodycote Heat Treatments Limited’

Bodycote H I P Limited”

Bodycote HIP Germany Limited®

Bodyeote Internationat Limited?®

Bodycote Investments®

Bedycote K-Tech Limited?

Bodycote Nominees No 1 Lirited?

Bodycote Nominees No 2 Limited?

Bodycote Pension Trustees Limited®

Bodycote Processing (Skelmersdale) Limited? *
Bodycote (Somerset) Limited?

Bodycote Surface Technology Limited?
Bodycote Thermal Processing Lirited?
Bodycote Thermal Processing Mexico Limited’
Bodycote Treasury Services Limited®

Expert Heat Treatments Liruted? ¢

Taylor & Hartley Fabncs Limiteq?

Incorporated in Belgium
Font Saint Landry 11, 112¢ Brussels, Belgium
Rodycote Belgium SA

Industrie Park Noord 7, 9100 Sint-Niklaas, Belgium
Bodycote Hot Isostatic Pressing NV'

Incorporated in Canada

630 Newpark Boulevard, Newmarket ON L3X 252, Canada
Bodycote Canada Property Irc ?

Bodycote Thermal Processing Canada, Inc !

50 Queen Street North, Suite 1020, Kitchener ON N2H 6M2, Canada
Bodycote Heat Treatment Canada, inc'

Incerporated in China
No. 68 Ningbo East Road, Taicang Economic Development Area, Taicang City, Jiangsu, China
Bodycote Heat Treatrments Techrelogy (Taicang) Co , Lirmited?

2012 Kehang Road, High Tech District, Jinan City, Shandong, China
Bedycote (Jinan) Heat Treatments Technology Co , Ltd”

No.12 Building, No. 78, Gu Cheng Zhong Road, Yu Shan Town, Kunshan City, Jiangsu Province, China
Bodycote {Kunshan) Heat Treatments Technology Co, Ltd '’

No.B2-A, Wuxi National Hi-New Tech Industrial Development Z, Wuxi City, Jiangsu Province, 214028, China
Bodycote Wuxi Technology Co, Ltd’

Incorporated in Czech Republic
Liberec 30, Tanvaldska 345, PSC, 46311, Czech Republic
Bodycote HT sro’

Rohanske nabrezi §71/15, Karlin, 186 00, Praha 8, Czech Republic
Bodycote S5C s rof

Stonc coce 0¥
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Subsidiary undertakings continued

Incorporated in France

llena Park ~ Bat. B2, Parc Technologique de Lyon, 117, allée des Parcs, 69800 Saint Priest, France
Bodycote France Hoidirgs 5A?

Bodycote Lyon SNCS

Bodycote SAS

Bodycote Sud-Ouest SAS”

HITEC SAS?

Nitruvid SAS'

Techmeta Engineenng SAS!

Lieu-dit Champ Corbert, 74370, Metz Tessy, France
Techmeta Participations SA%7
Technigues Metallurgiques Avanceées SAS'

Incorporated in Germany
Schiessstrasse 68, 40549 Dusseldorf, Germany
Bodycote Deutschland GmbH®

Bodycote European Holdings GmbH?

Bodycote FHK Flachstanl-Hartere Kollner Gmbh!
Baodycote Germany — East GmbHE

Bodyoote Hirzenhain GmbH!

Bodyeote Specialist Technologres GmbH'
Bodycote Specialist Technologies Deutschlard GmbH'
Bodycote VHK vakuum-Harterel Kollrer GmbH'
Bodycote Warmebehandlung GmbH'

Incorporated in ireland

12 Merrion Square North, Dublin 2, reland
Bodycote ireland Finance DAC®

Bodycote Ireland Treasury Limited®

Incorporated in Mexico

Oficinas en el Parque Torre Baker & McKenzie, Piso 10, Blvd. Antonio L. Rodriguez 1884 Pte, Montemrey, NL, 64650, Mexico
Bodycote de Mexico, S de RL de C V'

Bodycote de SLE S de R L deC v’

Bedycote Testing de Mexico, S de RL de CVv?

Bodycote Thermal Processing de Mexico, S de RL de C V'

Bodycote Thermal Processing de Mexico Servicios, S de R L de C V®

Incorporated in Sweden
Box 209, 735 23 Surahammar, Sweden
Bodycote Hot Isostatic Pressing AB’

Box 124, 424 23, Angered, Sweden
Bodycote Sweden AB?

Bodycote Thermotreat AB2
Bodycote Varmebehandling AB’
Bodycote Ytbehanding AB'

Incorporated in USA

12700 Park Central Drive, Suite 700, Dallas TX 75251-1518, USA
Bodycote Americas, Inc ?

Bodycote Amenca Finarce, LLC?

Bodycote IMT, Ing !

Bodyecote K-Tech, Inc ’

Bodycote Syracuse Heat Treating Corporation’

Bodycote Thermal Processing, Ing !

Bodycote USA, Inc?

-
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Incorporated in other overseas countries
Boehlerdurplatz 1, 8605 Kapfenberg, Austria
Bodycote Austna GmbH’

Groethofstraat 27, 5916FA Venlo, Netherlands
Bodycote Hardingscentrum BY'

Orczy ut 46, Budapest, H-1089, Hungary
Bodycote Hungary Hokezelo KFT'

Kemalpasa 0SB, 1zmir Kemalpasa Asfalti No.17/1, 35730 Kemalpasa-IZMIR, Turkey
Bodycote Istas lsil Islem Sanay ve Ticaret AS (79 3% owred)' =

50 La Colomberie, St Helier, JE2 4QB, Jersey -
Bodycote Jersey Holdings Limited?

Gesillvagen 7, 01730 Vantaa, Finland
Bodycote Lampokasittely Oy’

7. Rue Robert Stumper, L-2557 Luxembourg
Bodycote Luxembourg Finance SARL®

Wilgowa 65D, Czestochowa, 42-271, Poland
Bodycote Polskaspzoo!

Im alten Riet 123, 9494 Schaan, Liechtenstein
Bodycote Rheirtal Warmebehandlung AG'

Via Moie 28, 25050, Rodengo Saiano, italy
Bodycote Trattament Termict SpA

Brasov, str. Zizinului nr. 119, cod 500407, Romania
Bodycote Tratamente Termice SRL”

i

Industribuen 16-18, 5592, Ejby, Denmark -
Bodycote Varmebehandiing A/S'

Other:

incorporated in USA
13753 Otterson Court, Livonia, MI 48150, USA
Thixomat Technologies, LLC {13 8% Investment)

Classifications Key

"Thermal processing company
2 Dormant

3 Holding Company =
4 Property Holding Company

STrustee

8 Provision of services to Group companies

Except where stated, these companies are wholly-owned subsidanes ard have orly one class of issued shares

It 15 agreed that the three German subsidiaries Bodycote Warmebehandlung GmbH, Bodycote Specialist Technotfogies Deutschland GmbH
and Bodycote Speciaiist Techrologies GmbH meake use of the exemption optior under Sec 264 para 3 German Commercial Code for the
fiscal year 2017 and will not publish their annual financial statemerts according to Sec 325 et seq German Commeraial Code

It 15 also agreed that the Dutch subsidiary Bodycote Hardingscertrum BY makes use of the exemption under Article 403, paragrapk 1 of
Boox 2 Dutch Civil Code and will not publisk 1its annual frnancial statements

The firancial data of the above German ard Dutch compames for 2017 are included ir the consclidated arrual accourts of Bodycote PLC
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Shareholder enquiries

Enguines on the following adrministrative matters can be addressed 1o the Company's registrars at Equiriti Lirmited, Aspect House, Spercer
Road, Larcing, West Sussex BN99 80A Telephore 0333 207 5957 {+44 121 415 0804 1 calirg from outside the UK) Lines oper 8 30am
to 5 30pm (UK time), Monday to Friday excluding pubiic holidays in England and Wales, Email Log on to help shareview co uk ifrom here
yol will be able to email your gquary securely)

m Change of address

m Lost share certificates or dividend cheques

m Dividend mardates

a Amalgamatior of Foldings

Forms for some of these matiers can be dowrloaded from the registrars’ website www shareview co uk Shareholders car easily access

ard maintain therr sharerolding online by registering at www shareview co ux To register, shareholders will require therr shareholder
refarence number which was recertly provided

Share dealing service
For information on the share dealing service offered by Equinitt Limited, telephone 0345 603 7037 (+44 121 415 7065 #f callng from

outside the UK] Lires oper 8 00am to 4 30pm {UK tme), Monday to Friday excluding public holidays ir England and Wales) Please either
tetephone Equiriti or look orhing at www shareview ¢o uk for the up to date commissior rates

Dividend reinvestment plan (DRIP)
Equinit’s Bividend Re-nvesiment Plar offers a convemeant way for srareholders 1o butd up their sharehalding by using dvidend payments
to purchase additional shares The plan is provided by Equiniti Financial Services Limrted, part of Equiniti Group . which is authorised and

regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority

For more information and an apphcation pack please call 0333 207 5951 (+44 121 415 0804 /f cailirg from outside the UK) Lines
oper 08 30am to 6 30pm (UK time). Monday to Friday excluding public halidays in England and Waies ARernatively go to
shareview co uk/Anfo/dnp

It 1s iImpertant 1o remember that the value of shares and dividerd payments car fall as well as nse and you may not recover the amount
of money that you invest Past performarce should not be seen as mdicative of future performance

Overseas shareholders
Equiniti providdes a service to overseas shareholders that will convert starling dividerds irto local curercy at a competitive rate Dividend

payments will then be made directly into your local bark account For mare informatior log on to www shareview co uk/info/ops where
you will find the answer to any quenes you have, as well as the full terms and conditions of the service Alterratively please call

0333 207 5951 (+44 121 415 0804 tf cailing from outside the UK} Lines open 08 30am to 5 30pm (UK time), Monday to Frday
excluding public holidays 1n England and Wales

Duplicate share register accounts
If you are receiving more than one copy of our report, 1t may be that vour shares are registered i two or more accounts on our register
of members If that was not your intention you rught consider merging them mto ore single entry Please contact Egquimit, wheo will be

pleased to carry out your instructions
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Shareholder analysis
Aralysis of share register as at 21 February 2018

Number of Number of

Holding range shareholders % shares %
11t 1,000 383 428 367113 02
1.001 to 10,000 770 374 2,456,286 13
10,001 t0 100.000 228 1 7448 382 39
100,001 to 500,000 m 54 27855,431 145
500,001 and over 69 33 153,327.960 801
2,081 1000 191,456,172 1000

% of % of total

Type of shareholders shareholders shares
Directors’ irtergsts ¢ 01
Major irstitutional and corporate holdings 345 28 3
Other shareholdings 65 4 16
1060 1000

As at 21 February 2018 the following voting nghts in the Company had beer notrfied in accordance with the Disclosure and Transparency

Rules

Tvpe of shareholders

Old Mutuat Global Investors (UK} Limited
Standard Life irvestments Ltd

BlackRock Investmerts Managerent (UK} Ltd
AXA Investment Managers UK Ltd
Dimensional Furd Advisors, LP

Schroder Investment Managerment Ltd
Kames Capital

Fran<lir Templeton Fund Management Limited
MNorges Bank Irvestment Management

JP Morgar Asset Managemenrt UK Limited

Number of
shares
16,848,515
16,748,340
8,853 119
8,243,744
8,236,192
8,114,965
7012682
6,800,000
6,282,074
5,928,160

Yo
88
87
46
43
13
472
37
36
33
31
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Company information

Advisers
Auditor
Deiottte LLP

Principal bankers

HSBC Bank plc, Barclays Bank PLC, The Royal Bank of Scotland pic, Svenska Handelsbanker AB, UniCredit Bark AG, ING Bank NV

Wells Fargo Bank, NA and KBC Bank NV

Solicitors
Eversheds Sutherland (international) LLE Herbert Smith Freehills LLP ard DLA Piper UK LLP

Financial cafendar
Annual Gerneral Meeting
Final drvidend for 2017
Interim results for 2018
Intenm dividend for 2018
Results for 2018

a
ﬂ Bodycote plc - - - .- P

30 May 2018

1 June 2018
July 2018
November 2018
February 2018
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